STATE OF PRACTICE FOR AUTOMATED INCIDENT DETECTION

FINAL REPORT

January 27, 2022

ENTERPRISE TRANSPORTATION POOLED FUND STUDY TPF-5(359)

Prepared by: Athey Creek Consultants





Technical Report Documentation Page

1. Report No. ENT-2022-3	2. Government Accession No.	3. Recipients Catalog No.
4. Title and Subtitle State of Practice for Automated Incident Detection		5. Report Date January 27, 2022
		6. Performing Organization Code
7. Author(s) Linda Preisen and Tina Roelofs		8. Performing Organization Report No.
9. Performing Organization Name and Address Athey Creek Consultants		10. Project/Task/Work Unit No.
2097 County Road D, Suite C- Maplewood, MN 55109	-100	11. Contract (C) or Grant (G) No. 2019-0045
12. Sponsoring Organization Name and Address ENTERPRISE Pooled Fund Study TPF-5(359) Michigan DOT (Administering State)		13. Type of Report and Period Covered Final Report
PO Box 30050 Lansing, MI 48909		14. Sponsoring Agency Code
15. Supplementary Notes Final Report available at: <u>http</u> <u>Detection-FR-Jan-2022.pdf</u>	os://enterprise.prog.org/wp-co	ntent/uploads/ENT-Automated-Incident-
16. Abstract Traffic Management Center (TMC) operators need to be alerted of roadway incidents (e.g., crashes, stalled vehicles, slowed or stopped traffic) in a timely manner to initiate response efforts and manage the resulting traffic implications. Commercially available products can provide automated incident detection (AID functionality with alerts to TMC operators. This project researched the state of practice for commerciall available AID systems. The project focused on products and tools that detect multiple types of commo roadway incidents (e.g., crashes, stalled vehicles, debris, slow or stopped traffic) and provide alerts to TMC operators. The project objectives were to understand the various AID capabilities offered and to defin common user needs for TMC operator use of AID systems. To accomplish the objectives, the project identifier 42 common TMC operator user needs for AID that were used to guide seven vendor demonstrations of AID products to document their capabilities. Two transportation agencies also demonstrated platform developed in-house to assist in AID. Finally, a peer exchange webinar featured seven transportation agencie highlighting their experiences with AID products. The AID systems reviewed for this project vary in detection capabilities, detection coverage, and detection environments. In addition, all products or agency platform are configurable, provide alerts to TMC operator common user needs for AID can be used and modified b ENTERPRISE members to identify their agency's specific needs for deploying AID systems.		
17. Key Words ENTERPRISE, automated incid	dent detection	18. Distribution Statement No restrictions

ENTERPRISE, automated incident detection		No restrictions	
19. Security Class (this report)	20. Security Class (this page)	21. No. of Pages	22. Price
Unclassified	Unclassified	101	

Acknowledgements

This *State of Practice for Automated Incident Detection (AID)* report was prepared for the ENTERPRISE Transportation Pooled Fund TPF-5(359) program (<u>http://enterprise.prog.org/</u>). The primary purpose of ENTERPRISE is to use the pooled resources of its members from North America and the United States federal government to develop, evaluate, and deploy Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS).

The cover page image is courtesy of the Minnesota Department of Transportation.

Project Champion

Dean Beekman and David Karnes from the Wisconsin Department of Transportation were the ENTERPRISE Project Champions for this effort. The Project Champions serve as the overall leads for the project.

ENTERPRISE Members

The ENTERPRISE Board consists of a representative from each of the following member entities.

- Illinois Department of Transportation
- Iowa Department of Transportation
- Kansas Department of Transportation
- Michigan Department of Transportation
- Minnesota Department of Transportation
- Ontario Ministry of Transportation
- Pennsylvania Department of Transportation
- Texas Department of Transportation
- Wisconsin Department of Transportation

Project Input

ENTERPRISE would like to thank each of the ENTERPRISE member agencies that participated in a series of webinars to provide input to the TMC user needs for automated incident detection and other aspects of the project. ENTERPRISE would also like to thank the following entities that provided product demonstrations and peer exchange presentations on agency experiences with AID products:

Product Demonstrations

Transportation Agency AID Platforms:

- Colorado DOT
- Pennsylvania DOT

Companies Offering AID Products:

- Bosch
- Citilog
- FLIR
- Navtech Radar
- OptaSense
- TrafficVision
- Waycare (Acquired by Rekor in January 2022)

Peer Exchange Presentations

- Georgia DOT
- Iowa DOT
- Kansas City Scout
- Maryland DOT
- Minnesota DOT
- Ontario Ministry of Transportation
- Virginia DOT

Table of Contents

1.0	Introduction1
2.0	Project Approach2
3.0	Industry Scan
3.1	Video Analytics Systems that Use In-Place Traffic Cameras
3.	1.1 Selected Literature for Video Analytics Systems that Use In-Place Traffic Cameras
3.2	Detection-Equipped Traffic Cameras
3.	2.1 Selected Literature for Detection-Equipped Traffic Cameras
3.3	Non-Video Based Products
3.4	Agency Tools and Platforms Using External Data10
3.5	Incident Feeds from Third-Party Traffic Data Providers
3.6	Wrong-Way Vehicle Detection Systems15
3.	6.1 Selected Literature for Wrong-way Vehicle Detection Systems
4.0	TMC Operators Common User Needs for Automated Incident Detection
5.0	Automated Incident Detection Product Capabilities
5.1	Detection Capabilities, Coverage and Environment
5.2	Alerts, Displays, and Configuration
5.3	Integration with Agency Systems and Practices
6.0	Agency Experiences
6.1	Agency Experiences with AID Products
6.2	AID Pilots and Testing by ENTERRISE Agencies
6.3	AID Planned System
7.0	Key Project Highlights
Appen	dix: Product Demonstration Webinar SummariesA-1
Refere	nces Ref-1

1.0 Introduction

Traffic Management Center (TMC) operators need to be alerted of roadway incidents (e.g., crashes, stalled vehicles, slowed or stopped traffic) in a timely manner to initiate response efforts and manage the resulting traffic implications. Commercially available products can provide automated incident detection functionality with alerts to TMC operators. This includes stand-alone products equipped with detection capabilities or systems that can be connected to existing agency equipment to perform automated incident detection at a network level.

This ENTERPRISE Pooled Fund Study project, *State of Practice for Automated Incident Detection (AID)*, researched the state of practice for commercially available automated incident detection systems. The project focused on commercially available products and tools that detect multiple types of common roadway incident types (e.g., crashes, stalled vehicles, debris in the road, slow or stopped traffic) and provide alerts to TMC operators. The objectives were to understand the state of practice for commercially available automated incident detection systems and to define common user needs for agency use of these systems.

Project Objectives

- Understand the state of practice for commercially available automated incident detection systems.
- Define common user needs for agency use of these systems.

To accomplish the project objectives, the research team worked with ENTERPRISE agencies to identify 42 common AID user needs that were then used to guide seven vendor demonstrations of AID products to document their capabilities. Two transportation agencies also demonstrated platforms developed inhouse to assist in AID. Following the demonstrations, a peer exchange webinar was held where seven transportation agencies highlighted their experiences with AID products.

This report includes the following sections:

- <u>2.0 Project Approach</u> Describes the research approach and how information was gathered.
- <u>3.0 Industry Scan</u> Documents findings from an online search of traffic AID systems.
- <u>4.0 TMC Operators' Common User Needs for Automated Incident Detection</u> Identifies 42 common user needs for AID system from the perspective of TMC operators.
- <u>5.0 Automated Incident Detection Product Capabilities</u> Summarizes overall observations from the AID product webinar demonstrations.
- <u>6.0 Agency Experiences</u> Highlights agency AID experiences presented during a peer exchange webinar.
- <u>7.0 Key Project Highlights</u> Presents a summary of key highlights from each phase of the project.
- <u>Appendix</u> Provides the Product Demonstration Webinar Summaries.

2.0 Project Approach

To document the current state-of-practice for commercially available AID systems a series of steps was completed. See Figure 1.

- **Step 1: Industry Scan:** An online search was conducted to document commercially available AID systems for use by transportation agencies to detect traffic-related incidents and provide alerts to TMC operators and to identify companies offering AID products.
- Step 2: Define Common TMC Operator User Needs: ENTERPRISE member agencies participated in an interactive webinar to define common user needs for AID systems from the perspective of the TMC operator.
- Step 3: AID Product Demonstrations: Based on the industry scan (Step 1), selected companies were invited to demonstrate their AID capabilities based on the common user needs (Step 2) via a webinar presentation to the ENTERPRISE members.
- Step 4: Peer Exchange Webinar: After the product demonstrations (Step 3) were completed, a peer exchange webinar was conducted to highlight agency experiences with a variety of AID products.
- Step 5: Draft and Final Report: The final step was creating this report documenting the information gathered in Steps 1-4. This document provides ENTERPRISE member agencies with the current state of practice of AID systems in addition to providing a framework of user needs that may translate to requirements as agencies procure AID systems.



Figure 1: Project Approach

3.0 Industry Scan

The information in this section reflects findings from an online search of AID systems, input from ENTERPRISE member agencies during project kickoff activities, along with input received during the review of this document from the company's that demonstrated products as part of this project. These findings focus primarily on products or tools that detect multiple types of common roadway incidents (e.g., crashes, stalled vehicles, debris in the road, slow or stopped traffic) and provide alerts to TMC operators. In some cases, these systems offer additional capabilities such as detecting wrong-way vehicles, collecting traffic data such as speeds or vehicle classifications, or other unique capabilities.

This search identified commercially available products but also includes selected agency tools and approaches that integrate external data (e.g., crowdsourced data or third-party traffic data) into TMC systems to improve incident detection capabilities.

The industry scan does not include products that provide other local detections with alerts to drivers onsite (e.g., animal crossings, pedestrian or bicyclist detection, hazardous materials vehicle identification).

The AID products and tools documented for this project are presented in six categories as shown in Table 1. Additional details on each product or tool are noted in the following sections. Selected literature that documents evaluations of AID products and systems are also provided.

AID Category	Products and Tools
Video Analytics Systems that	TrafficVision
Use In-Place Traffic Cameras	Citilog (several products)
	• Southwest Research Institute (SwRI) Active-Vision [™] Anomaly
	Detection
	• FLIR
Detection-Equipped Traffic	• Bosch
Cameras	• FLIR
Non-Video Based Products	Waycare (Acquired by Rekor in January 2022)
	OptaSense
	NavTech Radar
	Bluecity
Agency Tools and Platforms	PennDOT Traffic Alerts Dashboard (Waze and INRIX)
Using External Data	Colorado DOT Traffic Operations Dashboard (Waze and HERE)
	Additional agencies integrating Waze into TMC systems (Maine
	DOT; Lake County, Illinois; Pennsylvania Turnpike; Iowa DOT)
Incident Feeds from Third-Party	TomTom
Traffic Data Providers	• INRIX
	• HERE

 Table 1: AID Products and Tools by Category

Wrong-Way Vehicle Detection	Citilog Wrong Way Alert System
Systems	TAPCO Wrong-way Alert System
	 All Traffic Solutions (ATS) Wrong-Way Solution[™]
	MH Corbin Wrong-Way Detection Solution
	Trafficalm Wrong Way Warning + Notification
	Carmanah WW400 Wrong Way Vehicle Detection, Warning
	and Alert System
	Image Sensing Solutions Wrong Way Alerting Solution
	Southwest Research Institute (SWRI) Wrong-Way Driving
	Solutions
	 Cameleon/FLIR Wrong-Way Driving Solutions + Notification
	TrafficVision

3.1 Video Analytics Systems that Use In-Place Traffic Cameras

Video analytics systems process video streams from traffic cameras to detect incidents and create realtime alerts. These types of systems process video feeds from in-place traffic cameras to detect incidents and generate notifications.

Table 2 provides an overview of AID systems that utilize video from in-place traffic cameras.

Table 2: Video Analytics System	s that Use In-Place	Traffic Cameras
---------------------------------	---------------------	-----------------

Product	Overview
TrafficVision	Website: http://www.trafficvision.com/
	TrafficVision uses a patented advanced computer vision system which was specifically designed for transportation to monitor digitally encoded video streams of traffic cameras on highways to detect incidents and continuously collect real-time traffic data.
	 Types of incidents detected: Wrong-way vehicle Stopped vehicle/debris in roadway is stationary for more than the specified threshold Vehicle congestion if lane occupancy exceeds the specified percentage Pedestrian in road Slow speeds if below the specified threshold for specified duration of seconds
	 Special events and other applications: Monitoring for incidents or collecting data during special events Construction zones Problem areas requiring quantified data points such as wrong way drivers, stopped vehicles, volume increases/decreases, or frequent slow downs Real-time traffic data collection: classifies vehicles as motorcycle, passenger vehicle, truck, and large truck

Product	Overview
Citilog	Website: <u>https://www.citilog.com/solutions/incident-management</u> Citilog solutions turn cameras into Automatic Incident Detection (AID) sensors, creating a broad detection network. Deployed through servers or directly on the edge, within the cameras, the state-of-the-art analytics detect incidents and alert operators in seconds. The CT-ADL (Citilog Applied Deep Learning) leverages the power of deep learning to eliminate false alarms – while maintaining today's high detection rates.
Southwest Research Institute (SwRI) Active- Vision [™] Anomaly Detection	Website: <u>https://www.swri.org/industry/intelligent-transportation-systems/active-vision-anomaly-detection</u> Active-Vision [™] applies advanced computer vision and Machine Learning Technologies to detect and report actionable traffic condition changes. It can be integrated into a variety of intelligent transportation systems (ITS), using existing traffic cameras to analyze anomalies affecting roadway traffic.
FLIR	FLIR provides in-rack/cabinet modules for AID which use existing hardware.

3.1.1 Selected Literature for Video Analytics Systems that Use In-Place Traffic Cameras

An online literature search located the following selected literature related to video analytics systems that use in-place traffic cameras.

- Development of Automated Incident Detection System Using Existing Advanced Traffic Management System (ATMS) CCTV (Chien et al., 2019): The Indiana Department of Transportation (INDOT) has over 300 digital cameras along highways in populated areas of Indiana. The main objective of this research was to develop an automatic and real-time system to facilitate the tracking process. The Transportation Active Safety Institute (TASI) of the Purdue School of Engineering and Technology at Indiana University-Purdue University Indianapolis (IUPUI) and the Traffic Management Center of INDOT have worked together to conduct a one-year research project to develop a system that will monitor the traffic conditions based on the INDOT CCTV video feeds. Specifically, the proposed system will perform traffic flow estimation, incident detection, and classification of vehicles involved in an incident. The automatic traffic incident detection was not implemented as a part of this project and will be implemented after the traffic flow information is being derived accurately.
- <u>Testing and Evaluation of Thermal Camera-based and Video-analytic Systems on Wrong-Way</u> <u>Driving, Stopped Vehicles, and Pedestrians</u> (Lin et al., 2019): This project successfully evaluated the performance of a thermal camera-based detection system and a video-analytic detection system provided by two vendors. The thermal camera-based detection system was deployed at two locations on the Sunshine Skyway Bridge to identify wrong-way driving (WWD), stopped vehicles, and pedestrian events, and the video-analytic system was deployed at six locations on

the Howard Frankland Bridge to detect freeway WWD events. Two performance measures were defined to evaluate the tested systems—detection system accuracy and percentage of false calls. Data review and analysis results revealed that (1) the thermal-based detection system was able to produce a detection system accuracy of 100% for pedestrian detection, 94.3% for stopped vehicle detection, and 100% for WWD detection; (2) the video-analytic system was able to produce a detection system accuracy of 84.6% for WWD detection; (3) correct pedestrian detections were triggered by roadway workers or onsite police officers for work; (4) correct detection of stopped vehicle events was triggered primarily by vehicles (cars, motorcycles, utility vehicles, etc.) stopped on shoulders and on-duty vehicles (utility vehicles, police vehicles, etc.) stopped in lanes to perform work; one potential suicide attempt was detected associated with a stopped vehicle/pedestrian on the Sunshine Skyway Bridge; (5) no actual WWD events were detected at any designated test location; all correctly-detected WWD events were trigged by vehicles in roadway events such as roadwork utility vehicles and on-duty police vehicles driving in opposite direction of traffic in blocked lanes, and vehicles backing upon shoulders; and (6) the video-analytic detection system configuration may be subject to change due to external environment conditions such as camera vibrations; it is recommended to define appropriate reference points for detection region of interest (ROI) configuration and calibration during the system setup process and to set up alerts when pre-defined ROI is shifted.

- Situational Awareness for Transportation Management: Automated Video Incident Detection and Other Machine Learning Technologies for the Traffic Management Center (Rindt, 2018): This report provides a synthesis of Automated Video Incident Detection (AVID) systems as well as a range of other technologies available for Automated Incident Detection (AVID) and more general traffic system monitoring. This synthesis considered the impacts of big data and machine learning techniques being introduced due to the accelerating pace of ubiquitous computing in general and Connected and Automated Vehicle (CAV) development in particular. To start with, a general background on the history of traffic management was provided. This is followed by a more detailed review of the incident management process to introduce the importance of incident detection and general situational awareness in the Traffic Management Center (TMC). Attention was then turned to AID in general and AVID in particular before discussing the implications of more recent data sources for AID that have seen limited deployment in production systems but offer significant potential. Finally, the changing role of the TMC and how new data can be integrated into traffic management processes most effectively was considered.
- Performance Evaluation of Video Analytics for Traffic Incident Detection and Vehicle Counts Collection (Kim et al., 2017): Current incident detection and traffic monitoring method using closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras meets with limitations as the coverage of CCTV cameras rapidly expands. In general, traffic operators at the Traffic Operation Center (TOC) have to manage and monitor numerous CCTV cameras deployed on roadways. Thus, many transportation agencies consider the use of a video analytics system to reduce incident detection time and minimize traffic impacts, but they also want to validate the performance of the video analytics system whether it can work with their existing video surveillance infrastructure before procuring the system. To that end, a pilot study was designed and conducted to evaluate the accuracy of a video analytics

product by integrating with CCTV cameras deployed on highways. The pilot study was designed to evaluate the accuracy of video analytics in detecting incidents and collecting traffic counts. The test results show that the performance of video analytics is significantly impacted by video quality and other environmental factors such as lighting and weather conditions.

- Evaluation of Video Analytics for Incident Detection Pilot Demonstration Houston, Texas (Stevens et al., 2016): To improve incident management while leveraging existing ITS resources, Texas DOT (TxDOT) was interested in evaluating technologies that might enable faster detection of incidents and increase the number of incidents being detected. TxDOT engaged with the video analytics vendor TrafficVision on a demonstration of their video analytics technology. The evaluation integrated video analytics software into a subset of existing CCTV cameras with pan, tilt and zoom (PTZ) function without adjusting the camera settings to evaluate system viability with the existing CCTV monitored at Houston TranStar. *Results for incident detection time with* TrafficVision when compared to incident detection time with currently used detection tools showed that average detection time for 34 incidents was approximately seven minutes less and for 32 incidents was 14 minutes more than that noted in Regional Incident Management System (RIMS). Results for detecting additional incidents using video analytics software showed potential. During the 12-week evaluation period, TrafficVision detected an additional 462 stopped vehicle events that were not part of RIMS data. This analysis suggests that video analytics is a viable incident detection tool that has the potential to increase the number of incidents detected (especially stalled vehicles) even when used with PTZ cameras.
- Next Generation Traffic Data and Incident Detection from Video (Preisen and Deeter, 2014): This project evaluated the accuracy of incident detection capabilities from two commercially available video analytics systems. The evaluation compared detection alerts generated by video analytics systems to video clips and still images, compared detection alerts to agency-reported incidents, and gathered observations from TMC operators. The best performance result for stopped vehicle/debris in road was 72% alerts validated, 23% alerts not validated (false alarms), and 5% alerts unable to determine. When removing repetitive alerts caused from objects in the camera's field of view, false alerts dropped dramatically for stopped vehicle/debris in the road. The best performance result for detecting slow traffic/congestion was approximately 30% incidents validated, with the remainder being false alarms or not able to determine. TMC operators indicated that system-generated email alerts with attached photos of the incident are timely and useful. Sometimes video analytics systems caught incidents that hadn't yet been seen by operators; other times operators already knew about the incident.

3.2 Detection-Equipped Traffic Cameras

Detection-equipped traffic cameras have functionality to detect traffic incidents and create real-time alerts. Detection-equipped cameras can serve multiple purposes for monitoring, incident detection, and other uses. Table 3 provides an overview of commercially available detection-equipped traffic cameras that perform automated incident detection.

Product	Overview
Bosch	ITS Solutions Website: <u>www.boschsecurity.com/us/en/industries/intelligent-</u> transportation-systems-its/
	Automatic incident detection for bridges and tunnels (brochure): https://media.boschsecurity.com/fs/media/pb/images/industries_2/transportation/ app-note_automatic_incident_detection.pdf
	 Detection Capabilities: Traffic congestion that can delay or prevent emergency response vehicles from access Stopped or disabled vehicles Wrong way driver Debris, objects, or animals in the road Fire or smoke in hard to see areas Bicyclists and pedestrians in low light and low visibility conditions
ELID	Icicle formations hanging from tunnels Website: https://www.flir.com/traffic/avoid incidents_traffic iams on roads
	highways-and-tunnels/ FLIR's detection solutions can detect: • Stopped vehicles or disable vehicles • Long queues
	 Slow-moving vehicles (Underspeed but also overspeed (cars moving over a designated maximum)) Fallen objects/debris Pedestrians Wrong Way Driver Fire Animals

Table 3: Detection-equipped Traffic Cameras

3.2.1 Selected Literature for Detection-Equipped Traffic Cameras

Following is selected literature related to incident detection for detection-equipped traffic cameras as located through an online literature search.

 <u>Testing and Evaluation of Thermal Camera-based and Video-analytic Systems on Wrong-Way</u> <u>Driving, Stopped Vehicles, and Pedestrians</u> (Lin et al., 2019): This project successfully evaluated the performance of a thermal camera-based detection system and a video-analytic detection system provided by two vendors. The thermal camera-based detection system was deployed at two locations on the Sunshine Skyway Bridge to identify WWD, stopped vehicles, and pedestrian events, and the video-analytic system was deployed at six locations on the Howard Frankland Bridge to detect freeway WWD events. Two performance measures were defined to evaluate the tested systems—detection system accuracy and percentage of false calls. Data review and analysis results revealed that (1) the thermal-based detection system was able to produce a detection system accuracy of 100% for pedestrian detection, 94.3% for stopped vehicle detection, and 100% for WWD detection; (2) the video-analytic system was able to produce a detection system accuracy of 84.6% for WWD detection; (3) correct pedestrian detections were triggered by roadway workers or onsite police officers for work; (4) correct detection of stopped vehicle events was triggered primarily by vehicles (cars, motorcycles, utility vehicles, etc.) stopped on shoulders and on-duty vehicles (utility vehicles, police vehicles, etc.) stopped in lanes to perform work; one potential suicide attempt was detected associated with a stopped vehicle/pedestrian on the Sunshine Skyway Bridge; (5) no actual WWD events were detected at any designated test location; all correctly-detected WWD events were trigged by vehicles in roadway events such as roadwork utility vehicles backing upon shoulders; and (6) the videoanalytic detection system configuration may be subject to change due to external environment conditions such as camera vibrations; it is recommended to define appropriate reference points for detection region of interest (ROI) configuration and calibration during the system setup process and to set up alerts when pre-defined ROI is shifted.

3.3 Non-Video Based Products

Some commercially available products provide incident capabilities that are not based on video feeds or camera-based technologies. These products vary widely in terms of their approaches and technologies. Table 4 provides an overview of commercially products that do not use video or camera-based analytics to perform automated incident detection.

Product	Overview
Waycare	Website: https://waycaretech.com/solutions/
(Acquired by Rekor in January 2022)	Waycare aggregates, synthesizes, and analyzes data from existing transportation infrastructure, in-vehicle data, and other crowd sourced information to provide a shared, cloud-based platform unlocking key real-time and predictive operational insights about roads. Waycare partners with a wide range of data providers to collect information from connected vehicles, navigation apps, and public weather and event services. <i>Waycare processes this data to identify and predict incidents and congestion, storing these insights in a Data Warehouse.</i>
	Waycare <i>Smart Connect</i> is designed with Traffic Management Operators' needs in mind. An intuitive layered map interface provides users with a real-time outlook of road conditions: <i>congestion, risk zones, stalled vehicles, debris, traffic stops, major events, etc.</i> Users can input incident activity and memo descriptions that are instantly accessible to other agencies such as First Responders, Maintenance, and more.
OptaSense	Website: https://optasense.com/transportation/road-monitoring/
	The OptaSense Traffic Monitoring Solution <i>converts existing fiber-optic cable into an array of intelligent sensors</i> which deliver timely and accurate traffic monitoring and incident detection information from the entire monitored route.

Table 4: Non-Video Based Products

	 The OptaSense Traffic Monitoring Solution delivers the following real-time traffic monitoring applications: Average Traffic Speed: Measured every 50-meter section and updated every second. <i>Congestion Detection:</i> Automatically generated notifications for moderate and severe incidents of congestion. <i>Queue Detection:</i> Automatically generated notifications for queuing traffic. Dynamic tracking of queue location and length. Journey Times: Estimated journey times between set locations. Traffic Count and Flow Rate: Vehicle counts and flow volume estimates.
NavTech Radar	Website: https://navtechradar.com/explore/automatic-incident-detection/
(ClearWay)	Designed for smart cities, highways, tunnels, open roads and bridges, each ClearWay's automatic incident detection (AID) radar covers wide areas up to 1,000 m.
	Incident Types: • Stopped vehicle • Slow or fast vehicle detection • Vehicles going the wrong way • Pedestrians or animal detection • Debris detection
	 Detection Conditions: Fog, snow, and rain Fire, smoke, and hot gasses Water and spray All levels of light, from darkness to sun glare
Bluecity / Velodyne Lidar	 Bluecity website: <u>https://bluecity.ai/</u> Bluecity combines artificial intelligence (AI) and lidar to better understand and adjust smart city mobility. Bluecity uses AI-based traffic data insights to improve mobility and the progression of traffic so congestion is reduced. Lidar technology provides data-based decision-making, so better management of urban growth and travel times during major construction becomes a reality. Bluecity's technology provides easy-to-install and reliable traffic data with enhanced metrics, <i>such as real-time incident detection, warning messages</i>, real-time accident prediction, hotspot identification and more. Velodyne/Bluecity: <u>https://velodynelidar.com/automated-with-velodyne/blue-city-technology/</u>

3.4 Agency Tools and Platforms Using External Data

Agencies are increasingly using data from external sources to improve incident detection capabilities. For example, the use of crowdsourced data from third-party navigation mobile applications (e.g., incident alerts from Waze) and third-party probe data providers (e.g., incident feeds) can supplement incident information received through traditional methods such as 911 calls or by viewing traffic cameras. Agencies may integrate this data into existing TMC systems such as ATMS or build new platforms to view and sort

the data. Agencies using this type of data for incident detection report benefits such as faster incident notifications, decreased incident response times, and improved situational awareness.

Table 5 provides an overview of agency tools and platforms that use external data (e.g., third-party probe data and incident feeds, crowdsourced data) to convey incident detections.



Table 5: Agency Tools and Platforms Using External Data

Tool/Platform	Overview
	Source: Transportation Systems Management and Operations Performance Report
	<u>2018Q2 Edition</u> (PennDOT, 2018):
	 A year-long pilot used crowdsourced information (INRIX, Waze) to assist with
	incident identification, validation, and the response process.
	 Together, TMCs, Waze, and INRIX had situational awareness on 96% of all
	reportable crashes.
	 INRIX and waze combined detect incidents first on approximately 84% of all areaches and high congestion areaches
	- Although Waze and INPLY data are not the only sources for incident
	identification and verification, they can provide valuable information to help
	TMCs identify incidents and improve situational awareness.
Colorado DOT	Source: National Operations Center of Excellence (NOCoE) webinar: Adventures in
	Crowdsourcing: Business Case for Crowdsourced Data (October 22, 2020)
Operations	Colorado DOT "Traffic Operations Dashboard" (partnered with ESRI to develop)
, Dashboard	 Dashboard uses HERE Live Traffic Data and Waze Traffic Alerts.
	 Use of crowdsourced data has resulted in a significant decrease in incident
	response times, improved situational awareness for operations and
	maintenance staff, and more accurate and timely traveler information.
	Traffic Operations Dashboard
	<figure></figure>
	Figure 3: Screenshot of Colorado DOT Traffic Operations Dashboard
Agencies	Source: NOCoE webinar <u>Adventures in Crowdsourcing: Business Case for</u>
Integrating	<u>crowasourced Data</u> (October 22, 2020)
Data into TMC	 Walle DUT: Using Waze data in the TMC for operations
Operations	Lake County Illinois:
operations	 Waze data integrated into ATMS
	Source: NOCoE webinar Adventures in Crowdsourcing: Incident Management Tools
	(October 10, 2019)
	Pennsylvania Turnpike:
	 Integrates Waze data into TMC operations and systems (e.g., Early Warning
	Detection Tool, Waze Operational Dashboard)

 Incident Management Dashboard: Waze alerts received 3 to 4 minutes before calls Source: <u>Adopting and incorporating crowdsourced traffic data in advanced</u> <u>transportation management systems</u> (Amin-Naseri, 2018) Iowa DOT: This research quantified the potential additional coverage Waze can provide to existing sources of the Advanced Traffic Management System (ATMS). One year of Waze data was compared with the recorded incidents in the
 Source: <u>Adopting and incorporating crowdsourced traffic data in advanced</u> <u>transportation management systems</u> (Amin-Naseri, 2018) Iowa DOT: This research quantified the potential additional coverage Waze can provide to existing sources of the Advanced Traffic Management System (ATMS). One year of Waze data was compared with the recorded incidents in the
Iowa's ATMS in the same timeframe. Overall, the findings indicated that the crowdsourced data stream from Waze is an invaluable source of information for traffic monitoring with broad coverage (covering 43.2% of ATMS crash and congestion reports), timely reporting (on average 9.8 minutes earlier than a probe-based alternative), and reasonable geographic accuracy. Waze reports currently make significant contributions to incident detection and were found to have potential for further complementing the

Incident Feeds from Third-Party Traffic Data Providers 3.5

Third-party probe traffic data providers may offer incident information via data feeds such as Application Programming Interfaces (APIs), for possible integration into TMC systems, web applications, or mobile applications. These services and data feeds likely require software development to integrate into existing agency systems and platforms.

Table 6 provides an overview of third-party traffic data services that offer incident feeds.

Table 6: Incident Feeds from Third-Party Traffic Data Providers		
Product	Overview	
TomTom	Website: https://developer.tomtom.com/traffic-api/traffic-api-	
Traffic	documentation/traffic-incidents	
Incidents API	The Traffic Incidents service is a <i>suite of web services designed for developers t</i>	
	create web and mobile applications around real-time traffic.	
	 These web services can be used via RESTful APIs. 	
	 The Traffic Incidents APIs are based on real-time traffic data from TomTom Traffic™. 	
	TomTom's Traffic Incident RESTful API:	
	• Is updated every minute with very latest traffic incident and delay information.	
	• Returns detailed <i>information about traffic jams and traffic related incidents.</i>	
	Details include: start-location, end-location, road-name, type of delay, length	
	(in time) of the delay, significance, and distance.	
	• The Incident Tile API provides traffic incident and delay information for display	
	on your map view.	

to

Product	Overview			
TomTom	Website: <u>https://developer.tomtom.com/intermediate-traffic-service/intermediate-</u>			
Traffic	traffic-service/tomtom-traffic-incidents-intermediate-service-datex-ii			
Incidents —	The TomTom Traffic Incidents - Intermediate Service – DATEX II is based on DATEX II			
Intermediate	v1.0. DATEX II is a standard for information exchange between traffic control			
Service –	centers, service providers, and application developers.			
DATEX II	 The Service provides the latest real-time information about traffic incidents, their service and imports on translation. Turning traffic incidents include. 			
	their causes and impacts on travelers. Typical traffic incidents include			
	road closures, and any other road-related situation that could potentially			
	cause a delay.			
	 TomTom offers traffic incident data to customers. In the basic configuration, 			
	TomTom provides customers information on traffic congestion and other			
	roadwork related traffic events. Each traffic incident is represented in a DATEX			
	II event, and we add an Alert-C event code with the same meaning.			
INRIX	Website: http://docs.inrix.com/traffic/xdincidents/			
INRIX Incident	The INRIX Incident Service provides information on incidents that can impact			
Service	<i>traffic,</i> including:			
	 Accidents (Incident Type 4) 			
	 Events (Incident Type 2) Constant to the state of the sta			
	 Construction (Incident Type 1) Road Weather (Incident Type 5) 			
	 Congestion alerts (Incident Type 3) 			
	 User reported alerts - various incident types 			
	 Police - User reported alerts (Incident Type 6) 			
	The main usage scenarios are:			
	 Displaying incidents on a map 			
	 Creating routes that avoid incidents 			
	 Creating alerts for upcoming incidents 			
HERE	Website: https://developer.here.com/develop/rest-apis			
Traffic API	Whether providing truck routing for fleets or navigating users through the city with			
(Incidents and	different transport modes, HERE REST APIs provide users with everything needed to			
Incidents 6.2)	put location at the heart of your app: maps, weather information, batch geocoding,			
	comprehensive routing and more. Additional advanced location features include			
	geofencing (entry and exit notifications), custom and private roads, speed limits,			
	<i>Traffic API:</i> Add real-world context to your application by integrating real-time and historical traffic information about accidents, congestion, construction and more.			
	Incidents and Incidents 6.2: These resources are responsible for handling requests			
	for <i>traffic incident information for a geospatial area</i> . The delivery formats are			
	either XML or JSON.			

3.6 Wrong-Way Vehicle Detection Systems

This section provides an overview of systems that detect wrong-way vehicle movements, primarily for site-specific applications (e.g., ramps). These are typically specialized, local deployments at problematic areas and may or may not include alerts to TMC operators. Because the focus of this research is to document systems that provide alerts to TMC operators, the systems noted in this section have this capability. Some are commercially available solutions, while others are agency-specific systems.

Note that some of the individual products documented in previous sections may be capable of detecting wrong-way vehicles (e.g., systems that process video from existing cameras) or may be components of the systems documented in Table 7 (e.g., detection-enabled cameras that are part of a TAPCO solution.)

Table 7 provides an overview of wrong-way vehicle detection systems with alerts to TMC operators.

Product/ System	Overview		
Citilog	Website: https://www.citilog.com/products/citilog-ct-im-analytics		
Wrong-Way Alert System	Wrong-way detection is a key function of the Citilog CT-IM analytics suite. This suite can operate on a server-base using existing cameras or on edge-based inside a camera.		
	The Edge-based solution is more common for wrong-way detection since time is of the essence.		
	Using open protocols (https, xml) the CT-IM analytics onboard the camera can easily interface with a Dynamic/Variable message sign positioned downstream to alert wrong-way drivers.		
	The wrong-way alerts can be viewed and archived on CT-Center-Client, a central GUI that enables reviewing video recordings of incidents.		
TAPCO Wrong-Way	Website: https://www.tapconet.com/product/wrong-way-alert-system#product-selection		
Alert System	Uniquely engineered to fit any ramp configuration, TAPCO Wrong-Way Alert Systems detect wrong-way drivers, immediately activate LED-enhanced flashing alerts and send real-time wrong-way event notifications.		
	 Activation options include thermal detection, radar, inductive loop detectors, detection-enabled cameras. 		
	 BlinkLink[®] cloud-based software application collects real-time data and sends out voice, email and Short Message Service (SMS) alert notifications to pre- 		
	determined recipients.		
	 Access on any web-enabled device Easily program and view the status of eveny system 		
	 Easily program and view the status of every system Analyze system activation trends and gain insight to problem areas 		
	 Keep your whole team informed through activation alert notifications 		
	 Generate custom activation reports 		

Table 7: Wrong-Way Vehicle Detection Systems

Product/ System	Overview			
All Traffic Solutions (ATS)	Website: <u>https://www.alltrafficsolutions.com/solutions/wrong-way-solutions/</u> Brochure: <u>https://www.alltrafficsolutions.com/wp-</u> <u>content/uploads/2019/10/WrongWay-SpecSheet-100719.pdf</u>			
Wrong Way Solution™	 ATS Wrong Way Solution[™] uses Lidar or radar to sense wrong-way drivers. Multi-channel Notification System alerts the driver with flashing messages and beacons, telling them to stop and turn around, <i>notifies designated authorities immediately via email or text message (both with links to video when available)</i>, and optionally can alert other drivers of the wrong way vehicle via dynamic messages on variable message signs, via 511 systems, TMC and/or social apps. Notifications sent using ATS TraffiCloud cloud-based software, <i>provides real-time wrong way alerts with accompanying video via email or SMS message to predetermined contacts</i>. Alerts can be sent to as many recipients as desired. Secure "Anywhere" Access: Fully hosted web-based remote management service is always available Uses Lidar at multiple points to sense and verify wrong-way vehicles Access system from anywhere from any Internet-connected device <i>Accessible via API to inform other systems</i> Password-protected with three levels of user access 			
MH Corbin	Website: https://mhcorbin.com/Solutions/Wrong-Way-Detection			
Wrong-Way Detection Solution	 Every customized solution from MH Corbin can confirm the overall presence of a wrong-way driver—from the moment of infraction to a potential full merge onto a highway. The solutions can leverage a single camera or a combination of inputs to track complete driver behavior, reducing false positives. The <u>Connect:ITS</u> Roadside Controller operates primarily as an edge computing device, but gathered data can also be sent to and stored in the Cloud. Destinations: Highway Advisory Radio, Dynamic Message Signs, Variable Speed Limit Signs, <i>Email/Text Alerts</i>, and In-vehicle alerts via Dedicated Short Range Communication (DSRC). 			
Trafficalm	Website: <u>https://trafficalm.com/wwa/</u>			
Warning + Notification	 Retrofit install to existing signs, with four Basic Components: Flashing LED Sign Rings, Controller, Collaborators, Radar Detectors If notification is desired, the existing controller can be reconfigured to act as a Collaborator, making this a zero-waste upgrade. <i>4g Cell technology integrates for easy access to rapid notifications for law enforcement or traffic safety personnel via our secure cloud interface or email.</i> Notifications deliver in less than 15 seconds of the event. 			
Carmanah	Website: <u>https://carmanah.com/product/ww400-wrong-way-vehicle-detection-</u> warning-and-alert-system/			
WW400 Wrong Way	• The W/W400 is an advanced system that detects wrong-way drivers on highway			
Vehicle	off-ramps, warns them of their error with high-intensity flashing lights, and			
Detection,	alerts local traffic management centers (TMC) of the event.Includes two types of units: detector unit and warning sign units.			

Product/ System	Overview
Warning and Alert System	• The radar unit detects the incoming vehicle and simultaneously triggers the LED warning lights and activates the cameras and video analytics. The system then uses advanced image-processing algorithms to process the video. When the cameras confirm the wrong-way event, the WW400 automatically sends an alert notification and event package containing a configurable sequence of images, video and other data to the local TMC.
Image Sensing Solutions (ISS)	 Website: <u>https://www.imagesensing.com/solutions/wrong-way.html</u> The Wrong Way Alerting solution is an all-in-one system that provides reliable
Wrong Way Alerting Solution	 wrong way detection on ramps. This module is a side-fire sensor that can detect vehicles traveling the wrong way on ramps. The wrong way module detects wrong way vehicles and <i>sends an automated message alert with an image snapshot via E-mail or short message service (SMS).</i> The system also provides a 30 second video of the event, allowing traffic operators to visually confirm the wrong way vehicle and provide emergency officials the details of the vehicle
Southwest	Website: <u>https://www.swri.org/technology-today/righting-wrong-way-driving-</u>
Research Institute (SwRI) Wrong-Way Driving Solutions	 One solution pairs thermal cameras with perception algorithms SwRI developed for driverless vehicles and the manufacturing industry. The perception algorithms process visual inputs from a video camera, classifying patterns to isolate a wrong-way driver from other objects and backgrounds in the winnel field.
	 The second solution uses connected-vehicle technology that enables communication between vehicles, infrastructure and transportation agencies to warn the wrong-way driver as well as other motorists in the vicinity. The system also identifies and helps track wrong-way motorists.
Cameleon/ FLIR Wrong-	Website: <u>https://www.flir.com/browse/public-safety/traffic-</u> sensors/?application=1073742569
Way Driving Solutions + Notification	• FLIR TrafiBot HD combines field-proven video detection algorithms with advanced camera optics and powerful processing technology in a single box camera. TrafiBot HD (with 1920 × 1080 resolution) provides superior image quality, embedded AID analytics, as well as multi-stream encoding. TrafiBot HD's advanced processing unit <i>generates traffic data and incident detection information</i> and thus supports traffic operators with alerts on stopped vehicles, <i>wrong-way drivers</i> , pedestrians, lost cargo, smoke, and traffic flow data.
	 FLIR TrafiSense2 Dual combines best-in-class thermal and visual imaging technology with advanced video analytics to provide vehicle and bicycle presence detection at signalized intersections, day and night. Thermal imaging lets traffic operators see in total darkness and inclement weather. The daylight camera offers additional visual verification for such incidents as wrong-way drivers and animal crossings. In addition, FLIR's analytics capture accurate traffic data, making FLIR TrafiSense2 Dual ideal for real-time traffic management in urban environments.

Product/ System	Overview		
	<u>FLIR Cameleon ITS</u> is a central software platform for transportation monitoring and management that allows for the control of ITS-specific devices, including cameras, DMS signs, detector stations, gates, signal heads and incident detection.		
TrafficVision	Website: http://www.trafficvision.com/		
	TrafficVision offers wrong way detection using both new and existing categories and can apply this feature across a series of cameras. Currently Florida DOT is testing TrafficVision Wrong Way Detection with existing cameras. The system activates signs and flashing lights as well as sends alerts including both snapshots and video of the Wrong Way Driver to their ATMS -all in real-time. In addition to detecting a Wrong Way Driver, the TrafficVision software also continuously collects data providing the agency with more than just a wrong way detector. Also, Wrong Way Detection can be added to any camera within an agency's existing network of cameras within minutes giving an agency the flexibility of applying any of the TrafficVision features. Traffic Vision's wrong Way detection solution can operate as a stand-alone turn-key solution or as a feature turned "on" within an agency's network of cameras.		
Examples of	Countermeasures for Wrong-Way Driving on Freeways (Athey Creek Consultants,		
Agency	2016):		
beployments	 10 agencies deployed wrong-way detection with dierts to TMCS: Arizona DOT, Central Florida Expressway Authority, Florida DOT, Iowa DOT, Missouri DOT, Ohio DOT, Rhode Island DOT, Harris County Toll Road Authority (Texas), Texas DOT, and Wisconsin DOT. Primarily at freeway ramps. Mostly using radar detection, often with cameras for verification. Some mainline detection using radar. Nearly all deployments include on-site warnings to alert drivers, plus notifications to TMCs and/or other entities. Equipment vendors or solution integrators are not documented. Rural Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) Toolkit: Wrong Way Driver Detection 		
	& Warning System (n.d.) <u>https://ruralsafetycenter.org/wp-</u> <u>content/uploads/2018/03/CC5.pdf</u>		
	 Examples of wrong-way detection systems implementation: New York State Thruway Authority, Texas DOT Lonestar software, Texas DOT San Antonio, Florida DOT SunGuide software, Arizona DOT, Rhode Island DOT. 		
	Florida DOT Wrong-Way Driving (WWD) Initiative (n.d.) https://www.fdot.gov/traffic/its/projects-deploy/wrong-way-driving		
	 FDOT has also been exploring various WWD countermeasure systems for warning wrong-way drivers, verification of the wrong-way vehicles and sending alerts to Regional Transportation Management Center (RTMC)/ Traffic Management Center (TMC) upon detection of wrong-way vehicles. 		
	Rhode Island DOT Safety and Traffic Engineering - Wrong Way Crash Avoidance		
	 (n.a.) <u>http://www.dot.ri.gov/safety/wrong_way_safety.php</u> Detection systems sense if a driver has entered a highway off-ramp and activate a series of flashing signs. 		

Product/ System	Overview
	 It will also notify the Rhode Island State Police that someone is driving the wrong way on the road, take a picture of the vehicle, and display a message on overhead signs to warn drivers heading in the opposite direction.
	 Southern Nevada pilot program aims to deter wrong-way drivers (December 2019) https://www.reviewjournal.com/traffic/southern-nevada-pilot-program-aims-to-deter-wrong-way-drivers-1906043/ — The system will be tied into the Southern Nevada traffic command center so that first responders can be dispatched immediately.
	CDOT testing wrong-way detection technology in reversible express lanes (November 2019) <u>https://www.9news.com/article/traffic/wrong-way-vehicle-detection-system-tested-denver/73-19b29f00-2e61-41f4-868f-1abc80bfd28f</u>
	 The technology alerts drivers when they are traveling the wrong way by using sensors which detect thermal energy from an approaching vehicle. An electronic 'Wrong Way' sign is activated if wrong-way movement is identified by the system.
	North Texas Explores New Wrong-Way Driver Detection, Alert System (October 2019) <u>https://www.nbcdfw.com/news/local/north-texas-considers-new-wrong-way-driver-detection-alert-system/2078069/</u>
	 "The technology that's used to connect vehicles detects the wrong way driver, sends a message to a traffic management center, alerts the wrong way driver and alerts right-way drivers using in vehicle messages," Texas Transportation Institute (TTI) Research Engineer Melisa Finley explained.
	Ohio DOT Installing Wrong-Way Driver Detection System (July 2019) https://aashtojournal.org/2019/07/26/ohio-dot-installing-wrong-way-driver- detection-system/
	 When the system is activated, light-emitting diode or LED lights around the edge of several "wrong way" and "do not enter" signs begin blinking, while an alert is sent to the Ohio DOT's Traffic Management Center in Columbus.
	 This Week at NCDOT: Wrong-Way Vehicle Detection System (January 2019) https://www.ncdot.gov/news/press-releases/Pages/2019/2019-01-18-this-week- ncdot.aspx With this technology, State Traffic Operations Center staff and State Highway Patrol are notified more quickly of the vehicle's location.
	Wisconsin DOT: Wrong-way driver detection devices being added to roadways in Milwaukee area (December 2016) https://www.fox6now.com/news/wrong-way-driver-detection-devices-being-added- to-roadways-in-milwaukee-area
	 The system triggers an alert to the Statewide Traffic Operations Center, to identify or locate the vehicle traveling the wrong way and contact the Milwaukee County Sheriff's Office.

3.6.1 Selected Literature for Wrong-way Vehicle Detection Systems

Following is selected literature related to wrong-way vehicle detection systems video as located through an online literature search.

- Interstate 17 Wrong-Way Vehicle Detection Pilot Program (Arizona DOT, 2020): The ADOT Interstate 17 Wrong-Way Vehicle Detection Pilot System became operational in January 2018. The pilot system, which covers a 15-mile stretch of I-17 between I-10 and State Loop 101, is the first in the nation to track wrong-way vehicles in real time. The system uses thermal cameras for primary detection of wrong-way vehicles along exit ramps and at other potential points of entry onto the freeway's mainline lanes. Video clips generated by the cameras allow ADOT dispatchers and Arizona Department of Public Safety troopers stationed in ADOT's Traffic Operations Center (TOC) in Phoenix to visually verify and track wrong-way vehicles. The ability to dispatch law enforcement quickly and effectively has been the most significant benefit of the wrong-way detection pilot program. In 2018, the detection system resulted in more than a threefold increase in wrong-way vehicle detections in the pilot area compared with traditional means (911 calls) alone. Of the detected incursions that were also reported to 911, the detection system reported the incursion much faster—an average of 1 minute, 38 seconds before a 911 call was received.
- <u>Wrong Way Driver Mitigation</u> (Slonaker, 2020) Caltrans
 - Deployments:
 - Sacramento: 6 Ramps: Signage with TAPCO detection and alerting systems
 - San Diego: 4 Ramps: Signage with TAPCO detection and alerting systems; 2 Ramps: Signage with TraffiCalm detection and alerting systems
 - The TAPCO Systems activated their flashing signs, thus warning wrong-way drivers locally, for 64.3% of the video based site monitoring (VBSM)-detected WWD events. However, the TAPCO Systems only sent alerts to the TMC for 30% of the VBSM-detected WWD events.
 - The TraffiCalm Systems activated its flashing sign, thus warning wrong-way drivers locally, for 50% of the VBSM-detected WWD events. However, the TraffiCalm Systems sent alerts to the TMC for 100% of the VBSM-detected WWD events.
- Testing and Evaluation of Thermal Camera-based and Video-analytic Systems on Wrong-Way Driving, Stopped Vehicles, and Pedestrians (Lin et al., 2019): This project successfully evaluated the performance of a thermal camera-based detection system and a video-analytic detection system provided by two vendors. The thermal camera-based detection system was deployed at two locations on the Sunshine Skyway Bridge to identify WWD, stopped vehicles, and pedestrian events, and the video-analytic system was deployed at six locations on the Howard Frankland Bridge to detect freeway WWD events. Two performance measures were defined to evaluate the tested systems—detection system accuracy and percentage of false calls. Data review and analysis results revealed that (1) the thermal-based detection, 94.3% for stopped vehicle detection, and 100% for WWD detection; (2) the video-analytic system was able to produce a detection system accuracy of 84.6% for WWD detection; (3) correct pedestrian detections were triggered by roadway workers or onsite police officers for work; (4) correct detection of stopped

vehicle events was triggered primarily by vehicles (cars, motorcycles, utility vehicles, etc.) stopped on shoulders and on-duty vehicles (utility vehicles, police vehicles, etc.) stopped in lanes to perform work; one potential suicide attempt was detected associated with a stopped vehicle/pedestrian on the Sunshine Skyway Bridge; (5) no actual WWD events were detected at any designated test location; all correctly-detected WWD events were trigged by vehicles in roadway events such as roadwork utility vehicles and on-duty police vehicles driving in opposite direction of traffic in blocked lanes, and vehicles backing upon shoulders; and (6) the video-analytic detection system configuration may be subject to change due to external environment conditions such as camera vibrations; it is recommended to define appropriate reference points for detection region of interest (ROI) configuration and calibration during the system setup process and to set up alerts when pre-defined ROI is shifted.

- Testing and Evaluation of Freeway Wrong-way Driving Detection Systems (Lin et al., 2018): Sponsored by Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), this project successfully evaluated video-analytic freeway WWD detection systems currently on the market from three vendors, regarding their capabilities for real-time WWD vehicle detection and Traffic Management Center (TMC) notification. Real-time WWD incident detection and data collection were conducted through fixed camera videos streams at these locations. A series of performance measures was defined to evaluate the performance of the WWD detection systems from three vendors, including (1) WWD detection system accuracy; (2) percentage of false calls; (3) actual WWD detection accuracy; and (4) percentage of missed calls. In addition, the capabilities of candidate systems on TMC notification were tested by collecting email notification data. The system from Vendor 1 showed the best performance at an overall 95% detection system accuracy and 94% actual detection accuracy, followed by the systems from Vendor 2 and Vendor 3. System performance from the three vendors on WWD detection varied significantly, indicating that performance of real-time video-analytic freeway WWD detection systems highly depends on the individual vendor's system. Analysis of TMC notification data revealed that all three candidate systems were able to send an email notification if a WWD was detected.
- <u>Wrong-Way Driving (WWD) Detection Proof of Concept at I-70/Ward Road</u> (Marlina, 2020): Colorado DOT evaluated four (4) commercially available wrong-way detection and alert products/solutions: Image Sensing Solutions (ISS), Bosch, TAPCO, TraffiCalm. The objectives were to test different wrong-way detection system capabilities, evaluate the accuracy of the different detections, and provide insights of the operational feasibility of wrong-way detections. Measures of effectiveness included accurate calls, missed calls, false calls, latency, and maintenance efforts. All WWD detection systems had difficulties in detecting WW vehicles traveling fast (35 mph or more), except TAPCO incoming. There is a risk a small car will go unnoticed (covered) by heavy vehicle, if the detection system is only on one side of the roadway. Duplicate notifications create confusion to the operators who reviews the true WW event. Most systems did not detect the second vehicle when two vehicles are going back-to-back in the WW direction. All communication were handled by the vendor using a cellular network; the system would work better (more stable) when it connects to fiber.

4.0 TMC Operators Common User Needs for Automated Incident Detection

This section identifies common user needs for automated incident detection systems from the perspective of TMC operators. These user needs were developed with input from TMC operators and managers from ENTERPRISE agencies, as discussed during an interactive webinar in January 2021 and from input received via email following the webinar.

This documentation of common user needs was completed to:

- Provide guidance for the demonstrations of AID products completed as part of this project and documented in Section 5.0; and
- Establish a framework for user needs that could translate to requirements as agencies procure automated incident detection systems. The list of user needs in this section can be customized by selecting specific needs appropriate for each AID application or use case.

The 42 TMC operator user needs for automated incident detection systems are presented in the following categories:

- Detection Capabilities (Needs 1-12)
- Coverage and Environment (Needs 13-17)
- Alerts, Displays and Configuration (Needs 18-33)
- Integration with Agency Systems and Practices (Needs 34-42)

Tables 8-11 document challenges and issues, with corresponding TMC operator user needs for each of the categories listed above for AID systems.

Challenge / Issue	TMC Operator User Need
TMC operators cannot manually cycle through all camera feeds to monitor for crashes or collisions. 911 calls or other reports may not identify every incident or may not be reported a timely manner.	Need #1: TMC operators need to receive real-time alerts when a crash has occurred.
	<i>Need #2:</i> TMC operators need to receive real-time alerts of stopped vehicles that are fully or partially blocking one or more lanes of traffic.
Obstructions blocking roadway lanes could disrupt traffic flows or lead to crashes. Operators require a system to flag 'events' for them to examine.	<i>Need #3:</i> TMC operators need to receive real-time alerts of extremely slow vehicles that are fully or partially one or more lanes of traffic.
	<i>Need #4:</i> TMC operators need to receive real-time alerts of debris on the road surface that is fully or partially blocking one or more lanes of traffic.

Table 8: Detection Capabilities Challenges/Issues and Corresponding TMC Operator User Need(s)

Challenge / Issue	TMC Operator User Need
Obstructions blocking roadway shoulders are disruptive to vehicles that use the	Need #5: TMC operators need to receive alerts of stopped vehicles on the roadway shoulder.
shoulder for bus-only transit operations, emergency response, or as a general purpose lane during temporary shoulder operations (i.e., hard shoulder running.) In addition, vehicles stopped in the shoulder for long periods of time are sometimes struck by oncoming vehicles.	<i>Need #6:</i> TMC operators need to receive real-time alerts of debris on the roadway shoulder.
Especially in urban, higher-speed roadway settings, unexpected objects or entities on the roadway (including the shoulder) can	<i>Need #7:</i> TMC operators need to receive real-time alerts of unexpected entities (e.g., pedestrians, animals, other) in traffic lanes.
be distracting to drivers or can result in collisions.	<i>Need #8:</i> TMC operators need to receive real-time alerts of unexpected entities (e.g., pedestrians, animals, other) on the roadway shoulder.
Traffic congestion, including slow or stopped traffic, causes delays for travelers and can create unsafe conditions for oncoming traffic. TMC operators cannot manually monitor all congestion and will benefit from early indication that queues are forming.	<i>Need #9:</i> TMC operators need to receive real-time alerts of traffic congestion or slow/stopped traffic conditions.
Traffic queues that form quickly can surprise oncoming drivers. TMC operators can benefit from knowing queue limits and lengths, to initiate messages about queues, expected delays, or alternate routes.	Need #10: TMC operators need to understand and monitor vehicle queues, including the locations of start/head and end/tail of vehicle queues.
Vehicles that are moving at excessive	Need #11: TMC operators need to receive real-time alerts of extreme vehicle speeds.
speeds or traveling the wrong way can result in crashes.	<i>Need #12</i> : TMC operators need to receive real-time alerts of vehicles traveling the wrong direction (i.e., wrong-way vehicles).

Table 9:	Coverage and Envir	onment Challenaes/Is	sues and Corresponding	TMC Operator	User Need(s)
		······································			

Challenge / Issue	TMC Operator User Need
The coverage area required for automated incident detection varies significantly depending on the application.	 Need #13: TMC operators may need complete coverage of a roadway network (e.g., all freeways in a metro area or statewide, traffic lanes and shoulders) for automated incident detection. NOTE: Some applications may require only some road sections to be monitored.

Challenge / Issue	TMC Operator User Need
	Need #14: TMC operators need automated incident detection to be functional in all lighting conditions, including daylight, low light, and dark conditions.
Incidents occur at all times of the day and night, and during all weather, visibility,	<i>Need #15:</i> TMC operators need automated incident detection to be functional in all weather conditions.
and traffic conditions, including weather events (rain, snow, fog) and other events (e.g., fire, smoke).	<i>Need #16:</i> TMC operators need automated incident detection to be functional in low visibility conditions not caused by weather events (e.g., smoke).
	Need #17: TMC operators need automated incident detection to be functional in all traffic conditions from free-flowing to extreme congestion.

Table 10: Alerts, Displays and Configuration Chai	lenges/issues and Corresponding TMC Operator User Need(s)
Challenge / Issue	TMC Operator User Need
TMC operators manage several tasks simultaneously and will be bothered by false alerts that take their attention away from other tasks.	Need #18: TMC operators need to receive minimal occurrences of false alerts (e.g., alerts that are not valid incidents) from automated incident detection.

Table 10: Alerts	, Displays and	Configuration	Challenges/Issues	and Corresponding	TMC Operator User N	veed(s)
------------------	----------------	---------------	-------------------	-------------------	---------------------	---------

simultaneously and will be bothered by false alerts that take their attention away from other tasks.	occurrences of false alerts (e.g., alerts that are not valid incidents) from automated incident detection.
TMC operations staff work closely with one another and often with law enforcement and other partners to coordinate incident response activities.	Need #19: TMC operators need to be able to configure how (e.g., user interface displays, email, text message) and to whom notifications from automated incident detection are delivered.
TMC operators receive notifications of incidents from many different sources and make decisions about validity and potential impact to traffic and safety.	<i>Need #20:</i> TMC operators need the option to validate or dismiss incidents, as alerts are received and before responding to them.
	Needs #21: TMC operators need the ability to configure incident alerts and displays (e.g., identify which alerts to receive, thresholds for providing alerts, detection areas, and other parameters) uniquely for each individual system user.
There can be a tradeoff in terms of TMC operators' preferences for incident detection and alerts, to be effective in responding to those events that need	Need #22: TMC operators need the ability to turn on and off alerts for each incident type (e.g., stopped vehicle, debris, slow traffic/congestion.)
responding to those events that need response without being overwhelmed by lower priority events. For example, tolerance for frequency of false alerts versus faster times to detect and notify.	Need #23: TMC operators need the ability to turn on and off alerts for incident types by roadway geometry and location (e.g., for incidents occurring on the shoulder to define traffic queues that are typical versus atypical).
	Need #24: TMC operators need the ability to configure the duration from incident detection to incident alert (e.g., real-time alert, alerts that are sent after a stopped vehicle on the shoulder has been in the same place for five minutes).

Challenge / Issue	TMC Operator User Need
	<i>Need #25:</i> TMC operators need the ability to configure speed thresholds for detecting congestion or slow traffic conditions.
	<i>Need #26:</i> TMC operators need the ability to configure thresholds for identifying start/head and end/tail of traffic queues.
	Need #27: TMC operators need the ability to configure incident alerts (e.g., on/off, speed thresholds) in real-time and by pre-determined parameters such as day of the week, time of day, speed thresholds, or other pre-determined times or thresholds.
During peak traffic periods or significant events (e.g., significant weather events, emergencies) the volume of incidents is so high that the usual TMC process for evaluating and triaging incidents is modified or abandoned. Operator responses are limited to only the highest priority incidents (e.g., full closures, fatal or serious injury crashes) and lower- priority incidents may not be addressed during the peak of these events.	<i>Need #28:</i> TMC operators need a mechanism to prioritize alerts and allow real time filtering, to allow an alternate simplified workflow for responding to incidents.
TMC operators are tasked with understanding how traffic conditions are changing over time in order to adjust	<i>Need #29:</i> TMC operators need real-time information about incident timelines, such as timestamps, verified incident information, and start/head and end/tail of traffic queues.
response actions as needed.	<i>Need #30:</i> TMC operators need the ability to re-classify incident events to change their priority level over time.
Due to large volumes of incidents during peak periods, TMC operators cannot manually perform all assessment and response tasks simultaneously.	Need #31: TMC operators need decision support features that assist them in managing multiple incidents (e.g., ability to display a clustering of multiple detections as part of one overall incident, prioritize the display of incidents, assign a confidence factor to incidents detected, integrate incident detection with camera control to automatically zoom to incidents.)
Regardless of how well automated incident detection products perform, if the information is not delivered in a timely manner and to those who need it, the effectiveness decreases substantially.	 Need #32: TMC operators need to understand the expected time elapsed from incident occurrence to when the system detects and reports an incident. NOTE: Time to detection requirements may vary for each agency use case or each type of detection. For example, detection of a stopped vehicle may be required within 5 seconds, while detection congestion may be required within several minutes of the occurrence.

Challenge / Issue	TMC Operator User Need
	Need #33 : TMC operators need to understand latency of communication mediums that transfer detection notifications from the field to a central location, including time elapsed from detection to receipt of notification.
	NOTE: Communication time/latency requirements may vary for each agency use case and is often dependent upon agency communication capabilities, not necessarily AID product dependent.

Table 11: Integration with Agency Systems and Practices Challenges/Issues and Corresponding TMC Operator
User Need(s)

Challenge / Issue	TMC Operator User Need
Agencies are often challenged with leveraging existing infrastructure for overall efficiency in terms of initial investment and ongoing maintenance.	<i>Need #34:</i> In some situations, TMC operators need automated incident detection functions to be performed using in place, agency-owned equipment or infrastructure.
Use of multiple user interfaces is inefficient for understanding current conditions and performing traffic operations functions.	Need #35: TMC operators need automated incident detection to be integrated with existing TMC system user interfaces, such as Advanced Traffic Management Systems (ATMS), for viewing alerts and other information generated by incident detection.
	<i>Need #36:</i> TMC operators need automated incident detection software/systems to be easily and quickly installed, calibrated and/or configured, and integrated with existing agency systems.
	Need #37: TMC operators need automated incident detection systems to be pre-calibrated and pre-configured to local conditions (e.g., traffic patterns, usage trends, local environments) prior to agency deployment.
Agency investment and ongoing maintenance required to operate TMC support systems can require significant staff time and other resources.	Need #38: TMC operators need support from the AID product vendor to re-calibrate and reconfigure automated incident detection products after the initial installation and calibration is complete.
	<i>Need #39:</i> TMC operators need automated incident detection systems to self-calibrate in real-time as conditions change.
	NOTE: For example, systems that use video from pan-tilt- zoom (PTZ) cameras need to automatically adjust analytics as the camera moves to a new position and perform "masking" to disregard stationary objects in the field of view rather than triggering a false alert as an incident.

Challenge / Issue	TMC Operator User Need
	Need #40: TMC operators need to minimize resources (e.g., physical space in the TMC, data storage capacity) required to house and operate automated incident detection systems.
TMC operations can be significantly disrupted if automated incident detection components such as field equipment or software, or communications are not functioning properly.	Need #41: TMC operators need the ability to monitor the operability (i.e., to perform health monitoring) of automated incident detection systems.
All agency-operated systems that use video must adhere to the agency's policies for storing, deleting, or archiving video from traffic cameras.	Need #42: TMC operators need incident detection systems that utilize video to follow agency processes and procedures for storing and deleting video, per agency policies.

5.0 Automated Incident Detection Product Capabilities

To document capabilities of AID products, the companies identified in Section 3.0 Industry Scan that offer or operate AID products in the following categories were contacted and asked to provide a 60-minute webinar product demonstration to the ENTERPRISE members.

- Video Analytics Systems that Use In-Place Traffic Cameras
- Detection-Equipped Traffic Cameras
- Non-Video Based Products
- Agency Tools and Platforms Using External Data

Due to the number of available products and deployments found in the industry scan and the overall scope of this project, companies identified in the following categories were not included in the AID product demonstrations.

- Incident Feeds from Third-Party Traffic Data Providers
- Wrong-Way Vehicle Detection Systems

The following companies that offer commercially available AID products responded to the request and presented product AID capabilities during seven separate webinars during May and June of 2021. Two companies presented video analytics systems that use in-place traffic cameras category, two companies presented capabilities for detection-equipped traffic cameras, and three companies presented in the non-video-based products category.

- Bosch
- Citilog
- FLIR
- Navtech Radar
- OptaSense
- TrafficVision
- Waycare (Acquired by Rekor in January 2022)

In addition to the presentations by companies offering commercially available AID products, the following agencies presented in-house platforms using external data that are used by their agencies to assist in AID.

- Colorado DOT
- Pennsylvania DOT

Prior to the product demonstration webinars, the user needs included in Section 4.0 were shared with each company and agency to provide a basis for demonstrating product capabilities. An introductory meeting was held to discuss the structure of each webinar and provide a standard template that would be used by the research team to document product capabilities. The intent of the product demonstration

webinars was to provide ENTERPRISE members with an understanding of different AID product capabilities. Approximately 20-30 attendees participated in each webinar. Attendees included ENTERPRISE Board members and TMC staff from ENTERPRISE agencies. The webinars were recorded and posted on a password-protected webpage that was available through the end of the project for ENTERPRISE members who were unable to attend the live webinars.

This section highlights overall observations from the product demonstration webinars. Individual documentation from each product demonstration webinar is included in the <u>Appendix</u>. It is important to note that during the webinars not all AID capabilities were demonstrated due to time constraints, however presenters were asked to review the webinar documentation and provide any additional information not shared during the webinar demonstration.

5.1 Detection Capabilities, Coverage and Environment

During each of the product demonstration webinars, detection capabilities were noted or shown through recorded video for seven incident types (e.g., stopped vehicle, extremely slow vehicle) that correspond to the TMC operator user needs (See Section 4.0). A summary of the detection capabilities for the nine products and platforms demonstrated is provided in Table 12. Many of the detection capabilities are well developed across the systems. For example, all products or platforms detect congestion or slow traffic. Only two of the systems detect extreme vehicle speed.

			OFF THE S	HELF PROI	OUCTS			AGI PLATI	ENCY FORMS
Incident Types Detected	Det Equ Car	ection ipped neras	Video A Using I Cam	nalytics n-Place neras	N	lon-Vid	eo	Extern	al Data
	Demo 1	Demo 2	Demo 3	Demo 4	Demo 5	Demo 6	Demo 7	Demo 8	Demo 9
Stopped Vehicle	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
Extremely Slow Vehicle	~	~	~	~		✓	✓		
Congestion/Slow Traffic	~	~	~	~	✓	✓	✓	~	\checkmark
Non-vehicle object or entity (debris, pedestrian, animal)	~	~	~	~		~	~	~	
Queue (location of front and back)	\checkmark	~	~		✓	✓	\checkmark	~	\checkmark
Wrong-Way	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark		\checkmark			
Extreme Vehicle Speed	\checkmark					\checkmark			

Table 12: AID Webinar Demonstration Detection Capabilities

Each of the demonstrations indicated that detection is functional in all weather conditions as shown in Table 13. Platforms and products that use external data (which often ingest data from vehicle probes) do not work as well to detect incidents in free-flowing conditions due to lower probe penetration rates. Table 13 indicates the detection conditions by each product or platform noted or demonstrated during the webinars.

			OFF THE S	HELF PRO	DUCTS			AGE PLATE	NCY ORMS
Detection Conditions/	Det Equ Car	ection ipped neras	Video A Using I Cam	nalytics n-Place neras	N	lon-Vid	eo	Extern	al Data
Environment	Demo 1	Demo 2	Demo 3	Demo 4	Demo 5	Demo 6	Demo 7	Demo 8	Demo 9
All lighting conditions (daylight, low light, dark)	~		~	~	~	~	~	~	\checkmark
All weather conditions	\checkmark	\checkmark	~	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	~	\checkmark
Low visibility not caused by weather events (e.g., smoke)	~		~	~	~	~	~	~	~
All traffic conditions (free-flowing to extreme congestion)	~	\checkmark	~	\checkmark		~			

|--|

Following are selected additional observations noted during the webinar demonstrations of detection capabilities, coverage, and environment.

- For camera-based products and systems, coverage and detection will vary with type of camera, type of lens, camera height, and obstructions in the field of view. Each deployment is unique and configurable.
- Vision-based systems will not detect if it is completely dark.
- If fiber is utilized (to provide a series of traffic flow indicators from a combination of noise and vibration) weather and lighting is not an issue as the fiber optic cable is buried.
- PTZ cameras can be used with some products, however AID doesn't work unless the camera is in its home position.
- Thermal cameras work well to detect smoke and fire in tunnels as well as in low light or low visibility conditions to detect pedestrians. Thermal cameras are more expensive initially, but less maintenance is required compared to a high-definition camera.

5.2 Alerts, Displays, and Configuration

False detection alerts can be distracting and over time operators may choose to ignore them. AID companies are aware of this concern by transportation agencies and work with each agency to configure

and adjust their products to minimize alerts. This could include increasing or decreasing the time at which an alert is provided to an operator following a detection, configuring the speed at which congestion is detected, or turning on/off alerts by roadway geometry or incident type.

The detection of an incident is instant; however, communication latency for an alert to reach the operator is dependent on the infrastructure. Notification of detection alerts are typically provided to operators visually on a dashboard provided by the AID company or integrated into a system at the TMC. Alerts for some products may also be sent for example via email.

Table 14 provides a summary of operator support and configuration provided by each AID product or agency platform demonstrated as part of this project. There are varying levels of operator support provided by each product or platform. There are also some gaps in configuration such as re-classifying incidents, real-time information about incident timelines, and prioritizing events; however, these types of capabilities are often performed by an agency's ATMS.

	OFF THE SHELF PRODUCTS							AGENCY PLATFORMS	
Operator Support and Configuration	Detection Equipped Cameras		Video Analytics Using In-Place Cameras		Non-Video			External Data	
	Demo 1	Demo 2	Demo 3	Demo 4	Demo 5	Demo 6	Demo 7	Demo 8	Demo 9
Validate or dismiss incidents as they are received	~		\checkmark	\checkmark		~	\checkmark		\checkmark
Configure alerts and displays uniquely for each individual user	✓			~		✓			~
Turn on and off alerts for each incident type	✓	✓	~	~		✓	\checkmark	~	~
Turn on and off alerts by roadway geometry and location	~		~	~		~	~		~
Configure the duration from incident detection to incident alert	~		~	~		~	~		~
Configure speed thresholds for detecting congestion or slow traffic	~	~	✓	~	√	~	~		
Configure thresholds for locating head and tail of traffic queues	✓	~				✓	✓		~
Configure alerts in real-time and by pre-determined parameters	✓		~	~		✓			~
Prioritize alerts and allow real time filtering	✓		\checkmark			✓	\checkmark		
Real-time information about incident timelines	✓		~	~		✓	✓		~

Table 14: AID Webinar Demonstration Operator Support and Configuration

Operator Support and Configuration	OFF THE SHELF PRODUCTS							AGENCY PLATFORMS	
	Detection Equipped Cameras		Video Analytics Using In-Place Cameras		Non-Video			External Data	
	Demo 1	Demo 2	Demo 3	Demo 4	Demo 5	Demo 6	Demo 7	Demo 8	Demo 9
Re-classify incident events to change their priority level over time	~		\checkmark			\checkmark			~

5.3 Integration with Agency Systems and Practices

AID products offer a variety of options for obtaining data from AID systems, such as edge-based (at the camera location), server based, or in the cloud. AID products are typically designed to integrate with an agency's ATMS. In some cases, an integration partner is needed to assist.

Every year technology and software products continue to improve which enhances AID detection capabilities. Video analytics systems utilize an agency's in-place traffic cameras, enabling multiple uses for existing camera infrastructure. If fiber optics is used for AID detection, the necessary equipment is located away from the roadside.

Once a system is deployed, onsite training and remote training are provided by some companies as options for support. In addition, health monitoring is often provided to monitor operability of components and field equipment. Maintenance agreements are commonly offered by AID companies to provide routine upgrades and ongoing support.
6.0 Agency Experiences

Following the product demonstrations described in Section 5.0, a peer exchange webinar was conducted on September 15, 2021. The purpose of the webinar was to highlight agency experiences with AID products. The webinar included presentations grouped into three categories:

- Agency Experiences with AID Products
- AID Pilots and Testing by ENTERPRISE Agencies
- AID Planned System

6.1 Agency Experiences with AID Products

This section provides highlights from presentations during the peer exchange webinar noting experiences with AID products.

Agency: Virginia DOT

AID Product: Citilog

- Citilog was used by the Virginia DOT to monitor and provide a quick visual verification of no blockages prior to opening and closing shoulders at two locations (I-66 system consisted of 45 cameras, I-494 system consisted of 9 cameras) from 2015 to 2018.
- Citilog established the initial detection zone and provided periodic calibration through a maintenance contract.
- Instances of false or inaccurate detections were limited due to the periodic adjustments of detection zones to account for camera shifts.
- The back-office system consisted of 17 servers of which half were for backup. Initially edge analytics was specified, however there was a cost savings with utilizing central servers.
- The system was decommissioned in 2018 due to a road widening project to build Highway Occupancy Toll lanes along I-66. The I-495 system was dismantled when switching to static time of day shoulder operation due to Traffic Operations Center (TOC) software replacement that doesn't include dynamic shoulder module.
- A Citilog system is currently in use in Virginia since 2012 on I-495, I-395 and I-95 Express Lanes which are operated by Transurban through a concession.

Agencies: Kansas DOT and Missouri DOT (Kansas City Scout) AID Product: TrafficVision

- In 2013, Kansas City Scout in Kansas City (includes Kansas DOT and Missouri DOT) procured 48 camera licenses from TrafficVision. Kansas City Scout wanted a product that was configurable with PTZ cameras. In addition, an API integration with their ATMS was desired. The product could not be vendor specific and needed to be able to use any standard video stream.
- In 2015 Kansas City Scout extended the TrafficVision licenses by 80, in addition to the original 48 licenses. Currently, 128 of 320 cameras are equipped with TrafficVision.

 Kansas City Scout's use of TrafficVision is focused on incident detection and debris detection. There are false positives with the TrafficVision product, however Kansas City Scout has been pleased with the overall number of false positives. Figure 4 shows the alert provided to an operator of a stranded vehicle.



Figure 4: Kansas City Scout Alert of a Stranded Vehicle (Photo courtesy of Kansas City Scout)

 Kansas City Scout has an "easy button" within their ATMS that will auto fill information based on alerts, with approvals for example to post messages on DMS or send emails of alerts. Of the alerts feeding the dashboard with the easy button, 80% are from data provided by TrafficVision and 20% are from data provided by Kansas City Scout. See Figure 5.

Corrent Name 35 58 @ 276 Incohert Type Sequent/Versice Proving Incohert Type Proving Incohert Type Tenstame Fit. Nor-11 Tenstame </th <th></th>	
Nonty: Hgp. Torestary: Ri. Nov.13 10.40.AM Basin II: K05500C.04	10:19:50
Terestary: R. Nov 12 UB 8.0.M Basics II: K035502-04 Leve Speed Widzes Occupate: * Nava 2 40 0 0 Nava 2 40 0 0 Nava 3 -1 0 0 Nava 4 40 0 0	Costs - This butto
Item II R035000-04 Leve Speed Vid.vec Occupancy * Naur 2 40 0 8 * Naur 3 -1 0 8 * Naur 4 40 0 8 * Naur 5 -1 0 2 *	automatic
Lere Speed Vikre Occupancy - New 1 44 0 8 New 2 40 0 8 New 3 - 4 0 8 New 4 40 0 8 New 4 40 0 8 New 5 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 - 4 -	creates a
New 1 44 0 6 New 2 60 0 0 0 New 2 -1 0 0 0 New 4 40 0 0 0 New 4 40 0 0 0	in ATMS
New2 00 0 0 0 New3 4 0 0 0 New4 60 0 0	- // /2/200
Nex2 0 - 0 - 1 Nex4	AND I I
Nor4 0 0 1	And the second second
fw1 -1 0 0	Or To
	Or Rep
far2 1 0 0	And the second s
F#3 10 0 8	and the second

Figure 5: Kansas City Scout Alert TrafficVision API Integration with ATMS Software Easy Button (Courtesy of Kansas City Scout)

- Initially servers were used to operate TrafficVision, but Kanas City Scout has transitioned to a virtual server bank where TrafficVision can provide updates and support the virtual servers.
- Annual software updates cost 10-20% of the original licensing cost. Video analytics gets better each year, so it is a benefit to purchase the updates annually.
- Operators see a benefit with AID, however it is another data point to monitor during daily TMC operations. Filtering the alerts from TrafficVision has helped operators focus on identifying the most important alerts.

Agency: Georgia DOT

AID Product: TrafficVision

- Georgia DOT deployed TrafficVision on 3 routes (5-mile HOT lane, 20 mile stretch on I-75, and another 17-mile stretch).
- Georgia DOT saw a 4-to-8-minute reduction in detection times using TrafficVision AID compared to detection times prior to implementing. In addition, the greatest impact has been seen for detecting incidents in rural areas.
- One (1) or two (2) TMC staff initially monitored and adjusted settings from TrafficVision during testing. Other TMC staff were not told of the testing. This was a successful approach as many of the false positives that are typical complaints from TMC staff were reduced during the testing phase as adjustments were made. Operators were then able to see a benefit with the alerts provided.
- Georgia DOT is looking at integrating TrafficVision with their ATMS as a new ATMS product is procured.

Agency: Georgia DOT

AID Product: OptaSense

- Georgia DOT's Governor challenged the DOT to identify high-risk, high-reward projects. One
 project selected for funding under this direction was a project to deploy the OptaSense solution
 on fiber optic cable along 25 miles on Interstate 20 for traffic data collection (not used for AID).
 At this location Georgia DOT also had fiber under many exit and entrance ramps which with the
 OptaSense product can provide volumes on ramps.
- As part of this effort, Georgia DOT purchased the equipment from OptaSense.
- The project was initially conducted to identify an approach to replace legacy detection. Overall, there have been positive outcomes with OptaSense, however a complete switch will not be made, as fiber is needed and the precise location of the in-place fiber for the product to produce accurate results for traffic data collection.
- Once the project was kicked off with the product installation complete, there were not many changes. It was self-sufficient and no additional staffing requirements were needed.

6.2 AID Pilots and Testing by ENTERRISE Agencies

The Ontario Ministry of Transportation, MnDOT, and Iowa DOT who are members of ENTERPRISE described AID pilots and testing within their agency during the peer exchange webinar.

Agency: Ontario Ministry of Transportation (MTO)

AID Products: Bosch and TrafficVision

 MTO is conducting an intelligent video analytics project to use existing infrastructure, investigate edge computing, reduce bandwidth and storage, provide automatic alarm notification, and prepare for future mobility and CAV.

- Use cases for the project are focused on detecting congestion, low visibility, pedestrians, slow moving traffic, stopped vehicles, and wrong-way vehicle movements.
- The Central Region TMC was selected for the pilot site focused on a short section of Hwy 403 with 5 Bosch cameras utilized and 10 in-place cameras utilized for TrafficVision. The analytics completed by TrafficVision for in-place cameras are cloud based.
- Prior to starting the pilot project, configurations, calibration, measurements, and camera training were needed for the Bosch cameras. Field visits were required to determine the height of static objects (signs and gantries) and horizontal and vertical distances which was time consuming. See Figure 6.



Figure 6: Lane marking measurements for Bosch AID (Photo courtesy of MTO)

• Video streams from in-place cameras were provided directly to TrafficVision. TrafficVision was easy to configure and self-calibrate. Field visits were not required. Traffic Vision was integrated with Genetec SDK used by MTO. See Figures 7 and 8.



Figure 7: Screenshot of TrafficVision Dashboard (Photo courtesy of MTO)



Figure 8: Screenshot of Genetec SDK Dashboard (Photo courtesy of MTO)

MTO plans to conduct an evaluation for both products (Bosch and TrafficVision).

Agency: Minnesota DOT (MnDOT)

AID Product: TrafficVision

- MnDOT started an initial pilot of TrafficVision in March of 2020, but then stopped the test due to COVID. Another test was then started in Spring 2021. With the initial test there was not an option for a cloud-based system, but since March 2020 that has changed. With the cloud-based system no hardware is needed. However, a local server based option is available if desired.
- For the pilot that began in Spring 2021, data streams from 16 cameras from MnDOT's 511 system were provided to TrafficVision.
- It has been beneficial for MnDOT to use existing data feeds and have the option to change cameras since the TrafficVision licensing is by each individual video feed. In addition, TrafficVision was easy to set up and calibrate. There is also the option to ignore areas outside of travel lanes and ignore message signs to reduce false positives.
- Incident detection works well if the camera is calibrated and returns to its home position.
 There is an option to have multiple home positions. If the camera is not in its home position it will still provide incident detection but there are more false positives.
- Construction zones are challenging with automated incident detection due to increased false positive alarms. However, there is the option to turn off the alarms in the software if desired.
- MnDOT RTMC supervisors have been monitoring the tool, but it has not been used in practice by RTMC operators. MnDOT may expand the TrafficVision product to 20 cameras in Fall 2021 and conduct additional testing.
- MnDOT would need to integrate AID into their ATMS in order for it to be successful.

Agency: Iowa DOT

AID Product: TrafficVision

• In May 2021 lowa DOT started a pilot utilizing TrafficVision. Thirty-one (31) cameras were connected to the TrafficVision software in a metro area to detect congestion in known hotspots.

- It has been user friendly, with operators able to understand the system with little knowledge of the product.
- There were a lot of false positives initially, but with adjustments made to parameters this has decreased.
- It is not integrated in Iowa DOT's ATMS.
- Some operators like the additional alerts and others indicated there are still too many false positives. Typically, the false positives occur at night with low visibility.
- Iowa DOT would like to continue the deployment in rural areas.
- There is a concern about the effort that would be required to conduct regular calibration if the system were to be implemented on all 400 of Iowa DOT's traffic cameras.

6.3 AID Planned System

The Maryland DOT State Highway Administration (SHA) described their experience with planning for an AID product as part of a design-build project to be completed in Spring 2024.

Agency: Maryland DOT State Highway Administration (SHA) AID Product: Navtech Radar

- Maryland DOT SHA described an AID system they are planning to deploy as part of a 20-mile construction project along the Baltimore Beltway.
- AID was included in this project due to safety concerns with known congestion in this area.
- The design-build team selected for the project included Navtech Radar with their proposal submittal. The submittal noted that Navtech Radar's product recommends 5-year preventative maintenance, produces low false alarms, and alarms are provided as requested by Maryland DOT SHA through an XML feed.
- Ninety (90) Navtech Radar sensors are planned across the corridor. Since the system is not yet deployed, Maryland DOT SHA has relied on information provided in the submittal which included examples of Navtech Radar deployments in Europe.

7.0 Key Project Highlights

Selected key project highlights as identified through an industry scan, common TMC operator user needs, AID product demonstrations, and presentations of agency AID experiences are provided below.

TMC Operator Common User Needs for Automated Incident Detection:

- Each AID system deployment is unique, however TMC Operators need a system to provide detection capabilities for their desired deployment (e.g., stopped traffic, congestion, debris on roadway, front and back of queue) and coverage for different needs (e.g., traffic lanes, shoulders).
- Detection that is reliable in various lighting, weather, and visibility conditions is important to TMC operators. TMC operators also need AID systems to be configurable and provide alerts when an incident is detected.
- To avoid multiple platforms for TMC operators to monitor, it is important that AID systems also have the capability to integrate with existing agency systems and practices.

Automated Incident Detection Systems and Capabilities:

The AID products and tools focused on for this project were grouped into four categories. Product demonstration webinars were provided by several companies and transportation agencies. Additionally, nine agencies shared experiences with AID products in a peer exchange webinar format. See Table 15.

AID Category	Number of Webinar Demonstrations of Product Capabilities	Number of Agency Peer Exchange Presentations
Video Analytics Systems that Use In-Place Traffic Cameras	3	6
Detection-Equipped Traffic Cameras	2	1
Non-Video Based Products	3	2
Agency Tools and Platforms Using External Data	2	-

Table 15: Number of Webinar Demonstrations and Presentations on AID Products and Experiences

Detection Capabilities:

- Detection capabilities overall are well developed across AID systems but also vary.
- All products and agency platforms reviewed can detect congestion or slow traffic. Most products are capable of detecting stopped vehicles and queues. However, only two of the AID systems demonstrated in this project are able to detect extreme vehicle speed.

Coverage and Environment:

• Each of the demonstrations indicated that incident detection is functional in all weather conditions. Platforms and products that use external data (often including data from vehicle probes) do not work as well to detect incidents in free-flowing conditions due to lower probe penetration rates.

- Coverage and detection accuracy for camera-based systems will vary based on the type of camera, type of lens, camera height, and obstructions in the field of view. Each deployment is unique and configurable. Vision-based systems will not detect if is completely dark.
- If fiber is utilized (to provide a series of traffic flow indicators from a combination of noise and vibration) weather and lighting is not an issue as the fiber optic cable is buried.

Alerts, Displays and Configuration:

- False detection alerts can be distracting and over time operators may choose to ignore them. AID companies are aware of this concern by transportation agencies and work with each agency to configure and adjust their products to minimize false alerts. This could include increasing or decreasing the time at which an alert is provided following a detection, configuring the speed at which congestion is detection, or turning on/off alerts by roadway geometry or incident type. Overall, agencies that have deployed AID products have been pleased with the number of false positives due to the configuration capabilities provided by the AID products.
- There are varying levels of operator support provided by each product or platform. There are also some gaps in support capabilities such as re-classifying incidents, real-time information about incident timelines, and prioritizing events; however, these types of capabilities are often performed by in an agency's ATMS.
- Agencies have found that some products are easy to configure and set up without field work while some require upfront field measurements and camera training prior to deploying.
- Incident detection, as noted by one agency, works well if a PTZ camera is calibrated and returns to its home position. If the camera is not in its home position, it will still provide incident detection but there are more false positives.

Integration with Agency Systems and Practices:

- AID products offer a variety of options for obtaining data from AID systems, such as edge-based (at the camera location), server based, or in the cloud. AID products are typically designed to integrate with an agency's ATMS. In some cases, an integration partner is needed.
- TMC operators have varying opinions about use of AID systems. Some operators see a benefit with the additional information source, while others find it challenging to monitor another data point along with other in-place systems. Integrating AID systems with agencies' ATMS will assist in reducing the number of data points to monitor.
- Georgia DOT saw a 4- to 8-minute reduction in detection times using an AID system compared to
 detection times prior to implementing. In addition, Georgia DOT had only a few staff test the AID
 product without other staff knowing and configured the system prior to deploying with other
 operators. This was beneficial as the number of false alarms were reduced during the initial
 calibration and adjustment period, prior to expanded implementation with additional staff.

The AID systems reviewed for this project vary in detection capabilities, detection coverage, and detection environments. In addition, all products or agency platforms are configurable, provide alerts to TMC operators and can be integrated with an agency's ATMS. The product capabilities documented and the TMC operator common user needs for AID can be used and modified by ENTERPRISE members to identify their agency's specific needs for deploying AID systems.

Appendix: Product Demonstration Webinar Summaries

Product Demonstration Webinar Summaries: Automated Incident Detection Companies

- Bosch
- Citilog
- FLIR
- Navtech Radar
- OptaSense
- TrafficVision
- Waycare (Acquired by Rekor in January 2022)

Product Demonstration Webinar Summaries: Automated Incident Detection Agency Platforms

- Colorado DOT Traffic Operations Dashboard
- Pennsylvania DOT Traffic Alerts Dashboard

Vendor	Bosch
Website	https://www.boschsecurity.com
Contacts	Charles Whitfield (<u>Charles.whitfield@us.bosch.com</u>), Joel White (joel.white@us.bosch.com), and Mike Trinklein (<u>mike.trinklein@us.bosch.com</u>)
Webinar Demonstration	May 4, 2021

Product Overview

Brief overview of how the product detects traffic incidents:

Researcher notes from demonstration:

• Bosch cameras for traffic applications include pan/tilt/zoom, dome, and thermal. The cameras include a sensor which is constantly streamed out in real time. The data is pulled into a cloud based solution and provided back within in the camera. The cameras provide the ability for real-time event and post processing data.

Bosch notes:

Detection Capabilities, Coverage and Environment					
Traffic	Incident Type	9	Researcher notes from demonstration:		
Incidents Detected Detects	Incidents Detected Detects Stopped Vehicle	\boxtimes	 Noted as a capability. Ohio DOT US 33 Smart Mobility Corridor uses Bosch cameras for a number of uses including stopped vehicles. 		
presence of these incidents (Needs #1-12)	Extremely Slow Vehicle	\boxtimes	 Noted as a capability. Ohio DOT US 33 Smart Mobility Corridor uses Bosch cameras for a number of uses including slow moving vehicles. 		
	Congestion/ Slow Traffic	\boxtimes	 Ohio DOT US 33 Smart Mobility Corridor uses Bosch cameras for a number of uses including congestion. Volume and congestion data is sent from the camera to the cloud. 		
	Non-vehicle object or entity (e.g., debris, pedestrian, animal)		 Ohio DOT US 33 Smart Mobility Corridor uses Bosch cameras for a number of uses including pedestrian detection. In Marysville Ohio pedestrians are detected at multiple intersections which it then broadcast coordinates via DSRC (to on board units and a monitoring center). The data is also aggregated. 		
	Queue (Location of front and back of traffic queue)	\boxtimes	 Ohio DOT US 33 Smart Mobility Corridor uses Bosch cameras for a number of uses including queue detection. Queue detection at a ramp was shown and the message provided to an onboard unit (DSRC message provided through partnership with MC Corbin) alerting a driver of congestion ahead. 		
	Wrong-Way Vehicle	\boxtimes	 Wrong-way detection video shown at an lowa intersection. There are two zones of detection (embedded dual detection) at this intersection. If a vehicle is going the wrong-way on an exit ramp it will detect it twice. An email with a camera image of the wrong-way vehicle is then sent to the TMC. Another example video was shown where two cameras are used to detect vehicles in Michigan where once a vehicle 		

		•	enters at one into Canada. O fixed camera i camera to mo Ohio DOT US for a number video is review There are man triggered. Bos real time alert	of the r Dnce th it comm we to vi 33 Sma of uses wed to ny diffe sch par ts to DN	ramps it is committed to cross the border e wrong-way maneuver is detected by a nunicates to a PTZ camera and triggers the iew the wrong-way vehicle. rt Mobility Corridor uses Bosch cameras including wrong-way drivers. Data and verify it wasn't a false positive. rent actions once a wrong-way event is tners with others to provide, for example, <i>A</i> S.
	Extreme Vehicle Speed	•	Not discussed	during	the demonstration.
	Comments on tro Researcher no Nothing Bosch notes: All the a vehicle o inaccura vary. Tra function hours to	<i>iffic incide</i> otes from (additional bove capa detection, ate becaus aining ana ality of th o train and	nts detected by demonstration: abilities are sup pedestrian is so se by its nature, lytics using the le camera analy l likely prove ina	ported upported debris Machir tics eng	by in-camera "edge" analytics. For non- ed but debris and animal detection are can be anything and similarly animals will ne Learning customer detector gine is possible but would require labor e.
Coverage Limits for	Describe the product's coverage area (e.g., all lanes of traffic, roadway shoulders, field of view, detection coverage distance). Researcher notes from demonstration:				
(Needs	Not disc	ussed dur	ing the demons	stration	
#3,0,8,13)	 Coverage and detection distances will vary dependent on the camera/lens and specific camera technology deployed. Typically, our team would review use cases and the intended deployment locations(s) to then use simulation tools to make best recommendations on the suggested technology to deploy. 				
Detection	Detection is func	tional in:		1	Researcher notes from demonstration:
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	 All lighting c light, dark) 	onditions	(daylight, low		 In low light detection capability tends to be reduced, Bosch is working on models to fix this.
	All weather	condition	5	\boxtimes	 Weather (rain, wind, snow, ice, light, dark) conditions do not affect the video. Some cameras have a wiper and defrost, depending on the environment.
	Low visibility	y not caus	ed by		Not discussed during the demonstration
	All traffic co to extreme of	nditions (i congestion	free-flowing		Noted capability.

	Provide any additional details about the detection environment.						
	Researcher notes from demonstration:						
	Nothing additional.						
	Bosch notes:						
	• With any video technology, if visibility is diminished there is a potential for the						
	accuracy of detections to be reduced. All is dependent on how extreme the						
	conditions are in the last 3 bullet	s above	e. Other areas that should be considered				
	in this category are false-positive	s wher	e camera shake, blowing foliage and other				
	items in the field of view can trig	ger fals	e alters. Bosch has fine-tuned the				
	detection engine and underlying	techno	logy to reduce false-positives and increase				
	overall detection accuracy under	all con	ditions.				
	Alerts/Displays and Co	onfigura	ation				
False Alerts	Demonstrate and discuss the product's ab	ility to	minimize false alerts.				
(Need #18)	Researcher notes from demonstration:						
	 When a camera deployment is set 	t up it	is monitored to look for false positives				
	which then can be filtered out or	adjust	ed as needed. There is no one size fits all,				
	each deployment is different.						
	Bosch notes:						
	Bosch has fine-tuned the detection	on engi	ne and underlying technology to reduce				
	false positives and increase overa	all dete	ction accuracy under all conditions. Using				
	embedded deep leaning neural n	etwork	classifiers, the overall accuracy of				
	detections is in the mid 90% range. Depending on specific use case detection,						
	accuracy will be in the high 50%	anges.					
Notifications	How are alerts provided to TMC operators or other users when an incident is detected?						
(Need #19)	How can notifications be customized (e.g.,	email,	text) for each recipient?				
	Researcher notes from demonstration:						
	• Viewing the live video will show the alerts, which then can be communicated a						
	variety of ways depending on an agency's needs.						
	• Through Bosch partnerships, alerts may be provided for example to DMS or an						
	on-board unit.Alerts can be provided in a variety of different ways, the dashboard for the Ohio						
	DOT US 33 Smart Mobility Corrid	or of al	erts and data analysis was shown.				
	Bosch notes:						
	 This again is dependent on use ca 	ises an	d need. The cameras support multiple				
	alert communication methods an	id in m	ost cases we have partner integrations				
	such that direct alerting can happ	ben in t	he end user's environment or				
	technologies including DSRC, active messaging to DMS, beacons and other active						
	signage are used.						
Operator	This product allows users to:		Researcher notes from demonstration:				
Support and	Validate or dismiss incidents as	_					
Configuration	they are received.		Not discussed during the demonstration.				
(Needs #20-31)	 Configure incident alerts and 						
	displays uniquely for each		Not discussed during the demonstration.				
	individual user.		~				

	• Turn on and off alerts for each incident type.	\boxtimes		
	 Turn on and off alerts by roadway geometry (e.g., turn off shoulder alerts) and location (e.g., designate typical versus atypical traffic queues). 		Not discussed during the demonstration.	
	• Configure the duration from incident detection to incident alert.		Not discussed during the demonstration.	
	Configure speed thresholds for detecting congestion or slow traffic.	X		
	 Configure thresholds for locating start/head and end/tail of traffic queues. 	\boxtimes		
	 Configure incident alerts in real- time and by pre-determined parameters. 		Not discussed during the demonstration.	
	• Prioritize alerts and allow real time filtering.		Not discussed during the demonstration.	
	Real-time information about incident timelines.		Not discussed during the demonstration.	
	Re-classify incident events to change their priority level over time	Not discussed during the demonstration.		
	 Other decision support features (please explain): Researcher notes from demonstration: Nothing additional. Bosch notes: Much of what is described above can stem from a camera analytics detection. Camera is an active and intelligent sensor that can initiate real-time mitigation and remote alerts. A number of the items listed above would be achieved by integrations or in collaboration with partner devices. For example: WrongWay Driver detection; the camera can detect the WWD and then track to validate whether driver self corrects or continues into the main roadway but the camera does not directly control mitigation protocols like active alert signage, DSRC messages and other mitigation protocols. 			
Detection (Need #32)	 What is the amount of time elapsed from incident occurrence to detection? Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. Bosch notes: The time is milliseconds. 			
Latency of Detection to Alert (Need #33)	Comment on the latency of communicating alerts to TMC operators or other users, if applicable. Researcher notes from demonstration: • Not discussed during the demonstration. Bosch notes:			

	• Since the detection is in the camera itself, detection is instant. Communication latency is wholly dependent on the infrastructure in place to transmit the alerts.
	Integration with Agency Systems and Practices
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owned equipment to perform detections? If yes, how? If no, what equipment is used and where is it housed? Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. Bosch notes: Today detection is done in the camera itself so it would have to be a Bosch camera. Very soon we will be adding an in-cabinet Graphic Processing Unite (GPU) based processing solution that will not only boost capabilities in Bosch cameras but also support other video streams by applying the Bosch deep learning detection technology in the traffic cabinet.
Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 What is the installation/integration process? Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. Bosch notes: Bosch cameras install similar to other cameras deployed in traffic applications. How can the product be integrated with agency systems such as Advanced Traffic Management Software (ATMS)? Researcher notes from demonstration: There is an integration partner program at Bosch that assists agencies to integrate Bosch cameras with an ATMS. It is easiest if an ATMS provider is requested to integrate with a Bosch camera. Bosch notes: Integration is dependent on the ATMS platform but understand that Bosch is an open detector solution, so we provide the API and support for integrations. Bosch cameras support the ONVIF camera protocols so in many cases a more and more ATMS systems more to supporting ONVIF the cameras are easily supported. What physical space is required at agency facilities for equipment and data storage? Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. Bosch notes: This needs more detail to answer completely. If we are discussing data aggregation and reporting we have a flexible cloud-based solution where data can be stored as long as necessary and viewed in provided dashboards or pilled via APIs into any end user solution. If applicable, how is storage and periodic purging of video handled? Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. Bosch notes:

Calibration (Need #37-39)	 Storage of video would be on premise using a Bosch or other recording solution and storage. This is completely dependent on number of cameras, resolution, frame-rates, retention time, etc. Describe how the system is pre-calibrated by the vendor prior to agency deployment, any ongoing calibration needs, and self-calibration capabilities. Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. Bosch notes: Once deployed and calibrated any additional calibration can for the most part be
Health Monitoring	Describe how the product monitors the operability of its components and field equipment. Besearcher notes from demonstration:
(Need #41)	Not discussed during the demonstration.
	Bosch notes: Bosch cameras support SNMP. The Bosch Remote Portal cloud-based system is
	 Bosch camera support swife. The Bosch kenote Portal cloud-based system is recommended as a no-fee solution for camera management, health monitoring and active altering on camera health conditions.
	Use by Transportation Agencies / Case Studies
List the transport links to case stud Researcher no Ohio DC Iowa DC Michiga Bosch notes: <u>https://</u> <u>https://</u> <u>https://</u> <u>f</u>	ation agencies (and contacts if available) that currently use your AID product. Provide web ies or other documentation featuring agency use of the product. tes from demonstration: T T T n DOT www.boschsecurity.com/us/en/news/trends-and-technologies/data-solutions-in-its/ www.boschsecurity.com/us/en/industries/intelligent-transportation-systems-its/ www.boschsecurity.com/us/en/news/customer-stories/drive-ohio/ media.boschsecurity.com/fs/media/pb/images/industries_2/transportation/its_brochure.pd
	Other Product Highlights
Describe any add	itional product highlights if not previously noted. tes from demonstration:
Bosch sl directly been in neural n processe Initially importa	nowed live video (e.g., from a Bosch latest generation camera embedded Nero networks in the camera) at an intersection in Columbus during the demonstration. Intelligence has Bosch cameras for the past 15 to 20 years, however the cameras are moving to embed etworks for the on board processing capabilities. These cameras use the same type of or as what is used in a cell phone. cameras were deployed for monitoring, today automated incident detection is a need and nt to users.
 Bosch is 	working on capabilities to provide alerts from cameras to DMS as well as V2X solutions.

- Image processing developed by Bosch for automotive safety solutions is utilized for the AI in Bosch cameras.
- Bosch is starting to take camera views at an intersection and lay it into an overhead Birdseye view to track all movements, approaches, detection zones etc. An example in Vail, Colorado was shown alerting operators of pedestrians.
- For agencies with existing older model cameras, Bosch is developing edge processing that can sit in a roadside cabinet and boost a current, older Bosch device.
- Privacy currently is not an issue (can't see a face or a read a license plate) and data is anonymous (metadata stream).

Bosch notes:

Vendor	Citilog
Website	https://www.citilog.com/
Contacts	Eric Toffin (<u>eric.toffin@citilog.com</u>), Jean-Marie Guyon (<u>imguyon@citilog.com</u>), Amine Hauoi (<u>amine@sensysnetworks.com</u>)
Webinar Demonstration	May 6, 2021

Product Overview

Brief overview of how the product detects traffic incidents (3-4 sentences): Researcher notes from demonstration:

- Artificial intelligence has been utilized since 1997 by Citilog.
- In 2006, Citilog started using machine learning algorithms (improving over time the more they are used).
- In 2017, Citilog started using deep learning. A GPU is used to compute images and computer power for deep learning. Citilog smart products are trained with real use cases and datasets.
- Video analytics is used to detect, then deep learning validates to provide an alert.

Citilog notes:

Detection Capabilities, Coverage and Environment					
Traffic	Incident Type Researcher notes from demonstration:				
Incidents Detected	Stopped Vehicle	\boxtimes	 Noted capability of detecting a stopped vehicle in a tunnel and outdoor. Showed a video of a vehicle blocking a lane. 		
Detects presence of	Extremely Slow Vehicle	\boxtimes	• Showed a video of a slow vehicle that was detected.		
these incidents (Needs #1-12)	Congestion/ Slow Traffic	\boxtimes	• Noted capability of congestion in a tunnel and outdoor.		
	Non-vehicle object or entity (e.g., debris, pedestrian, animal)	\boxtimes	 Noted capability of detecting congestion in a tunnel and outdoor. Showed a video in a tunnel where a vehicle was stopped and pedestrians were around the vehicle. Alerts for pedestrian and vehicle were provided. Showed a video of a pedestrian detected on the shoulder of a bridge. Debris detection on a shoulder can be done, however it can be difficult with calibration due to size, shape, color, distance, and lighting conditions. 		
	Queue (Location of front and back of traffic queue)	\boxtimes	• The end of the queue is typically managed on the ATMS. However, it can be achieved using Citilog smart filters.		
	Wrong-Way Vehicle	\boxtimes	 Noted capability of detecting wrong-way driving in a tunnel and outdoor. Showed a video of a wrong-way vehicle detected entering a highway. 		
	Extreme Vehicle Speed		 Receiving extreme vehicle speed alerts is not standard, but possible. 		

Comments on traffic incidents detected by the product.								
	Researcher notes from demonstration:							
	 Incident detection can also be utilized for reversible HOV/HOT lanes to ensure there are no vehicles present before the lane is reversed. 							
	Citilog notes:							
	 If animals are present in the field 	of viev	v, depending on their behavior, they may					
	trigger alarms such as stopped ve	hicle, o	debris or slow vehicle					
Coverage	Describe the product's coverage area (e.g.	, all Iar	nes of traffic, roadway shoulders, field of					
Limits for	view, detection coverage distance).							
Detection	A team of angineers is available t	o holn	decign the system for the best soverage					
#5.6.8.13)	and ensure there is overlap betw	o neip een cai	meras to avoid missing incidents					
	 Height of the cameras in a tunnel 	are tv	pically 20 feet or less and the distance					
	covered therefore is less than a c	amera	outdoors where they are typically					
	mounted higher.							
	Citilog notes:							
	Nothing additional.							
Detection	Detection is functional in:		Descende au patro france dans contrations					
Detection Conditions/	Detection is junctional in:		Researcher notes from demonstration:					
Environment			night Cameras have light					
(Needs #14-17)			sensitivity.					
	• All lighting conditions (daylight, low		• Showed video with a dark					
	light, dark) environment that provided							
	 of a pedestrian. Low light conditions are dependent 							
	on camera sensitivity.							
Provided a video of an in								
			However for and heavy snowfall					
	 All weather conditions 	\mathbf{X}	may impair visibility to a point					
			where vehicles cannot be seen by					
			either a human or by analytics.					
			Noted capability of detecting					
	Low Visibility not caused by weather events (e.g., smoke)	\mathbf{X}	smoke in a tunnel. Not able to					
	weather events (e.g., shoke)		detect smoke outdoors.					
	 All traffic conditions (free-flowing to extreme congestion) Noted capability. 							
	Provide any additional details about the d	etectio	n environment.					
	Researcher notes from demonstration:							
	Nothing additional.							
	Nothing additional							
Alerts/Displays and Configuration								

False Alerts	Demonstrate and discuss the product's ability to minimize false alerts.							
(Need #18)	Researcher notes from demonstration:							
	Conditions are more prone to false alarms in outdoor/highway compared to							
	tunnels. This is due to cameras in tunnels being mounted lower (closer view) in							
	tunnels compared to cameras mounted higher (further view) outdoors.							
	For video analytics on highways and bridges users can expect:							
	 detection time: 15 sec, 							
	 detection rate: 80-90%, and false clarges 1 to 4 false clarges (class (see and see a							
	 talse alarms: 1 to 4 talse alarms/day/camera. If applying deep learning to the same sight users can expect the same detection. 							
	It applying deep learning to the same sight, users can expect the same detection time and detection rate. However, the false alarms are reduced by 200 ^o which is							
	0.1 to 0.4 false alarms/day/came	ra.	alse alarms are reduced by 50% which is					
	Citilog notes:							
	Nothing additional.							
Notifications	How are alerts provided to TMC operators	or oth	er users when an incident is detected?					
(Need #19)	How can notifications be customized (e.g.,	email,	text) for each recipient?					
	Researcher notes from demonstration:							
	Alerts can be provided through the second seco	ne Citilo	og dashboard or integrated with the					
	ATMS. Alerts pop up on the scree	en or da	ashboard when a detection occurs.					
	 Citilog does not have notification 	s that c	can be customized for each operator.					
	 Incident detection can also be utilized addression was shown of an asside 	ilized to	or smart shoulder monitoring. A video of					
	detection was shown of an accident on the shoulder. VMS and lane monitoring							
	Citilog notes:Nothing additional.							
Operator	This product allows users to:Researcher notes from demonstration:							
Support and	 Validate or dismiss incidents as 							
Configuration	they are received.							
(Needs #20-31)	Configure incident alerts and	_	Citilog does not have notifications that					
	displays uniquely for each		can be customized for each operator.					
	Individual user.							
	I urn on and off alerts for each incident type							
	Turn on and off alerts by roadway							
	geometry (e.g. turn off shoulder							
	alerts) and location (e.g., designate	\mathbf{X}						
	typical versus atypical traffic							
	queues).							
	Configure the duration from	57	Not discussed during the demonstration.					
	incident detection to incident alert.	X	Ability confirmed by Citilog					
	Configure speed thresholds for		Not discussed during the demonstration.					
	detecting congestion or slow traffic.		Ability confirmed by Citilog					
	Configure thresholds for locating		The end of queue is typically managed in the ATMS.					
	start/head and end/tail of traffic							
	queues.							

	 Configure incident alerts in real- time and by pre-determined 	\times	Some parameters can be adjusted in real-time (e.g., turn of certain cameras,			
	parameters.		lanes, invert traffic lanes)			
	 Prioritize alerts and allow real time filtering. 	\boxtimes	Not discussed during the demonstration. Ability confirmed by Citilog			
	Real-time information about incident timelines.	\boxtimes				
	Re-classify incident events to change their priority level over time	X	Not discussed during the demonstration. Ability confirmed by Citilog			
	Other decision support features (please ex	plain):				
	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Can add comments/notes, sort, export incidents, and replay incidents. Can use post-event data to understand where incidents are occurring, how often, etc. During planned events such as roadway construction, lanes can be turned on or off in the Citilog system. Other filters can also be turned on our off depending on the construction area. For maintenance operations, filters are typically not used. A TMC operator will discount related alarms to avoid the risk of missing an incident. However, it is possible to turn off some alarm types, or alarm on specific lanes during maintenance operations. Citilog notes: Nothing additional. 					
Time to Detection	What is the amount of time elapsed from incident occurrence to detection? Researcher notes from demonstration:					
(Need #32)	 Not discussed during the demonstration. 	tratior).			
, ,	Citilog notes:					
	• This is an adjustable parameter on the system.					
Latency of	Comment on the latency of communicating	g alerts	s to TMC operators or other users, if			
Detection to	applicable.					
Alert (Need #33)	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
(14224 1133)	Citilog notes:					
	 From alarm confirmation to sending that alarm to the ATMS/operators, latency 					
	will depend on network and protocol used. However typically less than 1 second.					
	Integration with Agency Syst	ems ar	nd Practices			
Use of Agency	Does the system utilize existing DOT-owne	d equip	oment to perform detections? If yes, how?			
Equipment	If no, what equipment is used and where is	s it hou	ised?			
(Neeu #34)	Uses in-place agency-owned cam	eras				
	 There is the option for server-bas based analytics. Performance is t 	sed ana he sam	llytics (off-the-shelf) or camera edge- e.			
	Citilog notes:					
	 Nothing additional. 					

Installation	What is the installation/integration process?					
and	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
Integration	 Not discussed during the demonstration. 					
(Needs #35,36,	Citilog notes:					
40,42)	 Citilog provides training enabling integrators / end-customers to perform configuration and maintenance of the system. Citilog also offers those services. Once the system (hardware) is installed, a first configuration is performed. The system is then left to function for a number of days and then fine-tuned. 					
	How can the product be integrated with agency systems such as Advanced Traffic Management Software (ATMS)?					
	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
	 Showed the Citilog interface dashboard to monitor system performance. It is system designed to integrate third party solutions. It is also designed to integrate with ATMS. 					
	Citilog notes:					
	• Citilog offers a variety of communication protocols towards 3 rd party systems.					
	 What physical space is required at agency facilities for equipment and data storage? Researcher notes from demonstration: Analytics servers are required if server-based analytics are used. No physical space is required for camera-based analytics. A central server (and optionally a redundant central server) is required in any case. Citilog notes: Nothing additional. If applicable, how is storage and periodic purging of video handled? Researcher notes from demonstration: Incident information is stored in a database and can be replayed or accessed in real-time. Citilog notes: Nothing additional. 					
Calibration (Need #37-39)	 Describe how the system is pre-calibrated by the vendor prior to agency deployment, any ongoing calibration needs, and self-calibration capabilities. Researcher notes from demonstration: Citilog can train users to be self-sufficient or offer a maintenance/service contract. Use of PTZ cameras is not an issue as long as a home position is used for analytics. When using a PTZ camera, automated incident detection is not occurring until it is placed back into its home position. Citilog notes: Nothing additional. 					

Health Monitoring (Need #41)	 Describe how the product monitors the operability of its components and field equipment. Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. Citilog notes: Servers and cameras are monitored by the central software CT-Center. Alerts are created when equipment fail/do not respond. These alerts can be sent to the ATMS. 		
	Use by Transportation Agencies / Case Studies		
List the transport links to case stud Researcher no • Citilog h • N • N • N • N • H • F • Citilog notes: • Nothing	List the transportation agencies (and contacts if available) that currently use your AID product. Provide web links to case studies or other documentation featuring agency use of the product. Researcher notes from demonstration: • Citilog has deployments in all regions of the world. Following are some resources in the US: • NYSBA, NY – Bridges • Manhattan tunnels (PANYNJ, MTABT) – Tunnels • Boston, MA – Tunnels • I66, VA – Smart Shoulder • HOT 195/1495, MD, VA – Managed lanes • Baltimore, MD – Tunnels and bridges • Port of Miami tunnel, FL – Tunnel • Presidio Tunnel, CA - Tunnel		
	Other Product Highlights		
Describe any add Researcher no There ar I I There ar I There ar I There ar I There ar I There ar I There ar I There ar I There ar I There ar I I There ar I I There ar I I I I I I I I I I I I I	 <i>itional product highlights if not previously noted.</i> tes from demonstration: Te 3 areas of video analytics provided by Citilog. ncident management (focus of today's presentation) Traffic statistics (can be stand alone or with incident management) Traffic efficiency (for intersection control) I camera deployments have a shorter field of view (lesser pixel definition). Deep-learning be efficiently applied to thermal cameras. additional. 		

Vendor	FLIR			
Website	https://www.flir.com/			
Contacts	Matt Bretoi (matt.bretoi@flir.com) and Jacob DuBose (Jacob.dubose@flir.com)			
Webinar Demonstration	April 29, 2021			
			Product Overview	
 Brief overview of how the product detects traffic incidents (3-4 sentences): Researcher notes from demonstration: FLIR AID solutions are off the shelf products that utilize smart sensors and analytics. Everything is happening "at the edge" with dedicated processing. FLIR notes: FLIR has VIP modules (video image processing modules) that allows existing cameras/equipment to be used with FLIR AID analytics. 				
	Detec	tion	Capabilities, Coverage and Environment	
Traffic	Incident Type	2	Researcher notes from demonstration:	
Detects presence of these incidents	Stopped Vehicle	\boxtimes	 Recorded video shown of alerts when a vehicle is stopped in the right lane and a vehicle stopped along a bridge. The duration is configurable on an alert notifying an operator (e.g., typically between 5 and 10 seconds for a stopped vehicle, less than 5 seconds for a stopped vehicle in a tunnel). 	
(Needs #1-12)	Extremely Slow Vehicle	X	 Recorded video shown of an alert when a vehicle was under a pre-designated speed. Alerts are configurable and can be provided for different speed thresholds. FLIR notes: Underspeed = below a threshold Speed drop = percentage slower than average speed at the moment Overspeed = is supported with setting a maximum threshold. 	
	Congestion/ Slow Traffic	X	 It was noted that there are 5 categories for level of service (LOS) that are based on speed and 20% occupancy. This was not demonstrated. LOS can be looked at by lane and by cross section. 	
	Non-vehicle object or entity (e.g., debris, pedestrian, animal)	\boxtimes	 Recorded video shown of alerts provided for a fallen object and a pedestrian. It was noted that FLIR products can detect animals but wasn't demonstrated. Thermal cameras provide a 24-hour detection solution for example to identify a pedestrian, even in night/dark conditions. 	
	Queue (Location of front and back	\boxtimes	 It was noted that alerts can be provided for queue length, but it was not demonstrated. FLIR notes: Queue = level of service, not queue length 	

	of traffic		• Set beginning and end to arrive at length, but EUP door not	
			 Set beginning and end to arrive at length, but FLIK does not count vehicles in the queue at this time. 	
	queue) Wrong-Way Vehicle		 Recorded video shown of a wrong way alert in Arizona for mainline detection and a combined mainline and exit ramp detection. If a wrong-way driver is detected there are many ways to alert drivers depending on the location and system chosen (e.g., warn drivers on DMS of wrong-way driver, turn ramp meters to constant red to prevent vehicles from entering, alert the wrong way driver through signage if they are entering the wrong direction). The University of South Florida prepared a report that tested and evaluated the accuracy of wrong-way driving (100%), stopped vehicles (94.3%), and pedestrian detection (100%) of FLIR AID: Testing and Evaluation of Thermal Camera-based and Video-analytic Systems on Wrong-Way Driving, Stopped Vehicles, and Pedestrians (October 2019) 	
	Extreme Vehicle Speed	\boxtimes	 Alerts can be provided for speed that is under or over a pre- designated value, or a sudden drop in speed. Speed is configurable (e.g., alert for a vehicle going from 70 mph to 35 mph). Recorded video was not shown detecting extreme vehicle speed. FLIR notes: Speeding is not a supported function. FLIR does not indicate speed for law enforcement purposes. 	
	Comments on tra Researcher no Addition O I O I O I FLIR notes: Individu with AII howeve	<i>iffic incidents detected by the product.</i> <i>iffic incidents detected by the product.</i> <i>inal detection capabilities provided by FLIR:</i> <i>Iraffic flow data: Speed per lane, zone occupancy per lane</i> <i>ndividual vehicle data: time stamp, lane number, individual speed,</i> <i>classification (up to 5 categories), gap time, length, confidence level</i> <i>ntegrated vehicle traffic data: volume, occupancy per lane, average speed,</i> <i>neadway, gap time, density, average vehicle length</i> <i>Ramp metering</i> <i>neature at a specific camera aiming that cannot be combined</i> <i>D it is either AID or individual data. Not always or automatically the case,</i> <i>is bet product and the specific camera in design</i>		
Coverage Limits for Detection (Needs	Describe the prod view, detection c Researcher no	product's coverage area (e.g., all lanes of traffic, roadway shoulders, field of on coverage distance). r notes from demonstration:		
#5,6,8,13)	One vent vendor u	vendor uses a 50-foot detection coverage for wrong-way detection. Another dor uses longer distances that FLIR accommodates.		

	 Mounting height of cameras is typ way detection, but often greater h requirements. FLIR notes: Max detection range for stopped Max detection range for debris = Max detection range for pedestri 	vehicle 10x ca ans = 1	between 17 feet and 22 feet for wrong are involved depending on the distance e = 20x cam height (limited to 1000ft) mera height (limited to 175ft) .5x camera height (limited to 275ft)			
Detection	Detection is functional in:		Researcher notes from demonstration:			
Environment (Needs #14-17)	All lighting conditions (daylight, low light, dark)	pedestrian thermal camera detection during low light with recorded video.				
	 All weather conditions 	\mathbf{X}	Dense fog may create an issue.			
	 Low visibility not caused by weather events (e.g., smoke) 	X	Smoke and fire detection demonstrated in a tunnel through recorded video. Thermal cameras are used for fire, optical cameras are used for smoke detection.			
	 All traffic conditions (free-flowing to extreme congestion) 	\boxtimes				
	Provide any additional details about the de	etectio	n environment.			
	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
	 Salt, spray, and dirt are not an iss 	ue wit	h the cameras.			
	Cold weather depends on the sensor platform. ELIP notes:					
	 FLIR features/functionality hold regardless of traffic conditions. 					
Alerts/Displays and Configuration						
False Alerts	Demonstrate and discuss the product's ability to minimize false alerts.					
(Need #18)	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
	FLIR understands that DOT TMC of the second se	operato	ors will not pay attention if AID systems			
	provide too many faise alarms.	alarta	compared to other detection methods			
	Inermai images provide less faise ELIB notes:	e alerts	compared to other detection methods.			
	Nothing additional.					
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,					
Notifications (Need #19)	How are alerts provided to TMC operators or other users when an incident is detected? How can notifications be customized (e.g., email, text) for each recipient?					
	Researcher notes from demonstration:	ما م به م	tion was continued on the upperided video			
	 During the demonstration when a an alert popped up on the screen 	of the	user interface			
	FLIR notes:	or the				
	• Via our JSON API events can be p	ushed ⁻	to third party systems.			
	 Optional we have OPC UA server plug in or can discuss alternative integration methods. 					

Operator	This product allows users to:	Researcher notes from demonstration:	
Support and	Validate or dismiss incidents as		
Configuration	they are received.		
(Needs #20-31)	 Configure incident alerts and displays uniquely for each individual user. 	\boxtimes	
	 Turn on and off alerts for each incident type. 	\boxtimes	
	 Turn on and off alerts by roadway geometry (e.g., turn off shoulder alerts) and location (e.g., designate typical versus atypical traffic queues). 	\boxtimes	
	 Configure the duration from incident detection to incident alert. 	\boxtimes	The duration is configurable for an alert notifying an operator (e.g., typically between 5 and 10 seconds for a stopped vehicle, less than 5 seconds for a stopped vehicle in a tunnel).
	 Configure speed thresholds for detecting congestion or slow traffic. 	X	Alerts can be provided for speed that is under, speed that is over, or a sudden drop in speed. Speed is configurable (e.g., alert for a vehicle going from 70 mph to 35 mph).
	 Configure thresholds for locating start/head and end/tail of traffic queues. 	\boxtimes	
	 Configure incident alerts in real- time and by pre-determined parameters. 	\boxtimes	
	 Prioritize alerts and allow real time filtering. 	\boxtimes	
	 Real-time information about incident timelines. 	\boxtimes	
	 Re-classify incident events to change their priority level over time 	\boxtimes	
	 Other decision support features (please expension) Researcher notes from demonstration: Nothing additional. FLIR notes: Event notification is configurable True/false is optional available 		
Time to Detection (Need #32)	 What is the amount of time elapsed from it Researcher notes from demonstration: The time from incident occurrence FLIR notes: The following reflect a typical insta 	nciden e to det allation	t occurrence to detection? tection is configurable. . There is a programmable range.

	 Stopped vehicle <10 sec
	• Debris < 15 sec
	• Pedestrian < 5 sec
	\circ Oueue < 10 sec
	$\bigcirc Wrong way < 5 sec$
Latency of	Comment on the latency of communicating alerts to TMC operators or other users, if
Detection to	applicable.
Alert	Researcher notes from demonstration:
(Need #33)	Nothing additional.
	FLIR notes:
	• On a good reliable communication network latency should be non-existing.
	Integration with Agency Systems and Practices
Use of Agency	Does the system utilize existing DOT-owned equipment to perform detections? If yes, how?
Equipment	If no, what equipment is used and where is it housed?
(Need #34)	Researcher notes from demonstration:
	 FLIR can work with legacy equipment through a VIP-HD card, however the
	performance will not be as high.
	• FLIR FLUX Servers are used as a middleware (does not run the analytics) to store
	data and events, images and image sequences. FLUX can interface with existing
	servers.
	• After 250 smart sensors (cameras) then requires a different server from the basic
	architecture configuration.
Installation	What is the installation/integration process?
and	Researcher notes from demonstration:
Integration	• Currently FLIR AID installations are on highways, tunnels, and bridges to provide
(Needs #35,36,	TMC operators with actionable information and provide decisions support.
40,42)	• FLIR support includes onsite training or remote training and design tools to
	determine the best location and mounting options for the best coverage.
	FLIR notes:
	 Need to get full details of the existing equipment and the camera locations as
	those are key for a good performing system.
	How can the product be integrated with agency systems such as Advanced Traffic
	Management Software (ATMS)?
	Researcher notes from demonstration:
	 Not discussed during the demonstration.
	FLIR notes:
	• FLIR provides free and public rest API's for integration into ATMS and have done so
	for various systems such as FL Sunguide for example.
	What physical space is required at agency facilities for equipment and data storage?
	Researcher notes from demonstration:
	Extra conversion not used on the back and as in exhibits over thing is here as in
	 Extra servers are not used on the back end or in cabinets, everything is happening "at the odgo" with dodiested pressessing.
1	at the edge with dedicated processing.

	 FLIR notes: Only the servers (1 per 250 channels), by default we use 19" rack mount 1U model. In case of legacy cameras (existing video equipment/installed) to be added, we require detector rack = 19" rack mount 3U per 8 channels. <i>If applicable, how is storage and periodic purging of video handled?</i> Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. FLIR notes: We allocate x GB of storage FIFO principle and/or storage max duration.
Calibration (Need #37-39)	Describe how the system is pre-calibrated by the vendor prior to agency deployment, any ongoing calibration needs, and self-calibration capabilities. Researcher notes from demonstration: • Not discussed during the demonstration. FLIR notes: • Calibration is done during commissioning as part of the start-up.
Health Monitoring (Need #41)	Describe how the product monitors the operability of its components and field equipment. Researcher notes from demonstration: • FLIR technical and health monitoring includes: • No video present • Reboot of sensor • Configuration speed • Camera movement • Communication error • Image quality monitoring • Device temperature monitoring FLIR notes: • Nothing additional.
	Use by Transportation Agencies / Case Studies
List the transport links to case stud Researcher no 32 states FLIR notes: AID also	tation agencies (and contacts if available) that currently use your AID product. Provide web lies or other documentation featuring agency use of the product. otes from demonstration: s/provinces use FLIR for AID including Arizona and Florida.
	Other Product Highlights
Describe any add Researcher no • There a mount a • Hi • Th	litional product highlights if not previously noted. otes from demonstration: re 3 different cameras with different capabilities used for AID. All FLIR AID systems are fixed and do not perform AID functionality with Pan/Tilt/Zoom. igh-definition (visual) camera mermal camera

- Lower cost, lower false detections, low missed detections, low maintenance (solid state and can go a long time without cleaning).
- Do not use windshield wipers. There are heaters onboard (the lens itself allows heat to pass back and forth).
- Can detect electric vehicles.
- Hybrid visual camera and thermal camera together
- The overall cost for various camera types is similar. For example, a thermal camera may be more expensive upfront although the maintenance is less and fewer are needed compared to a high-definition camera.

FLIR notes:

Vendor	Navtech Radar			
Website	https://navtechradar.com/			
Contacts	Dan Flynn (<u>dan@sri-radar.com</u>), Seb Baucutt (<u>sebastian.baucutt@navtechradar.com</u>), Shayan Afshar (<u>shayan.afshar@navtechradar.com</u>), Kieron Parker (kieron.parker@navtechradar.com)			
Webinar Demonstration	May 18, 2021			
			Product Overview	
Brief overview of	how the product of	detec	ts traffic incidents (3-4 sentences):	
Researcher no	otes from demonst	ratio	n:	
Navtech	provides a 360 de	gree	rotating, Frequency-Modulated Continuous Wave (FMCW) "spinning"	
radar teo	chnology that can d	detec	t moving objects and stopped objects.	
 At the er can be d 	of last year, Nav	rech	deployed a new frequency (35 GHz) of radar for use in the U.S. that	
Navtech Rada	r notes:	•		
The rada	r range resolution	is 17	cm, allowing detection of objects as small as 50cm x 50cm x 50cm.	
stopped	or moving.	15 17		
The Clear	rWay application u	uses d	classification and area specific rules to distinguish an incident from	
normal a	ctivity, and then re	espoi	nd to it.	
	Detec	tion	Capabilities, Coverage and Environment	
Traffic	Incident Type	9	Researcher notes from demonstration	
Incidents	Stopped	\mathbf{X}	• Provided a video showing the capability of detecting a stopped	
Detected	Vehicle		vehicle.	
Detects	Extremely Slow	\mathbf{X}	 Provided a video showing the capability of detecting a slow 	
presence of	Venicle Congostion (venicie.	
(Needs #1-12)	Slow Traffic	\boxtimes	Noted capability, not demonstrated.	
	Non-vehicle object or entity (e.g., debris, pedestrian, animal)	X	Noted capability, not demonstrated.	
	Queue (Location of front and back of traffic queue)	\boxtimes	• Noted capability, not demonstrated.	
	Wrong-Way Vehicle	\boxtimes	Noted capability, not demonstrated.	
	Extreme Vehicle Speed	\boxtimes	Noted capability, not demonstrated.	
	Comments on tro	iffic i	ncidents detected by the product.	
	Researcher notes from demonstration:			

	Other detection capabilities include: vehicle counts and classification, situational awareness, and hard shoulder monitoring.						
	 Navtech Radar notes: The videos demonstrated show the ability of the system to generate alerts based on classification, location, speed, and direction. Other videos are available showing how these abilities are applied to the use cases not demonstrated. 						
Coverage Limits for Detection (Needs #5,6,8,13)	 Describe the product's coverage area (e.g., all lanes of traffic, roadway shoulders, field of view, detection coverage distance). Researcher notes from demonstration: Coverage area is configurable. For continuous coverage, approximately 300-500 meter spacing is needed. Coverage for pedestrian detection would be at the lower end of this range. There are no issues with radar units confilcting with each other when spaced in series because of the FMCW processing. Navtech Radar notes: The field of view is 360° which allows it to cover all lanes of multiple roadways. Roadways with turns are still covered to the extent that the radar has line of sight view. 						
Detection	Detection is functional in:		Researcher notes from demonstration:				
Conditions/ Environment	 All lighting conditions (daylight, low light, dark) 	X	Noted capability, not demonstrated.				
(Needs #14-17)	All weather conditions	X	Noted capability, not demonstrated.				
	 Low visibility not caused by weather events (e.g., smoke) 	\boxtimes	Noted capability, not demonstrated.				
	 All traffic conditions (free-flowing to extreme congestion) 	\boxtimes	Noted capability, not demonstrated.				
	 Provide any additional details about the detection environment. Researcher notes from demonstration: Nothing additional. Navtech Radar notes: Radar is preferred over optical, thermal, and lidar in these conditions because RF energy is not affected by weather or lighting conditions. 						
	Alerts/Displays and Co	onfigur	ation				
False Alerts (Need #18)	 Demonstrate and discuss the product's ability to minimize false alerts. Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during demonstration. Navtech Radar notes: System tuning to minimize false alerts is part of the service provided by the 						
	Navtech team.						

Notifications (Need #19)	 The tuning includes optimizing the configuring the user defined rules If new sources of false alerts mate out. How are alerts provided to TMC operators How can notifications be customized (e.g., Researcher notes from demonstration: Alarm is displayed on user display Notifications beyond user display Notifications beyond user display Navtech Radar notes: The ClearWay application support response to incidents. 	e proce to relia erialize, or othe email, platfor not dis s config	ssing of the raw radar data and ably alert only when desired. the tuning can be updated to filter them er users when an incident is detected? text) for each recipient? m. cussed. gurable email and text messaging as the
	 ClearWay also allows alarm integr 	ation w	vith other systems as required.
Operator	This product allows users to:		Researcher notes from demonstration:
Support and Configuration	 Validate or dismiss incidents as they are received. 	\boxtimes	-
(Needs #20-31)	 Configure incident alerts and displays uniquely for each individual user. 	\boxtimes	Noted capability.
	 Turn on and off alerts for each incident type. 	X	Noted capability.
	 Turn on and off alerts by roadway geometry (e.g., turn off shoulder alerts) and location (e.g., designate typical versus atypical traffic queues). 		Noted capability.
	 Configure the duration from incident detection to incident alert. 	\boxtimes	Noted capability.
	 Configure speed thresholds for detecting congestion or slow traffic. 	\boxtimes	Noted capability.
	 Configure thresholds for locating start/head and end/tail of traffic queues. 	\boxtimes	Queue settings are on section by section basis; users can see head and end of queue as well as query the database to provide a timeline.
	 Configure incident alerts in real- time and by pre-determined parameters. 	\boxtimes	-
	Prioritize alerts and allow real time filtering.	\boxtimes	-
	 Real-time information about incident timelines. 	\boxtimes	-
	 Re-classify incident events to change their priority level over time 	\boxtimes	-

	Other decision support features (please explain):		
	Researcher notes from demonstration:		
	Alerts are configurable.		
	 Navtech's ClearWay Software consumes raw data, processes the data, and then applies a tracking algorithm to track and classify vehicles. Rules are configured by users and if a rule is broken, an alarm is generated. The user interface was shown demonstrating an alarm when a rule was broken. 		
	Users can also configure: lane information, vehicle size (truck or small vehicle)		
	 The Alarms or Alerts that were demonstrated correspond to Incidents, and in this way the Incidents are validated or dismissed. Multiple plant Reafiles can be active demonstrated corresponditions to readily and in the second seco		
	 Multiple alert Profiles can be set up depending on conditions to rapidly reconfigure alarm settings if required. 		
	 These Profiles can be selected in in a pull-down menu by the operators, allowing them to configure and prioritize alerts in real-time. 		
	• Situational awareness gives clear information on incident in real time, and alarm summary pages provide real-time information about incident timelines		
	 Outside of using profiles to select different incident priority sets, changing event priority levels over time is currently a manual configuration. 		
Time to	What is the amount of time elansed from incident occurrence to detection?		
Detection	Researcher notes from demonstration:		
(Need #32)	• This is configurable, detects within 10 seconds.		
	Navtech Radar notes:		
	• This timing is also configurable by area and type of incident, so that higher priority		
	incidents can detect and report faster if desired.		
Latency of	Comment on the latency of communicating alerts to TMC operators or other users, if		
Detection to	applicable. Researcher notes from demonstration:		
(Need #33)	Not discussed during the demonstration		
(11000)	Navtech Radar notes:		
	Alerts are triggered in near real-time after the conditions of the incident rule are		
	true.		
	 Alerts at the TMC operator screen are near instantaneous, and alerts reported by 		
	text or email will have the latencies of those mechanisms.		
	Integration with Agency Systems and Dresting		
	Integration with Agency Systems and Practices		
Use of Agency	Does the system utilize existing DOT-owned equipment to perform detections? If yes, how?		
(Need #34)	Besearcher notes from demonstration:		
	The system typically uses existing infrastructure. If a communications network is		
	not available, a small box is installed for storing communications.		
	Navtech Radar notes:		

	 The existing infrastructure typically used includes a mounting location, power, and network. Additional sensors can optionally be used as relay inputs, and DOT equipment can be controlled as a response to rules using relay outputs. In the server room, the system typically uses DOT power, UPS, network, and rack space.
Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 What is the installation/integration process? Researcher notes from demonstration: A project delivery team is available for support. User training is typically a few hours in duration. System administrator training is a full day or more. Navtech Radar notes: A local electrical contractor is typically used for physical and electrical installation. The Navtech team supports the installation and then performs commissioning and integration.
	 How can the product be integrated with agency systems such as Advanced Traffic Management Software (ATMS)? Researcher notes from demonstration: Can be integrated through an API. Navtech Radar notes: ClearWay uses the concept of Plugins to accommodate both incoming data from other sensors and systems and outgoing data and responses to incidents. The Plugins have an existing template using proven design patterns, reducing implementation time and risk.
	 What physical space is required at agency facilities for equipment and data storage? Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. Navtech Radar notes: Rack space for the ClearWay server varies by the number of sensors but is typically 4U for a server and a rack mounted UPS if required. In the Operations Center, the ClearWay application can be run on existing workstations, but agencies typically prefer one or two dedicated workstations.
	If applicable, how is storage and periodic purging of video handled? Researcher notes from demonstration: • N/A Navtech Radar notes: • N/A
Calibration (Need #37-39)	Describe how the system is pre-calibrated by the vendor prior to agency deployment, any ongoing calibration needs, and self-calibration capabilities. Researcher notes from demonstration:

Health Monitoring (Need #41)	 Support is provided onsite or remotely to set up and calibrate the system to the required specifications. Navtech Radar notes: The background image can be by Google Maps provided by Navtech, or a background image can be provided by agency if preferred. Describe how the product monitors the operability of its components and field equipment. Researcher notes from demonstration: Navtech Radar offers health monitoring for its systems. Navtech Radar notes: The ClearWay system has substantial equipment health monitoring and reporting capabilities. System logs, warnings, and alarms are recorded in the database for troubleshooting and trend analysis. If provided VPN access, Navtech performs regular system checks to confirm 		
	equipment health and reduce the chance of failures.		
	Use by Transportation Agencies / Case Studies		
 List the transportation agencies (and contacts if available) that currently use your AID product. Provide web links to case studies or other documentation featuring agency use of the product. Researcher notes from demonstration: City of Cocoa Beach, Florida DOT (included detection of vehicles and pedestrians at a traffic signal) Texas DOT United Kingdom Baltimore, MA Navtech Radar notes: ClearWay is being widely deployed in Europe and Asia, and references are available on a case by case basis. Following are links to case studies on the Navtech website: M25 Motorway - Navtech Radar E4 Motorway - Navtech Radar Bømlafjord Tunnel - Navtech Radar Mastrafjord - Navtech Radar 			
Other Product Highlights			
 Researcher no Navtech clean len the roads Future in accident Navtech Rada ClearWay zoom in 	 Alternational product inginights if not previously noted. Anter a state of the previously noted. Radar's automated incident detection system is low maintenance, as there is not a need to ses, and road closures are not needed to perform maintainance since the radar is placed on side. Inovations include ITS, Situational Awareness 2, CAV, Close Following, Beyond the Horizon, prediction and prevention, intersection monitoring, occupancy monitoring and reporting. If notes: If the previously noted. If the previously noted. 		

- If equipped with a camera, ClearWay has a "Look Here" feature that allows the operator to zoom the camera to a point by clicking on the map.
- ClearWay has numerous convenience features for managing displays and data that allow operators to gain the most value from the system in the shortest time.
- ClearWay has a comprehensive data set available for integration with ATMS and other systems for operations, trending, and analysis.
| Vendor | OptaSense | | | | |
|--|---|---|--|--|--|
| Website | https://www.opt | asen | se.com/ | | |
| Contacts | Paul Cooper (pau | ıl.coc | pper@optasense.com) | | |
| Webinar
Demonstration | May 11, 2021 | | | | |
| | Product Overview | | | | |
| Brief overview of
Researcher no
The Opt
(single u
The sen
point).
OptaSer
The fibe
along th
deliver a
The Opt
congest
OptaSense notes
Nothing | how the product of
the product of
the set of the product of
the product of the product of the product of
the product of the product of the product of the product of
the product of the product of th | detec
ratio
nitor
d) int
orodu
onne
chnol
d roa
ow ir
etects
ents o | ts traffic incidents (3-4 sentences):
n:
ing Solution (TMS) converts existing roadside optical fiber cable
o a traffic sensor.
Inct is up to 50 miles (25 miles in each direction from installation
ected to dark fiber on the roadside.
ogy creates an array of intelligent sensors and detects passing traffic
d. Each virtual sensor uses a combination of noise and vibration to
indicators.
s "consequences of vehicle incidents e.g., arising queue and
other AID solutions. | | |
| | Detection Canabilities, Coverage and Environment | | | | |
| Traffic | Incident Type | 2 | Researcher notes from demonstration | | |
| Incidents
Detected | Stopped
Vehicle | | - | | |
| Detects
presence of | Extremely Slow
Vehicle | | - | | |
| these incidents
(Needs #1-12) | Congestion/
Slow Traffic | \boxtimes | Noted that OptaSense can pinpoint where traffic begins to slow
and congestion and comes to halt to an accuracy of 165 feet/50
meters. In Europe, the OptaSense data is being used to control DMS for
communicating VSL during congestion. | | |
| | Non-vehicle
object or entity
(e.g., debris,
pedestrian,
animal) | | - | | |
| | Queue
(Location of
front and back
of traffic
queue) | \boxtimes | Noted that OptaSense can detect the head of queue and
dynamically track the tail of the queue to an accuracy of 165
feet/50 meters. | | |
| | Vehicle | | - | | |

	Extreme					
	Comments on traffic incidents detected	Comments on traffic incidents detected by the product.				
	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
	Other detection capabilities:					
	 Average speed 					
	 Journey times / travel times 					
	 Traffic counts (available at crossings where the traffic is running 					
	perpendicular to the fib	er)				
	 Flow rates (available at the fiber) 	crossings	where the traffic is running perpendicular			
	OptaSapsa potos:					
	Nothing additional					
Coverage	Describe the product's coverage area (e.	g., all lar	nes of traffic, roadway shoulders, field of			
Limits for	view, detection coverage distance).					
Detection	Researcher notes from demonstratio	n:				
(Needs	The product does not detect in	dividual	vehicles. The product is well-suited for			
#5,6,8,13)	deployment on major routes w	ith multi	-lane highways. Monitors both directions			
	of traffic with connection to on	e fiber o	ptic cable.			
	Average speed is available at 1	55 ft inte	rvais, updated every second.			
	OptaSense Notes:					
	 The product does "detect" individual vehicle but aggregates information from multiple vehicles to provide speed, queue, congestion information. Future 					
	applications based on single vehicle detection are being investigated					
Detection	Detection is functional in:		Researcher notes from demonstration:			
Conditions/	All lighting conditions (daylight, low					
Environment	light, dark)	X				
(Needs #14-17)	All weather conditions	\mathbf{X}				
	 Low visibility not caused by 					
	weather events (e.g., smoke)					
	All traffic conditions (free-flowing		-			
	to extreme congestion)					
	Provide any additional details about the	detectio	n environment.			
	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
	The liber optic cable is buried; conditions	Inereiore	e it works in all weather and lighting			
	Equipment operates in extreme	hoat an	d cold/barsh weather conditions			
	OntaSense Notes:	e neat an				
	Equipment is installed away from	m roads	ide in existing equipment rooms or similar			
	where there is environmental of	ontrol. p	ower. access to fiber etc.			
		- 7 -				
	Alerts/Displays and	Configur	ation			
False Alerts	Demonstrate and discuss the product's a	ibility to	minimize false alerts.			
(Need #18)	Researcher notes from demonstratio	n:				

Notifications (Need #19)	 The accuracy was validated for a rate, 100% detection, 3.1 seconds OptaSense notes: Accuracy against common point s validated. How are alerts provided to TMC operators How can notifications be customized (e.g., Researcher notes from demonstration: Sends alerts or messages to TMC queues are occurring. OptaSense notes: Nothing additional. 	highwa s time sensors or oth email, operat	ay deployment in England: 0 false alarm to detection, availability 100%. a such a loops, microwave etc. also er users when an incident is detected? text) for each recipient? cors, indicating where congestion and
Operator	This product allows users to:		Researcher notes from demonstration:
Support and Configuration	Validate or dismiss incidents as they are received.		Not discussed during demonstration.
(Needs #20-31)	 Configure incident alerts and displays uniquely for each individual user. 		Not discussed during demonstration.
	 Turn on and off alerts for each incident type. 		Not discussed during demonstration.
	 Turn on and off alerts by roadway geometry (e.g., turn off shoulder alerts) and location (e.g., designate typical versus atypical traffic queues). 		Not discussed during demonstration.
	 Configure the duration from incident detection to incident alert. 		Not discussed during demonstration.
	• Configure speed thresholds for detecting congestion or slow traffic.	\boxtimes	Notification criteria is set in conjunction with the customer (e.g. levels of congestion).
	 Configure thresholds for locating start/head and end/tail of traffic queues. 		Not discussed during demonstration.
	 Configure incident alerts in real- time and by pre-determined parameters. 		Not discussed during demonstration.
	 Prioritize alerts and allow real time filtering. 		Not discussed during demonstration.
	 Real-time information about incident timelines. 		Not discussed during demonstration.
	Re-classify incident events to change their priority level over time		Not discussed during demonstration.
	Other decision support features (please ex Researcher notes from demonstration: • Nothing additional.	plain):	

	OptaSense notes:
	Nothing additional.
Time to	What is the amount of time elapsed from incident occurrence to detection?
Detection	Researcher notes from demonstration:
(Need #32)	It is near instantaneous.
	OptaSense notes:
	Nothing additional.
Latency of	Comment on the latency of communicating alerts to TMC operators or other users, if
Detection to	applicable.
Alert	Researcher notes from demonstration:
(Need #33)	Detection is near instantaneous.
	OptaSense notes:
	Nothing additional.
	Integration with Agency Systems and Practices
Use of Agency	Does the system utilize existing DOT-owned equipment to perform detections? If yes, how?
Equipment	If no, what equipment is used and where is it housed?
(Need #34)	Researcher notes from demonstration:
	• In-place dark fiber is used along the roadside.
	OptaSense notes:
	Nothing additional.
Installation	What is the installation/integration process?
and	Researcher notes from demonstration:
Integration	 It is a simple and rapid installation; no road closures are needed.
(Needs #35,36,	OptaSense notes:
40,42)	Nothing additional.
	How can the product be integrated with agency systems such as Advanced Traffic
	Management Software (ATMS)?
	Researcher notes from demonstration:
	The OptaSense graphical interface is available, but the data may also be
	integrated with the user's interface of choice (e.g., ATMS). This is achieved
	through an API protocol.
	Optasense notes:
	Nothing additional.
	What physical space is required at agency facilities for equipment and data storage?
	Researcher notes from demonstration:
	• Equipment is located in a building away from the roadside, where available
	racking space (19-inch rack with 10 to 12 spacing) exists. Each installation can
	cover up to 50 miles (25 miles in either direction).
	OptaSense notes:
	 Equipment is installed every 50 miles. This converts the fiber into an array of
	"virtual" speed sensors every 165 feet/50 meters.
	If applicable, how is storage and periodic purging of video handled?

	Researcher notes from demonstration:
	• N/A
	OptaSense notes:
	Nothing additional.
Calibration (Need #37-39)	 Describe how the system is pre-calibrated by the vendor prior to agency deployment, any ongoing calibration needs, and self-calibration capabilities. Researcher notes from demonstration: Once the system is installed it does not need periodic calibration. OptaSense notes: Nothing additional
	• Nothing additional.
Health Monitoring (Need #41)	 Describe how the product monitors the operability of its components and field equipment. Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. OptaSense notes: Equipment status is remotely monitored to ensure high availability.
	Use by Transportation Agencies / Case Studies
Inks to case stud Researcher nd North D S Georgia G Utah D Nevada Florida New Zea Rijkswa Traffikw OptaSense no Nothing	Action agencies (and contacts i) available) that currently use your Alb product. Provide web lies or other documentation featuring agency use of the product. action demonstration: akota DOT NDDOT Case study on OptaSense website: <u>https://optasense.com/case-study-optasense- raffic-monitoring-solution-deployed-on-us-highway/</u> DOT High Resolution Traffic Monitoring at the Speed of Light (Roads and Bridges, July 2020) <u>https://www.roadsbridges.com/high-resolution-traffic-monitoring-speed-light</u> SADOT Case Study on OptaSense website: <u>https://www.optasense.com/case-study-optasense- toptasense-traffic-monitoring-solution-deployed-on-interstate-20-atlanta/</u> DT DOT DOT DOT DOT DOT corr aland Transport Agency (NZTA) terstaat (Amsterdam, The Netherlands) erket (Stockholm, Sweden) tes: additional.
	Other Product Highlights
Describe any add Researcher no • Fiber op work ha such as	<i>litional product highlights if not previously noted.</i> otes from demonstration: otic sensing in an emerging technology beginning only 4 or 5 years ago. However, a lot of is been done to validate the data using comparisons to data generated by in-place sensors inductive loops or radar.

• Operational costs are very low compared to point detection solutions.

OptaSense notes:

• Operational life cycle costs are an order of magnitude lower than point sensors and comparable to the full cost of probe data sources.

Vendor	TrafficVision			
Website	http://www.trafficvision.com/			
Contacts	Ray Keys (<u>raykeys@trafficvision.com</u>), Clem Lau (<u>clem@omnibond.com</u>), Josh Kissel (<u>josh@trafficvision.com</u>)			
Webinar Demonstration	June 8, 2021			
Product Overview				
Brief overview of Researcher no Uses pa immedia Uses fix cloud or TrafficVision r Patente both on AutoLea camera congest	<i>how the product of</i> otes from demonst tented video detect ate notification of ed or PTZ cameras on-premise) from otes: d video incident do premise or in the urn mode provides views. AutoLearn ion data and requi	detec ratio ction incide , con ager etect clouc basic mode res n	 ts traffic incidents (3-4 sentences): n: technology, leveraging existing cameras to provide agency ents. necting to existing or new cameras. Processes video streams (in the necy cameras to provide real-time detection and data collection. ion technology is server agnostic and can process live video streams d. c AID capabilities "out of the box" without need for calibration of e is an automatic method of obtaining some traffic incident and o camera calibration. 	
	Detec	tion	Capabilities, Coverage and Environment	
Traffic	Incident Type Researcher notes from demonstration			
Incidents Detected	Stopped Vehicle	\boxtimes	Demonstrated.	
Detects presence of	Extremely Slow Vehicle	\boxtimes	Demonstrated.	
these incidents (Needs #1-12)	Congestion/ Slow Traffic	\boxtimes	Demonstrated.	
	Non-vehicle object or entity (e.g., debris, pedestrian, animal)	\boxtimes	Demonstrated.	
	Queue (Location of front and back		Do not have start/end of queue detection.	

	of traffic					
	queue)					
	Wrong-Way Vehicle	☑ Demonstrated.				
	Extreme Vehicle Speed	Tracked in data o	collected,	but no alert.		
	Comments on tra	ffic incidents detected	by the pr	oduct.		
	Researcher no	tes from demonstratio	n:			
	Other de	etections/data collecte	d include	speed, flow rate, and occupancy.		
	TrafficVision n	otes:				
	In additi (4 classe	on to the data collecte	d as note	d above, Per Vehicle Data – classification		
	as a CSV	s + unidentined suppo	rteu) anu	other data can be conected and exported		
Coverage	Describe the proc	luct's coverage area (e	.g., all lar	nes of traffic, roadway shoulders, field of		
Limits for	view, detection co	overage distance).				
Detection	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
(Needs	• TrafficVision adapts its software to the camera view and then works with the TMC					
#5,6,8,13)	operators to get the most out of the cameras.					
	IrafficVision notes:					
	 If the DOT chooses to have cameras along a certain stretch of highway then TrafficVision can provide continuous 24/7/365 AID coverage for that length of 					
	 highway using those camera feeds. TrafficVision's coverage area can include both directions of travel from one 					
	camera providing it has sufficient view.					
Detection	Data ati an in fun at					
Detection				Description of the formula of the second second second		
Canditianal	Detection is junct			Researcher notes from demonstration:		
Conditions/				 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty samera long 		
Conditions/ Environment				 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight low light and 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	All lighting c	onditions (daylight, lov	v	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	 All lighting c light, dark) 	onditions (daylight, lov	v	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. If it is completely dark, there is 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	All lighting c light, dark)	onditions (daylight, lov	v 🖂	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. If it is completely dark, there is nothing to see and unable to detect 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	All lighting c light, dark)	onditions (daylight, lov	v 🖂	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. If it is completely dark, there is nothing to see and unable to detect since it is a vision-based system. 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	All lighting control light, dark)	onditions (daylight, lov	v 🖂	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. If it is completely dark, there is nothing to see and unable to detect since it is a vision-based system. Demonstrated detections in rain, detections 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	All lighting constraints (All light, dark)	onditions (daylight, lov	V 🖂	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. If it is completely dark, there is nothing to see and unable to detect since it is a vision-based system. Demonstrated detections in rain, also with rain drops on camera. 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	 All lighting collight, dark) All weather of 	onditions (daylight, lov	v 🖂	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. If it is completely dark, there is nothing to see and unable to detect since it is a vision-based system. Demonstrated detections in rain, also with rain drops on camera. Demonstrated detection in snowy condition snow falling ice on lens 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	 All lighting collight, dark) All weather of 	onditions (daylight, lov	v 🖂	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. If it is completely dark, there is nothing to see and unable to detect since it is a vision-based system. Demonstrated detections in rain, also with rain drops on camera. Demonstrated detection in snowy condition, snow falling, ice on lens, white/snowy view. 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	 All lighting collight, dark) All weather of 	onditions (daylight, lov	v 🖂	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. If it is completely dark, there is nothing to see and unable to detect since it is a vision-based system. Demonstrated detections in rain, also with rain drops on camera. Demonstrated detection in snowy condition, snow falling, ice on lens, white/snowy view. Showed detection in foggy 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	 All lighting c light, dark) All weather of Low visibility 	onditions (daylight, lov conditions	v 🖂	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. If it is completely dark, there is nothing to see and unable to detect since it is a vision-based system. Demonstrated detections in rain, also with rain drops on camera. Demonstrated detection in snowy condition, snow falling, ice on lens, white/snowy view. Showed detection in foggy conditions. 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	 All lighting collight, dark) All weather of Low visibility weather even 	onditions (daylight, lov conditions v not caused by ints (e.g., smoke)	v ⊠ ⊠	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. If it is completely dark, there is nothing to see and unable to detect since it is a vision-based system. Demonstrated detections in rain, also with rain drops on camera. Demonstrated detection in snowy condition, snow falling, ice on lens, white/snowy view. Showed detection in foggy conditions. Showed detection with smoke in a 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	 All lighting c light, dark) All weather of Low visibility weather even 	onditions (daylight, lov conditions / not caused by nts (e.g., smoke)	v ⊠ ⊠	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. If it is completely dark, there is nothing to see and unable to detect since it is a vision-based system. Demonstrated detections in rain, also with rain drops on camera. Demonstrated detection in snowy condition, snow falling, ice on lens, white/snowy view. Showed detection in foggy conditions. Showed detection with smoke in a tunnel. 		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	 All lighting collight, dark) All weather of Low visibility weather even All traffic collight of the overcement 	onditions (daylight, lov conditions / not caused by ints (e.g., smoke)	v ⊠ ⊠ ⊠	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Showed a detection in a tunnel with a dirty camera lens. Showed daylight, low light, and night detections. If it is completely dark, there is nothing to see and unable to detect since it is a vision-based system. Demonstrated detections in rain, also with rain drops on camera. Demonstrated detection in snowy condition, snow falling, ice on lens, white/snowy view. Showed detection in foggy conditions. Showed detection with smoke in a tunnel. Showed detections of free-flowing and congected situations 		

	Provide any additional details about the detection environment.				
	Researcher notes from demonstration:				
	 Nothing additional. 				
	TrafficVision notes:				
	TrafficVision will work together with the DOT to optimize the camera views and project positions to maximize AID functionality.				
	preset positions to maximize AID	TUNCTIC	phality.		
	 Please note for Need #14. Although preferred TrafficVision can operate 	ate in d	ark conditions but has limited		
	functionality. Under Dark conditi	ons, ba	se incident detection functions such as		
	stopped vehicle and data such as	counti	ng and speeds, are still attainable as		
	TrafficVision technology can trac	k a vehi	cle's head and tail lights. More precise		
	features such as vehicle classifica	tion ar	e heavily dependent on a camera's ideal		
	view and the presence of sufficient	nt amb	ient light. If a higher level of data is		
	technologies such as IR Illuminat	agencie ars the	rmal cameras, etc. TrafficVision allows an		
	agency to use their existing came	ras, ea	ch of which is usable for TrafficVision to		
	varying degrees dependent on ca	imera v	iews and physical conditions.		
	Alerts/Displays and Co	onfigura	ation		
False Alerts	Demonstrate and discuss the product's ab	ility to I	minimize false alerts.		
(Need #18)	Researcher notes from demonstration:				
	Not discussed during demonstration.				
	TrafficVision notes:				
	views minimize direct glare helps to minimize false alerts. Settings allow a user to				
	reduce false alerts on a per came	ra basi	S.		
Notifications	How are alerts provided to TMC operators	or othe	er users when an incident is detected?		
(Need #19)	How can notifications be customized (e.g.,	email,	text) for each recipient?		
	Researcher notes from demonstration:				
	• On-screen alert appears on the camera display in the user interface (yellow box).				
	TrafficVision notes:		il alaut patifications. W/ith the expression		
	IratticVision has the ability to send email alert notifications. With the appropriate amail service these email elects can be sent as text messages as well				
	 In addition to visual alerts within the TrafficVision user interface, users can also 				
	choose to be notified by an audible alert.				
	• TrafficVision can easily integrate	with ar	y ATMS and send alerts via its API.		
Operator	This product allows users to:	T	Researcher notes from demonstration:		
Support and	Validate or dismiss incidents as	\times	Showed incident type, incident		
Configuration	they are received.		cleared by, and reason cleared.		
(Needs #20-31)	Configure incident alerts and		 Trafficvision provides the ability to choose multiple features (a.g. 		
	displays uniquely for each	\boxtimes	pedestrians, stopped vehicle) and		
	individual user.		configurations using a check box,		
			unique to each individual camera.		

Turn on and off aler incident type.	ts for each	•	Demonstrated.
 Turn on and off aler geometry (e.g., turn alerts) and location typical versus atypic queues). 	ts by roadway off shoulder (e.g., designate ⊠ cal traffic	•	Showed that lanes can be configured (e.g., shoulders don't need to be configured to provide detections) Showed that you can configure each camera to be more or less sensitive to detections, speed thresholds for alerting congestion, time of day, day of week rules, etc.
Configure the durat incident detection t	ion from o incident alert. ⊠	•	Demonstrated setting the preferred time to send an alert if a stopped vehicle has been sitting for a pre- set amount of time.
 Configure speed thr detecting congestio 	esholds for ⊠ n or slow traffic.	•	Demonstrated and noted that a scale of 0-100 (slower to higher speed sensitivity) can be selected. Also, users can set speed and duration based thresholds to alert for such things as traffic slowdowns, increase in congestion, etc.
Configure threshold start/head and end, queues.	s for locating /tail of traffic	•	N/A. Does not detect start and end of queues.
 Configure incident a time and by pre-det parameters. 	llerts in real- ermined 🛛 🖾	•	Ability to set rules for time of day and day of week, (pre-determined parameters). Ability to save settings for individual and groups of cameras.
Prioritize alerts and filtering.	allow real time	-	
Real-time information incident timelines.	on about 🛛 🔀	•	Shows historical timelines of incidents.
Re-classify incident change their priority	events to / level over time	-	
Other decision support fee Researcher notes from • TrafficVision soft contraflow). • Historical data: • Demonst for: volut comparis • Demonst have occ	eatures (please explain): n demonstration: tware can be configured trated dashboards (by ca me comparisons, stoppe sons, congestion inciden trated generating month	d for s amera ed inci ts cor nly rep	witching direction of traffic (e.g., a) to view a log of historical activity idents comparisons, slow speed mparisons. ports to show where most incidents

	combination of manufacturer. The TrafficVision system was designed to adapt to
	an agency's existing or new ecosystem so that they can take advantage of today's
	technology and scale as needed - essentially future proofing their investment.
Installation	What is the installation/integration process?
and	Researcher notes from demonstration:
Integration	 Connected to the agency's video feed(s) for installation/integration.
(Needs #35,36,	TrafficVision notes:
40,42)	• The agency camera feeds only need to meet the requirement that they are:
	 Resolution: 240p minimum
	• Framerate: 15 fps minimum
	• Media Encoding: MPEG-4 (e.g., H.264)
	Bitrate: 256 kbps minimum
	• Protocol: RTSP, RTMP, HTTP-nis
	• For processing in the cloud the video feeds need to be accessible in the cloud.
	How can the product be integrated with agona systems such as Advanced Traffic
	Management Coftware (ATMC)2
	Management Software (ATMS)?
	Researcher notes from demonstration:
	Can be integrated into video wall, ATMS, satellite stations and other agency
	equipment.
	Inditicuision notes.
	 Integration noted above is achieved with the use of the Transcrision API. Similarly, the Traffic/licion API can be used to interface to VMS or other systems.
	as required
	What physical space is required at gaency facilities for equipment and data storage?
	Researcher notes from demonstration:
	 Processing of video streams can occur on-premise or in the cloud
	TrafficVision notes:
	Nothing additional.
	If applicable, how is storage and periodic purging of video handled?
	Researcher notes from demonstration:
	 Not discussed during the demonstration.
	TrafficVision notes:
	• Stored incident video can be purged at a time interval defined by the DOT
Calibration	Describe how the system is pre-calibrated by the vendor prior to agency deployment, any
(Need #37-39)	ongoing calibration needs, and self-calibration capabilities.
	Researcher notes from demonstration:
	• PTZ cameras have an auto-calibration feature at the start. One or more "pre-
	sets" can be added to further calibrate.
	TrafficVision notes:
	TrafficVision provides for two modes for analytics for all camera streams:

 traffic incident and congestion data and requires no camera calibration. Preset Mode: requires manual camera calibration, or defining the areas in a
 Preset Mode: requires manual camera calibration, or defining the areas in a
camera's video picture for traffic detection. These detection areas, which are
plotted to scale, are depicted by outlines superimposed over the camera video
Camera view calibration is a 4 step process with on screen instructions shown i
desired.
Health Describe how the product monitors the operability of its components and field equipment.
Monitoring Researcher notes from demonstration:
(Need #41) • Not discussed during the demonstration.
TrafficVision notes:
 TrafficVision technology monitors the usefulness of a cameras stream for
analytics and displays if a stream is active or inactive. Items such as frame rate
and view quality are monitored as well and displayed in the TrafficVision User
Interface.
Use by Transportation Agencies / Case Studies
List the transportation agencies (and contacts if available) that currently use your AID product. Provide web
links to case studies or other documentation featuring agency use of the product.
Researcher notes from demonstration:
Georgia DOT
TrafficVision notes:
 KC Scout <u>http://www.trafficvision.com/kc-scout-case-study</u>
 MTO <u>https://boyd-wilson-myli.squarespace.com/trafficvision-helps-panam-games</u>
• PENNDOT
Pennsylvania Turnpike
New Mexico DOT
Other Product Highlights
Describe any additional product highlights if not previously noted.
Researcher notes from demonstration:
Additional data collection features provided include per lane counts and per direction speed
displayed on a map.
• All the data is downloadable for each camera (csv file). The data will show that a camera was
moved. What incidents have been cleared and by who.
TrafficVision notes:
• TrafficVision enables DOT users to customize the system to external influences for each individual
camera through a "drift tolerance" parameter. Using the drift tolerance, TrafficVision can
 Drift Tolerance and Drift Correction
 Drift tolerance allows you to set a threshold at which the system no longer analyzes the
system in presets mode. If the current camera drift is greater than the tolerance level, the
system will no longer operate in presets mode. When current camera drift is within the
tolerance threshold, you can enable drift correction to enable the system to adjust your
preset to match slight drifts of the camera.
 Drift Correction allows the software to try and correct the calibrated lane lines to continue
getting more robust data. This is useful for cameras that may drift slightly off the calibrate
preset view due to wind and other conditions.

• TrafficVision's "Auto recalibration" after camera movement enables the system to adjust calibration for the adjusted camera view if the new view is within the drift tolerance level of a preset assigned for that camera view.

Vendor	Waycare (Acquir	ed by	[,] Rekor in January 2022)
Website	https://waycaret	ech.c	.com/
Contacts	Paul-Matthew Zamsky (paul.zamsky@waycaretech.com)		
Webinar Demonstration	June 2, 2021		
			Product Overview
Brief overview of Researcher no Waycar traffic m irregula Module roadwa Waycar Aided D data, an Waycar gathere include Aggrega includin Machinu using bo	 Brief overview of how the product detects traffic incidents (3-4 sentences): Researcher notes from demonstration: Waycare is a cloud-based platform that provides artificial intelligence (AI) solutions for proactive traffic management to provide automated incident identification, crash prediction and forecasting, irregular congestion detection, and collaborative tools for faster response. Modules are created for different users such as traffic management, service patrol, first responders, roadway maintenance, and transit agencies. Waycare integrates with a variety of systems through APIs including infrastructure data, Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD), Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL), third-party data, telematics, crowdsource data, and existing ATMS providers. Waycare works with agencies to provide real-time data into vehicles. Connected Vehicle (CV) data is gathered from sensors on vehicles in real time and integrated with Waycare. Data gathered may include fuel levels, braking, air on or off, etc. used to drive insights for the operations. Aggregated data is typically generated by probes that provide traffic speed, volume, etc. along with including individual car data (e.g., location, speed, driver behavior) to enrich the overall dataset. Machine learning algorithms process the ingested data, to teach the Waycare system over time, using both historical data and real time data. 		
 Opensti 	eetiviap (<u>https://v</u>	<u>vww.</u>	openstreetmap.us/) is used as the base map.
	Detec	tion	Capabilities, Coverage and Environment
Traffic	Incident Type	9	Researcher notes from demonstration
Incidents Detected	Stopped Vehicle	\boxtimes	-
Detects presence of	Extremely Slow Vehicle	\boxtimes	• Slow vehicle is detected as an anomaly.
these incidents (Needs #1-12)	Congestion/ Slow Traffic	\boxtimes	Demonstrated on a live system.
	Slow frame Non-vehicle object or entity (e.g., debris, pedestrian, animal)		

	Queue					
	(Location of					
	front and back	\mathbf{X}	Demonstrated	on a liv	ve system.	
	of traffic	_			/	
	queue)					
	Wrong-Wav					
	Vehicle		-			
	Extreme	_				
	Vehicle Speed		-			
	Comments on tro	iffic i	ncidents detected by	the pr	oduct.	
	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
	Other ca	apabi	lities include:			
	0 A	Abano	doned vehicle			
	0 N	/ehic	le on fire			
	o F	Police	e activity			
	0 E	MS				
	 Incident 	s we	re detected 15 minu	tes ear	lier using the CV data from the vehicle	
	compar	ed to	a traditional CAD sy	stem a	nd detected 34% faster than a 911 call,	
	docume	nted	from a case study in	the Ba	iy Area.	
	In south	ern N	Nevada in 2020 using	g Waze	data, an 18% reduction in primary crashes	
	was see	n, an	d 91% of vehicles re	duced 1	cheir speed. This resulted in 16 times	
	return d	n inv	estment (ROI).			
Coverage	Describe the prod	duct's	s coverage area (e a	all lar	pes of traffic roadway shoulders field of	
Limits for	view, detection coverage distance).					
Detection	Researcher no	tes f	rom demonstration:			
(Needs	To have	requ	ired vehicle penetra	tion fo	r full roadway coverage in Waycare, data	
#5,6,8,13)	from 1 i	n 10 '	vehicles is ideal. At t	this lev	el there is full roadway coverage and no	
	extra data is needed. 1 in 20 vehicles is adequate and 1 in 50 vehicles is scarce.					
	Most de	ploy	ments to date have b	been in	metro areas. However, any major	
	interstate or state highway would likely have enough traffic flow (vehicle penetration) to enable a basic understanding of the traffic conditions in the					
					nding of the traffic conditions in the	
	Waycar	e syst	tem. For crashes, mo	ore den	se data is needed.	
Detection	Detection is func	tiona	l in:		Researcher notes from demonstration:	
Conditions/	All lighting c	ondit	tions (daylight, low		Waycare integrates with a variety of	
Environment	light, dark)			X	systems through APIs and lighting	
(Neeus #14-17)					Wayaara integrates with a variaty of	
	• All weather	cond	itions		systems through ADIs and weather	
	• All weather	conu			conditions are not an issue	
					Waycare integrates with a variety of	
	Low visibility	y not	caused by	X	systems through APIs and visibility is not	
	weather eve	ents (e.g., smoke)	<u>1</u>	an issue.	
			16 6 5		Most deployments to date have been in	
	All traffic co	nditio	ons (tree-tlowing		metro areas. However, any major	
	to extreme	conge	estion)		interstate or state highway would likely	

False Alerts	Provide any additional details about the de Researcher notes from demonstration: • Nothing additional. Alerts/Displays and Co Demonstrate and discuss the product's ab	etectio onfigura	have enough traffic flow (vehicle penetration) to enable a basic understanding of the traffic conditions in the Waycare system. For crashes, more dense data is needed. n environment.
(Need #18)	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during demonstration 	ion.	mmmize juise uierts.
Notifications (Need #19)	 How are alerts provided to TMC operators How can notifications be customized (e.g., Researcher notes from demonstration: Notifications are provided within 	or oth email, the W	er users when an incident is detected? text) for each recipient? aycare user interface.
Operator	This product allows users to:		Researcher notes from demonstration:
Support and Configuration	 Validate or dismiss incidents as they are received. 	\boxtimes	Demonstrated
(Needs #20-31)	 Configure incident alerts and displays uniquely for each individual user. 		-
	 Turn on and off alerts for each incident type. 	\boxtimes	Demonstrated
	 Turn on and off alerts by roadway geometry (e.g., turn off shoulder alerts) and location (e.g., designate typical versus atypical traffic queues). 		Able to configure for typical vs. atypical traffic congestion.
	• Configure the duration from incident detection to incident alert.	\boxtimes	Demonstrated.
	 Configure speed thresholds for detecting congestion or slow traffic. 	\boxtimes	Demonstrated.
	 Configure thresholds for locating start/head and end/tail of traffic queues. 	×	Create a baseline initially, but since it's machine learning, constantly adapting. (Takes 1-3 months to be fully deployed in an agency, looks at about 3 years of past data. Look at percentage of accuracy, then adjust)
	 Configure incident alerts in real- time and by pre-determined parameters. 		Create a baseline initially, but since it's machine learning, constantly adapting

	Prioritize alerts and allow real time filtering	\boxtimes				
	Real-time information about					
	incident timelines.	X				
	 Re-classify incident events to 		_			
	change their priority level over time					
	Other decision support features (please ex	plain):				
	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
	Can merge incidents from Waycare to agency CAD feeds.					
Time to	What is the amount of time elapsed from	incident	coccurrence to detection?			
Detection	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
(Need #32)	 Not discussed during demonstrat 	ion. Ho	wever, Waycare integrates with a variety			
	of systems therefore the time to	detection	on is dependent upon each detection			
	data source that integrates into \	Vaycare	2.			
Latanay of	Commont on the latency of communication	a alorto	to TMC operators or other users if			
Detection to	applicable	y ulerts	to Twic operators of other users, ij			
Alert	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
(Need #33)	Not discussed during the demonstration	stration	. The Waycare user interface provides			
, ,	alerts to users.					
	Integration with Agency Syst	ems an	d Practices			
Use of Agency	Does the system utilize existing DOT-owne	d equip	ment to perform detections? If yes, how?			
Use of Agency Equipment	Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner If no, what equipment is used and where in	d equip s it hous	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed?			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34)	Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner If no, what equipment is used and where it Researcher notes from demonstration:	d equip s it hous	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed?			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34)	Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner If no, what equipment is used and where in Researcher notes from demonstration: • There is no hardware installation	ed equip s it hous	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed?			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation	Does the system utilize existing DOT-owned If no, what equipment is used and where it Researcher notes from demonstration: • There is no hardware installation What is the installation/integration process	ed equip s it hous 55?	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed?			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and	Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner If no, what equipment is used and where is Researcher notes from demonstration: • There is no hardware installation What is the installation/integration process Researcher notes from demonstration:	ed equip s it hous ss?	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed?			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration	Does the system utilize existing DOT-ownerIf no, what equipment is used and where isResearcher notes from demonstration:• There is no hardware installationWhat is the installation/integration processResearcher notes from demonstration:• Not discussed during the demonstration	ed equip s it hous ss? stration	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed?			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner of the system utilize existing DOT-owner of the system utilize existing DOT-owner of the system of the s	ed equip s it hous ss? stration	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed?			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner If no, what equipment is used and where is Researcher notes from demonstration: • There is no hardware installation What is the installation/integration process Researcher notes from demonstration: • Not discussed during the demonstration: • How can the product be integrated with a Management Software (ATMS)?	ed equip s it hous ss? stration gency s	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed? ystems such as Advanced Traffic			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner of the system used and where it is the installation from demonstration: What is the installation/integration process Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration of the product be integrated with a Management Software (ATMS)? Researcher notes from demonstration: 	ed equip s it hous ss? stration gency s	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed? ystems such as Advanced Traffic			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner of the system utilize existing utilize exi	ed equip s it hous ss? stration gency s	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed? ystems such as Advanced Traffic			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner If no, what equipment is used and where is Researcher notes from demonstration: There is no hardware installation What is the installation/integration process Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration: How can the product be integrated with a Management Software (ATMS)? Researcher notes from demonstration: Waycare is working with ATMS values ATMS. If it is not integrated, once 	ed equip s it hous ss? stration gency sy endors the ind	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed? ystems such as Advanced Traffic to integrate Waycare's system into their cident is confirmed on the Waycare user			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner of the system utilize existing utilize existing utility of the system utilize existing utility of the system utility of th	ed equip s it hous ss? stration gency s endors f e the ind l into th	sed? ystems such as Advanced Traffic to integrate Waycare's system into their cident is confirmed on the Waycare user a ATMS and works in parallel. For			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner of the system utilize existing utilize existing utilize existing utilize existing utilize existing the the system utilize existing of the system utilize existing of the system utilize existing utilize exist	ed equip s it hous ss? stration gency s endors f e the ind l into th care pla	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed? ystems such as Advanced Traffic to integrate Waycare's system into their cident is confirmed on the Waycare user he ATMS and works in parallel. For atform for incident verification, then turns			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner if no, what equipment is used and where is Researcher notes from demonstration: There is no hardware installation What is the installation/integration process Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration: How can the product be integrated with a Management Software (ATMS)? Researcher notes from demonstration: Waycare is working with ATMS vertice of the integrated of the integr	ed equip s it hous	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed? ystems such as Advanced Traffic to integrate Waycare's system into their cident is confirmed on the Waycare user the ATMS and works in parallel. For atform for incident verification, then turns re's a response plan available, then that			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner if no, what equipment is used and where it Researcher notes from demonstration: There is no hardware installation What is the installation/integration process Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration: How can the product be integrated with a Management Software (ATMS)? Researcher notes from demonstration: Waycare is working with ATMS vo ATMS. If it is not integrated, once interface, the incident is ingested example, the user views the Way it over to ATMS for response. What is pushed to the ATMS. 	endors f endors f endors f the ind l into th care pla	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed? ystems such as Advanced Traffic to integrate Waycare's system into their cident is confirmed on the Waycare user le ATMS and works in parallel. For atform for incident verification, then turns re's a response plan available, then that			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner if no, what equipment is used and where is Researcher notes from demonstration: There is no hardware installation What is the installation/integration process Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration: Mot assess of the product be integrated with a Management Software (ATMS)? Researcher notes from demonstration: Waycare is working with ATMS was ATMS. If it is not integrated, once interface, the incident is ingested example, the user views the Way it over to ATMS for response. What as pushed to the ATMS. 	endors f endors f f endors f endors f endors f endors f endors f endors f f endors f endors f	sed?			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner If no, what equipment is used and where it Researcher notes from demonstration: There is no hardware installation What is the installation/integration process Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration: Wara the product be integrated with a Management Software (ATMS)? Researcher notes from demonstration: Waycare is working with ATMS vo ATMS. If it is not integrated, once interface, the incident is ingested example, the user views the Way it over to ATMS for response. What are is pushed to the ATMS. What physical space is required at agency Researcher notes from demonstration: 	ed equip s it hous	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed?			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner if no, what equipment is used and where is Researcher notes from demonstration: There is no hardware installation What is the installation/integration process Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration: Mot agreent Software (ATMS)? Researcher notes from demonstration: Waycare is working with ATMS was ATMS. If it is not integrated, once interface, the incident is ingested example, the user views the Way it over to ATMS for response. What a physical space is required at agency Researcher notes from demonstration: N/A 	ed equip s it hous	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed?			
Use of Agency Equipment (Need #34) Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)	 Does the system utilize existing DOT-owner if no, what equipment is used and where it Researcher notes from demonstration: There is no hardware installation What is the installation/integration process Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration: Wow can the product be integrated with a Management Software (ATMS)? Researcher notes from demonstration: Waycare is working with ATMS vo ATMS. If it is not integrated, once interface, the incident is ingested example, the user views the Way it over to ATMS for response. What a physical space is required at agency Researcher notes from demonstration: N/A 	endors facilitie	ment to perform detections? If yes, how? sed?			

	Researcher notes from demonstration:				
	• N/A				
Calibration	Describe how the system is pre-calibrated by the vendor prior to agency deployment, any				
(Need #37-39)	ongoing calibration needs, and self-calibration capabilities.				
	Researcher notes from demonstration:				
	Not discussed during the demonstration.				
Health	Describe how the product monitors the operability of its components and field equipment.				
Monitoring	Researcher notes from demonstration:				
(Need #41)	 Not discussed during the demonstration. 				
	Use by Transportation Agencies / Case Studies				
List the transport	List the transportation agencies (and contacts if available) that currently use your AID product. Provide web				
links to case stud	lies or other documentation featuring agency use of the product.				
Researcher no	otes from demonstration:				
None noted.					
	Other Product Highlights				
Describe any add	litional product highlights if not previously noted.				
Researcher notes from demonstration:					
Crash p	rediction features – Waycare uses its datasets to create a regional response plan (e.g., how				
long is t	he incident expected to last) or a transit revision action plan (e.g., using adaptive traffic				
signal d	ata and transit data.)				

Agency and Platform	Colorado DOT (CDOT) Traffic Operations Dashboard				
Contacts	Jamie Yount (<u>Jamie.yount@state.co.us</u>)				
Webinar	May 26, 2021				
Demonstration					
			Product Overview		
Brief overview of Researcher not	how the product of tes from demonst	detec ratio	ts traffic incidents (3-4 sentences): n: ations Dashboard to detect incidents in a timelier manner. The		
 CDOT de dashboar of data tl 	rd that has been of hat is pulled into	devel the d	oped is a proof of concept demonstrating alerts from different types ashboard.		
There are	e 3 sources of cro	wdso	purced data used by CDOT, and 2 sources are used by the Traffic		
Operatio	ns Dashboard:				
 IN Vi or H Wi The dash develope develope developring Options to H Ri W A' 	 INRIX Data – Used for travel time predictions on Variable Message Signs (VMS) and to set Variable Speed Limits (VSL). In the future it is an anticipated the VSL will be weather based or a combination of weather and crowd sourced data. HERE Live Traffic Data – Used in Traffic Operations Dashboard. Waze Traffic Alerts – Used in Traffic Operations Dashboard. The dashboard was built in partnership between a CDOT GIS team and ESRI. The dashboard was developed staying within the templates and framework of ESRI for ease of maintenance. Custom development can be more difficult to maintain. Options to view by toggling on or off the data include: HERE Live Traffic Radar from National Weather Service (NWS) Waze Traffic Alerts 				
	DOI weather stat	ions			
	eu nag warnings i /inter storm warn	ing v	watches, and high winds		
0 0	S/OW permitting				
• C	oTrip Road Condi	tions	(CDOT 511)		
• C	oTrip point alerts				
o V	MS signs				
CDOT notes:					
Nothing	additional.				
Traffic to the	Detec	lion	Capabilities, Coverage and Environment		
I rattic Incidents	Incident Typ	e	Researcher notes from demonstration		
Detects	Vehicle	\boxtimes	Demonstrated alert from vehicle stopped on shoulder.		
presence of	Extremely		Not discussed during the demonstration.		

 \times

Slow Vehicle

Congestion/

Slow Traffic

these incidents

(Needs #1-12)

Not demonstrated. However, Waze alerts include "Jams" that can

identify congestion or queues. CDOT does not have another automated source of data to identify congestion or queues.

show congestion or queues. Otherwise operator input is needed to

	Non-vehicle object or entity (e.g., debris, pedestrian, animal)	\boxtimes	Demonstrated ale	rt from	hazard on road (pothole).		
	Queue (Location of front and back of traffic queue)	\boxtimes	Not demonstrated. show congestion o identify congestion automated source	Not demonstrated. However, Waze alerts include "Jams" that car show congestion or queues. Otherwise operator input is needed to identify congestion or queues. CDOT does not have another automated source of data to identify congestion or queues.			
	Wrong-Way Vehicle		Not discussed duri	ng the o	demonstration.		
	Extreme Vehicle Speed		Not discussed during the demonstration.				
	Comments on tr Researcher n Nothin CDOT notes: Nothin	raffic lotes g ado g ado	incidents detected b from demonstration ditional. ditional.	y the pi :	roduct.		
Coverage Limits for Detection (Needs #5,6,8,13)	 Describe the product's coverage area (e.g., all lanes of traffic, roadway shoulders, field of view, detection coverage distance). Researcher notes from demonstration: The dashboard provides a view of the entire state and the scale of information displayed changes when zooming in and out. CDOT notes: Nothing additional. 						
Detection	Detection is fun	ction	al in:		Researcher notes from demonstration:		
Conditions/ Environment (Needs #14-17)	 All lighting low light, d 	conditions (daylight, ark)		\boxtimes	Not discussed during the demonstration. However, Waze Traffic Alerts work in all lighting conditions.		
	 All weather conditions All weather conditions Low visibility not caused by weather events (e.g., smoke) All traffic conditions (free-flowing to extreme congestion) Not disc 			\boxtimes	Not discussed during the demonstration. However, Waze Traffic Alerts work in all weather conditions.		
				Not discussed during the demonstration. However, Waze Traffic Alerts work in all visibility conditions.			
				Not discussed during the demonstration.			
	Provide any add Researcher n • Nothin CDOT notes: • Nothin	lition otes g ado g ado	al details about the of from demonstration ditional. ditional.	letectic :	on environment.		

	Alerts/Displays and Co	onfigur	ation			
False Alerts (Need #18)	 Demonstrate and discuss the product's ability to minimize false alerts. Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. CDOT notes: Nothing additional. 					
Notifications (Need #19)	 How are alerts provided to TMC operators or other users when an incident is detected? How can notifications be customized (e.g., email, text) for each recipient? Researcher notes from demonstration: Alerts are provided in a list format on the dashboard. The user selects the event to view additional details. CDOT notes: Nothing additional. 					
Operator	This product allows users to:		Researcher notes from demonstration:			
Support and Configuration	 Validate or dismiss incidents as they are received. 		Not discussed during the demonstration.			
(Needs #20-31)	 Configure incident alerts and displays uniquely for each individual user. 		Not discussed during the demonstration.			
	 Turn on and off alerts for each incident type. 	\boxtimes	Users are able to toggle on and off information (e.g., Waze Traffic Alerts, AVL) to display on the dashboard.			
	 Turn on and off alerts by roadway geometry (e.g., turn off shoulder alerts) and location (e.g., designate typical versus atypical traffic queues). 		Not discussed during the demonstration.			
	 Configure the duration from incident detection to incident alert. 		N/A – based on each data source			
	 Configure speed thresholds for detecting congestion or slow traffic. 		N/A – based on each data source			
	 Configure thresholds for locating start/head and end/tail of traffic queues. 		N/A – based on each data source			
	 Configure incident alerts in real- time and by pre-determined parameters. 		N/A- based on each data source			
	• Prioritize alerts and allow real time filtering.		Not discussed during the demonstration.			
	 Real-time information about incident timelines. 		Not discussed during the demonstration.			

	Re-classify incident events to						
	change their priority level over		Not discussed during the demonstration.				
	time						
	Other decision support features (please explain):						
	Researcher notes from demonstration:						
	Nothing additional.						
	CDOT notes:	CDOT notes:					
	Nothing additional.						
Time to	What is the amount of time elapsed from	incide	nt occurrence to detection?				
Detection	Researcher notes from demonstration	:					
(Need #32)	Unknown. Data is provided by the second	nird-pa	rty data sources (e.g., Waze, HERE				
	Technologies).						
	 However, CDOT anecdotally has 	seen a	decrease of 5 to 10 minutes reduction in				
	total incident detection and resp	oonse t	ime through the use of the dashboard.				
	The dashboard has also improve	d situa	tion awareness for operations and				
	maintenance staff. In addition, r	nore ad	ccurate and timely traveler information is				
	provided.		,				
	CDOT notes:						
	 Nothing additional. 						
Latency of	Comment on the latency of communicati	na aleri	ts to TMC operators or other users. if				
Detection to	applicable.	9					
Alert	Researcher notes from demonstration	:					
(Need #33)	 CDOT's dashboard displays alerts via an API from third-party data sources (e.g. 						
(Waze HERE Technologies) When an incident is reported through the API it will						
	then trigger an alert in the CDOT Traffic Operations Dashboard						
	CDOT notes:						
	Nothing additional.						
	Integration with Agency Syst	ems ar	nd Practices				
	Does the system utilize existing DOT-own	od onu	inment to perform detections? If yes				
Equipment	how? If no what equipment is used and y	vhoro i	s it housed?				
(Need #31)	Researcher notes from demonstration	•					
(Neeu #34)	N/A Incident detection is provide	Ied froi	m third-party data sources (e.g. Waze				
	HERE Technologies)						
	CDOT notes:						
	Nothing additional						
Installation	What is the installation/integration proce	>< </th <th></th>					
and Integration	Researcher notes from demonstration	:					
(Needs #35.36	N/A. The dashboard was developed and the second secon	ned in i	partnership with FSRI				
40.42)	CDOT notes:	peum					
10,721	Nothing additional						
	How can the product be integrated with	napncu	systems such as Advanced Traffic				
	Management Software (ATMS)2	igency	systems such as Auvancea majjic				
	wiunugement sojtware (ATWS)?						

	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
	• Currently TMC operators log incidents detected (e.g., from the dashboard) in the					
	ATMS. CDOT plans to deploy a new ATMS in the Fall 2021 and the dashboard					
	information as well as other sources of information may be integrated into the					
	ATMS at that time.					
	CDOT notes:					
	Nothing additional.					
	What physical space is required at agency facilities for equipment and data storage?					
	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
	• N/A					
	CDOT notes:					
	Nothing additional.					
	If applicable, how is storage and periodic purging of video handled?					
	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
	• Data from the dashboard is stored and archived.					
	CDOT notes:					
	Nothing additional.					
Calibration	Describe how the system is pre-calibrated by the vendor prior to agency deployment, any					
(Need #37-39)	ongoing calibration needs, and self-calibration canabilities					
(Neeu #37-39)	Pesearcher notes from demonstration:					
	• N/A					
	Nothing additional					
	• Nothing additional.					
Health	Describe how the product monitors the operability of its components and field equipment.					
Monitoring	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
(Need #41)	• N/A					
(11000	CDOT notes:					
	Nothing additional					
	Use by Transportation Agencies / Case Studies					
List the transport	ation agencies (and contacts if available) that currently use your AID product. Provide web					
links to case studi	es or other documentation featuring agency use of the product.					
Researcher not	tes from demonstration:					
• N/A						
CDOT notes:						
Nothing additional.						
	-					
	Other Product Highlights					
Describe any addi	tional product highlights if not previously noted.					
Researcher notes from demonstration:						
 Moving f 	Moving forward CDOT would like to:					
 Increase the use of the dashboard within CDOT (e.g., maintenance field staff). 						

- Improve the public facing interface with the feeds.
- Develop and implement predictive capabilities (e.g., sporting events, road closures)
- Include mobile RWIS and road friction data. There are 60 mobile RWIS on supervisor vehicles, buses, and snowplows. The vehicle operator/driver is provided information from the sensor through Bluetooth which has been very beneficial to the driver
- \circ $\;$ $\;$ Improve performance measures for snow and ice program.
- \circ ~ Develop snowplow dynamic routing keep resources moving.
- Develop and implement additional data sources and dashboards (e.g., operational readiness, avalanche operations).

CDOT notes:

• Nothing additional.

Agency and Platform	Pennsylvania DOT (PennDOT) Traffic Alerts Dashboard
Contact	Ryan McNary (<u>rymcnary@pa.gov</u>)
Webinar Demonstration	June 9, 2021

Product Overview

Brief overview of how the product detects traffic incidents (3-4 sentences): Researcher notes from demonstration:

- PennDOT developed a traffic alerts dashboard to alert operators of incidents more quickly. There are 13 different Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) providers used within the state by County 911 centers and those feeds are not shared with the DOT. With the Traffic Alerts dashboard, the goal was to fill that gap in the TMC with crowdsourced incident data. Other goals were to maintain situational awareness, speed up the incident verification process, and enable faster coordination between the TMC and other PennDOT entities (e.g., maintenance team).
- The sources of information for the dashboard include:
 - o INRIX incident data
 - Road Condition Reporting System (RCRS)
 - o Camera locations
 - Video you can stream
 - Google traffic Application Programming Interface (API) (always live)
 - Waze alert information (typically confidence score of 5 or above, but operator can choose)

PennDOT notes:

• Nothing additional.

Detection Capabilities, Coverage and Environment					
Traffic Incidents Detected	Incident Type		Researcher notes from demonstration		
Detects presence of	Stopped Vehicle	\boxtimes			
these incidents (Needs #1-12)	Extremely Slow Vehicle		-		
	Congestion/ Slow Traffic	\boxtimes	INRIX can only provide congestion related data.		
	Non-vehicle object or entity (e.g., debris, pedestrian, animal)		-		
	Queue (Location of front and back of traffic queue)	\boxtimes	Typically from Waze incident information and then an operator can view a nearby camera to see the head and tail of congestion.		
	Wrong-Way Vehicle		-		

	Extreme					
	Comments on traffic incidents detected by the product.					
	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
	• Other alert types include minor accident, major accident, and lane closed.					
	PennDOT notes:					
	Nothing additional.					
Coverage	Describe the product's coverage area (e.g., all lanes of traffic, roadway shoulders, field of					
Limits for Detection	view, aetection coverage distance).					
(Needs	Researcher notes from demonstration:					
(Neeus #5.6.8.13)	Data is not available on Turnpikes, only on state routes.					
#3,0,8,13)	Pennuur notes:					
	 The dashboard is geotenced around the "Core Roadway" network. Approximately, 4,000 miles of roadway that has been deemed operationally vital. 					
	(major interstates and arterials)	uuvuy	that has been deemed operationally vital			
Detection	Detection is functional in:		Researcher notes from demonstration:			
Conditions/	All lighting conditions (daylight, low		INRIX data is probe data and not			
Environment	light, dark)	X	affected by lighting, weather, or visibility			
(Needs #14-17)	All weather conditions	X	conditions. Waze data is from			
	 Low visibility pat caused by 		individuals reporting incidents and not			
	• Low visibility not caused by weather events (e.g. smoke)	\times	affected by conditions or the			
			environment.			
	All traffic conditions (free-flowing		-			
	Brovide any additional details about the d	atactia	n anviranment			
	Provide any additional details about the detection environment.					
	Nothing additional					
	PennDOT notes:					
	Nothing additional.					
	1					
Ealso Alorts	Alerts/Displays and Co	onfigur	ation			
I alse Alerts	Alerts/Displays and Co Demonstrate and discuss the product's ab	onfigur	ation minimize false alerts.			
(Need #18)	Alerts/Displays and Co Demonstrate and discuss the product's ab Researcher notes from demonstration:	onfiguration ility to	ation minimize false alerts.			
(Need #18)	Alerts/Displays and Co Demonstrate and discuss the product's about the Researcher notes from demonstration: Users have the ability to configure	onfigura ility to e the c	ation minimize false alerts. onfidence and severity levels of the data			
(Need #18)	Alerts/Displays and Co Demonstrate and discuss the product's about the product's about the searcher notes from demonstration: Users have the ability to configure sources.	onfigura ility to e the c	ation minimize false alerts. onfidence and severity levels of the data			
(Need #18)	Alerts/Displays and Co Demonstrate and discuss the product's about the about	onfigur ility to e the c	ation minimize false alerts. onfidence and severity levels of the data			
(Need #18)	Alerts/Displays and Co Demonstrate and discuss the product's ab- Researcher notes from demonstration: Users have the ability to configur sources. PennDOT notes: There is machine learning built be	e the c	ation minimize false alerts. onfidence and severity levels of the data he dashboard, so if an operator selects a			
(Need #18)	Alerts/Displays and Co Demonstrate and discuss the product's ab- Researcher notes from demonstration: • Users have the ability to configur sources. PennDOT notes: • There is machine learning built be certain incident as a "false alert"	e the c chind t it will e	ation minimize false alerts. onfidence and severity levels of the data he dashboard, so if an operator selects a eventually learn to omit or correctly place			
(Need #18)	Alerts/Displays and Co Demonstrate and discuss the product's ab- Researcher notes from demonstration: Users have the ability to configur sources. PennDOT notes: There is machine learning built be certain incident as a "false alert" the incident for future iterations.	e the c e the c ehind t it will e Also,	ation minimize false alerts. onfidence and severity levels of the data he dashboard, so if an operator selects a eventually learn to omit or correctly place the system has correlation logic to			
(Need #18)	Alerts/Displays and Co Demonstrate and discuss the product's ab- Researcher notes from demonstration: • Users have the ability to configur sources. PennDOT notes: • There is machine learning built be certain incident as a "false alert" the incident for future iterations. accommodate multiple incident a vorifuing an incident because all of	e the c e the c ehind t it will e Also, alerts fi	ation minimize false alerts. onfidence and severity levels of the data he dashboard, so if an operator selects a eventually learn to omit or correctly place the system has correlation logic to rom a variety of sources. This helps with			
(Need #18)	Alerts/Displays and Co Demonstrate and discuss the product's ab- Researcher notes from demonstration: • Users have the ability to configur sources. PennDOT notes: • There is machine learning built be certain incident as a "false alert" the incident for future iterations. accommodate multiple incident a verifying an incident because all s	e the c e the c e thind t it will e Also, alerts fi sources	ation minimize false alerts. onfidence and severity levels of the data he dashboard, so if an operator selects a eventually learn to omit or correctly place the system has correlation logic to rom a variety of sources. This helps with s are linked together within those logic			
(Need #18)	 Alerts/Displays and Control Demonstrate and discuss the product's about the searcher notes from demonstration: Users have the ability to configure sources. PennDOT notes: There is machine learning built be certain incident as a "false alert" the incident for future iterations. accommodate multiple incident at verifying an incident because all seconstraints. Seconstraints. 	e the c e the c ehind t it will e Also, alerts fi sources	ation minimize false alerts. onfidence and severity levels of the data he dashboard, so if an operator selects a eventually learn to omit or correctly place the system has correlation logic to rom a variety of sources. This helps with s are linked together within those logic			
(Need #18)	Alerts/Displays and Co Demonstrate and discuss the product's ab- Researcher notes from demonstration: • Users have the ability to configur sources. PennDOT notes: • There is machine learning built be certain incident as a "false alert" the incident for future iterations. accommodate multiple incident a verifying an incident because all s constraints.	e the c e the c e the c e the c alerts fi sources or oth	ation minimize false alerts. onfidence and severity levels of the data he dashboard, so if an operator selects a eventually learn to omit or correctly place the system has correlation logic to rom a variety of sources. This helps with a are linked together within those logic er users when an incident is detected?			

(Need #19) Operator Support and	 Researcher notes from demonstration: Alerts are provided within the da PennDOT notes: In a real time feed, with the most how long the incident duration is refreshing). All columns of the d This product allows users to: Validate or dismiss incidents as 	shboar recent active ashboa	d interface. t update on top, and a delta that shows since the first received alert (constantly ard feed are sortable. Researcher notes from demonstration:
Configuration (Needs #20-31)	 they are received. Configure incident alerts and displays uniquely for each individual user. Turn on and off alerts for each 		 As the dashboard was developed, PennDOT ensured it could be configured with user-defined preferences.
	 Turn on and off alerts by roadway geometry (e.g., turn off shoulder alerts) and location (e.g., designate typical versus atypical traffic queues). 	X	 Users can turn on and off alerts from certain roadways or specific routes. Users can select their district or statewide.
	 Configure the duration from incident detection to incident alert. 	\boxtimes	 Users can see the incident duration in two locations, directly on the feed alert and in the "real-time" incident timeline
	 Configure speed thresholds for detecting congestion or slow traffic. 		-
	 Configure thresholds for locating start/head and end/tail of traffic queues. 	X	Users can see the heads and tails of congestion with every incident iteration on the Google Map, and they can look back in time with the slider capability in the incident timeline feature to determine where congestion was throughout its duration.
	 Configure incident alerts in real- time and by pre-determined parameters. 	X	This is done on the back end through programmed logic
	 Prioritize alerts and allow real time filtering. 		-
	 Real-time information about incident timelines. 	X	There is the ability to create a real time incident timeline. Users can go to an incident timeline and play a video of timestamps to see for example the queue tail – becoming better or worse.
	 Re-classify incident events to change their priority level over time 	\boxtimes	Priority levels will change as the source data arrives.

Possarshar potes from domonstration:			
Researcher hotes nom demonstration.	Researcher notes from demonstration:		
 Nothing additional. 	Nothing additional.		
PennDOT notes:			
 When an operator enters a verified incident into the 	ir PennDOT RCRS (incident		
management), it joins with the crowdsourced incide	nt data so they can see it's		
verified.			
Time toWhat is the amount of time elapsed from incident occurrence	to detection?		
Detection Researcher notes from demonstration:			
(Need #32) In 2018, PennDOT found that incidents were detected	d by INRIX within 7 minutes,		
by Waze within 9 minutes, and by PennDOT's RCRS v	vithin 13 minutes. INRIX		
typically picks up an incident first because INRIX is p	oviding speed data.		
PennDOT notes:			
 Those are statewide values, and minutes vary less or 	more throughout the state.		
Latency of Comment on the latency of communicating alerts to TMC ope	rators or other users, if		
Detection to applicable.			
Alert Researcher notes from demonstration:			
(Need #33) • TMC operators that use the dashboard are alerted as	s soon as an incident type is		
detected.			
PennDOT notes:			
Nothing additional.			
Integration with Agency Systems and Practices			
Use of Agency Does the system utilize existing DOT-owned equipment to per	form detections? If yes, how?		
Equipment If no, what equipment is used and where is it housed? (Need #34)			
Researcher notes from demonstration:			
 The dashboard uses the existing PennDOT PCPS 			
 The dashboard uses the existing relinbor rors. 			
PennDOT notes:			
 PennDOT notes: RCRS is only used for verifying incidents. 			
Installation What is the installation/integration process?			
Installation and What is the installation/integration process?			
Installation and What is the installation/integration process? Integration • Not discussed during the demonstration.			
Installation and What is the installation/integration process? Integration (Needs #35,36, Not discussed during the demonstration.			
Installation and (Needs #35,36, 40,42)What is the installation/integration process? Researcher notes from demonstration: • Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: • Design and development time for the user interface	and to understand the data		
Installation and (Needs #35,36, 40,42)What is the installation/integration process? Researcher notes from demonstration: • Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: • Design and development time for the user interface properly coming from INRIX and Waze. Significant er	and to understand the data ffort was spent designing the		
Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 	and to understand the data ffort was spent designing the ucing duplicate alerts. System		
Installation and Integration (Needs #35,36, 40,42)What is the installation/integration process? Researcher notes from demonstration: • Not discussed during the demonstration. 	and to understand the data ffort was spent designing the icing duplicate alerts. System thing needs installed on an		
 Installation RCRS is only used for verifying incidents. Installation RCRS is only used for verifying incidents. Installation Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: Not discussed during the demonstration.	and to understand the data ffort was spent designing the icing duplicate alerts. System thing needs installed on an as Advanced Traffic		
 Installation RCRS is only used for verifying incidents. Installation RCRS is only used for verifying incidents. Installation Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: Not discussed during the demonstration.	and to understand the data ffort was spent designing the icing duplicate alerts. System thing needs installed on an as Advanced Traffic		
 Installation RCRS is only used for verifying incidents. Installation RCRS is only used for verifying incidents. Installation Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: Not discussed during the demonstration.	and to understand the data ffort was spent designing the ucing duplicate alerts. System thing needs installed on an as Advanced Traffic		
 Installation RCRS is only used for verifying incidents. Installation RCRS is only used for verifying incidents. Installation Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: Not discussed during the demonstration.	and to understand the data ffort was spent designing the icing duplicate alerts. System thing needs installed on an <i>as Advanced Traffic</i> ng considered.		
 Installation RCRS is only used for verifying incidents. Installation RCRS is only used for verifying incidents. Installation Researcher notes from demonstration: Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: Not discussed during the demonstration. PennDOT notes: Design and development time for the user interface properly coming from INRIX and Waze. Significant erologic and business rules for incident correlation/reduresides on PennDOT servers and is web-based, so note end user's computer. How can the product be integrated with agency systems such Management Software (ATMS)? Researcher notes from demonstration:	and to understand the data ffort was spent designing the ucing duplicate alerts. System thing needs installed on an <i>as Advanced Traffic</i> ng considered.		

	What physical space is required at agency facilities for equipment and data storage?			
	Researcher notes from demonstration:			
	• N/A			
	PennDOT notes:			
	• See above.			
	If applicable, how is storage and periodic purging of video handled? Researcher notes from demonstration:			
	Not discussed during the demonstration.			
	 We do not store video on the traffic alerts website, but we do store incidents for certain lookback periods. Those are predefined with some residing in the production database and after a week they can be retrieved from the system archive database. PennDOT's TSMO Performance Program keeps all incidents from Waze and INRIX indefinitely if further analysis is needed. 			
Calibration (Need #37-39)	Describe how the system is pre-calibrated by the vendor prior to agency deployment, any ongoing calibration needs, and self-calibration capabilities.			
	Researcher notes from demonstration:			
	 For each data source, users can configure the confidence and incident type 			
	PennDOT notes:			
	Nothing additional			
Health	Describe how the product monitors the operability of its components and field equipment.			
Monitoring	Researcher notes from demonstration:			
(Need #41)	Not discussed during the demonstration.			
	PennDOT notes:			
	• No field equipment is used.			
Use by Transportation Agencies / Case Studies				
List the transportation agencies (and contacts if available) that currently use your AID product. Provide web links to case studies or other documentation featuring agency use of the product. Researcher notes from demonstration:				
 Used by PennDOT only. The dashboard was developed in house for use by PennDOT. 				
PennDOT notes:				
• Used by 7 traffic management centers for 24/7 operations. There are plans potentially switching				
the system over to allow off-network access to grant capabilities to other public partners (i.e. City				
TMCs). Additional cost to add this capability since it was designed differently upon inception.				
Other Product Highlights				
Describe any add	litional product highlights if not previously noted.			
Researcher no	otes from demonstration:			
The syst	em can generate various reports for use in after action reviews. However, this does not			
have an export function yet.				
PennDOT not	25:			
Nothing additional.				

References

Amin-Naseri, M. Adopting and incorporating crowdsourced traffic data in advanced transportation management systems. Iowa State University, Ames, IA, 2018, <u>https://www.imse.iastate.edu/files/2018/07/Amin-NaseriMostafa-dissertation.pdf</u>.

Arizona Department of Transportation. *Interstate 17 Wrong-Way Vehicle Detection Pilot Program*. Transportation Systems Management & Operations Division, Phoenix, AZ, 2020, <u>https://azdot.gov/sites/default/files/2020/07/Wrong-Way-Vehicle-Detection-Report-June-2020.pdf</u>.

Athey Creek Consultants. *Countermeasures for Wrong Way Driving on Freeways*. ENTERPRISE Transportation Pooled Fund Study TPF-5 (231), 2016,

http://enterprise.prog.org/Projects/2013/wrongway/ENT_Countermeasures_WrongWayDriving_FINAL_Sept2016.pdf.

Chien, S., Y. Chen, Q. Yi, and Z. Ding. *Development of Automated Incident Detection System Using Existing ATMS CCTV*. Purdue University, West Lafayette, IN, 2019, Joint Transportation Research Program Publication No. FHWA/IN/JTRP-2019/23, <u>https://doi.org/10.5703/1288284317101</u>.

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). *Adventures in Crowdsourcing: Business Case for Crowdsourced Data*. NOCoE Webinar, October 22, 2020, <u>https://transportationops.org/ondemand-learning/adventures-</u> crowdsourcing-business-case-crowdsourced-data.

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). *Adventures in Crowdsourcing: Incident Management Tools*. NOCoE Webinar, October 10, 2019, <u>https://transportationops.org/ondemand-learning/adventures-crowdsourcing-incident-management-tools-edc5-webinar-series</u>.

Kim, K., S. Gutesa, B. Dimitrijevic, J. Lee, L. Spasovic, W. Mirza, and J. Singh. *Performance Evaluation of Video Analytics for Traffic Incident Detection and Vehicle Counts Collection*. Springer, Cham, Intelligent Systems Reference Library, vol 121, 2017, Pages 213-231. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-52081-0_9</u>.

Lin, P.-S., C. Chen, and S. Ozkul. *Testing and Evaluation of Freeway Wrong-way Driving Detection Systems*. Florida Department of Transportation, 2018, FDOT BDV25-977-40, https://fdotwww.blob.core.windows.net/sitefinity/docs/default-source/research/reports/fdot-bdv25-977-40-rpt.pdf.

Lin, P.-S., C. Chen, and E. Bialkowska-Jelinska. *Testing and Evaluation of Thermal Camera-based and Video-analytic Systems on Wrong-Way Driving, Stopped Vehicles, and Pedestrians*. Johnson, Mirmiran & Thompson, Inc., 2019, C9W13 TWO 18, https://www.cutr.usf.edu/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/Testing-and-evaluation-of-Thermal-Camera-based-and-Video-analytic-Systems-on-Wrong-Way-Driving-Stopped-Vehicles-and-Pedestrians.pdf.

Marlina, S. *Wrong-Way Driving (WWD) Detection Proof of Concept at I-70/Ward Road*. Presentation for 2020 Virtual Annual Meeting, Joint Western and Mountain Districts, 2020, <u>https://www.westernite.org/annualmeetings/20_Honolulu/Presentations/14-Marlina.pdf</u>.

Pennsylvania Department of Transportation (PennDOT). *Traffic Alerts Overview*. Slide presentation, PennDOT TSMO Operations and Performance Section, 2020.

Pennsylvania Department of Transportation (PennDOT). *Transportation Systems Management and Operations Performance Report*. 2018 Q2 Edition, 2018, https://www.penndot.gov/ProjectAndPrograms/operations/Documents/2018-July_TSMO-Performance-Report.pdf.

Preisen, L. and D. Deeter. *Next generation traffic data and incident detection from vide*o. Technical Report ENTERPRISE Pooled Fund Study TPF-5(231), 2014, <u>https://enterprise.prog.org/wp-content/uploads/ENT_VideoAnalytics_Report_Sept2014_FINAL.pdf</u>.

Rindt, C. Situational Awareness for Transportation Management: Automated Video Incident Detection and Other Machine Learning Technologies for the Traffic Management Center. California Department of Transportation, 2018, <u>https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/research-innovation-system-</u> <u>information/documents/final-reports/ca18-2531-finalreport-a11y.pdf</u>.

Slonaker, J. *Wrong Way Driver Mitigation*. Presentation for Western AASHTO 2020 Summer RAC / TRB State Representatives Meeting, 2020, <u>https://research.transportation.org/wp-</u> content/uploads/sites/31/2020/07/WWD_Mitigation-presentation_for_AASHTO_RAC_2020-Caltrans.pdf.

Stevens, R. G., A. Voigt, and B. Manak. *Evaluation of Video Analytics for Incident Detection – Pilot Demonstration Houston, Texas.* Texas A&M Transportation Institute, 2016.